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Corporate Information

NEER

Board of Directors

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kaijin (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Bin (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Wu Xuze (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Liu longhua (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 8 March 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
M. liang Zequan

Audit Committee

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Chairman)

Mr. Huan Xuedong

M. liang Zequan

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lliang Zequan (Chairman)

Mr. Liu longhua (resigned on 8 March 2019

Mr. Huan Xuedong (appoinfed on 8 March 2019)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Nomination Committee

Mr. liv longhua (Chairman) (resigned on 8 March 2019)
Mr. liv Kaijin (Chairman) (appointed on 8 March 2019)
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. liang Zequan

Authorised Representatives

M. Liv Kaijin
Ms. Wong Kwan Lai
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Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai

Legal Advisors

Li & Partners [as to Hong Kong Law)
Zhong Lun law Firm (as to PRC law)

Auditor

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Principal Bankers

Bank of Jiangsu Co. lid, Yancheng Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Llimited, Yancheng Branch

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Registered Address

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,

Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of Business

The People’s Republic of China:

No. 5 Baoxing Road, Baocai Industrial Zone,
Yandu District, Yancheng City,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Hong Kong:

Room 1501-2, 15/F,

Siu On Plaza,

482 Jaffe Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Principal Share Registrar

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Stock Code

871

Website

www.cdep.com.hk
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“ Articles”

48

“ Audit Committee”

[E%EEE

“Board”

-3 4

“Bonds”

(&%

“Bondholder” /“CITIC”
[ExEEALTCTIC]

“CG Code”
[EERTH]

“Company” /“China Dredging ENV”
(A28 THERZER]

“Contractual Arrangements”

&%

“Director(s)”

[E%]

llGroupll

(@ TH%@E]

IIHK$II
[

Definitions

B=

the articles of association of the Company

ARREBEEIRAA

the audit committee of the Board
EERERLEY

the board of Directors

E=xg

the three per cent convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amounts of HK$243
million due 2016 issued by the Company under the subscription agreement dated 28
Ocfober 2013 entered info between the Company and the Bondholder
RRARBRBEESKBEAR S —=FTA -+ N\HIIUNRBRREETE
©HRFE /243,000,000 TR Z T - RFH BN =B HRKRES

CITIC Capital China Access Fund Limited

the code provisions as confained in “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time
fo fime], which are adopted [with modification) by the Board as its corporate
governance code

FHRAIM St UAENIEEE TR REEE ARSI AT A&
(BARER) EE2CMNETRAERELCEE R TR

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
hREGRRRERER A A

a series of contracts, brief details of which are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report, pursuant to which all economic benefits and
risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are fransferred to Xiangyu PRC
—RINAH BHERAFRESMBHRRMAIY BITHEFH XS
EEN KBNS REARIBRERNTH

director(s| of the Company
AKANABES

the Company and ifs subsidiaries

RREREME R A

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BREEEY
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Definitions (Continued)

B &

“Jiangsu Jiaolong”

[T % 88 |

“Jiangsu Xingyu”/

“PRC Operational Entity”
I&wEF]/

(FEEEHER]

“Listing Rules”

[ £ Al

“Model Code”
[ZEX=pH]

“Mr. Liv”

[8l5%4£]

“Ms. Zhou”
[E& =]

“Nomination Committee”

REEEE

IIPRCII
[ B

“Remuneration Committee”

(FHEES

IIRMBII
[AR¥]

“Reporting Period”/“Review Period”

(& m] TE R[]

IISFOII
(B RPEHRH]

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 06

Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage Harbour Engineering Co. ltd.*, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company
THBREITSMBIIERRAR AR —HHEZ2EWNBE QA

Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group Limited* (formerly known as Jiangsu Xingyu Port
Construction Company Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IHBEFEREBERAFT(FBIKEFEREAERAR)  AA7—HE2E
(oINS

Rules Governing the Lisfing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from time
fo fime)

B 2 P e 75 £ 7 AR R (N BB ET)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time)

FARRMETFAEN ETRERTAEFETESFRINRETA (K THE
&)

Mr. Liu Kaijin, chairman and an executive Director [who is the spouse of Ms. Zhou)

ITRFRATEFIFRERE(RARLTZER)

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, an executive Director [who is the spouse of Mr. Liu)

ROTEFEAREZ L (REIKEZRB)

the nomination committee of the Board

E=gRA%Bg

the People’s Republic of China
hEARAM

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMEESe

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  REEEEE

for the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-ZF-\F+ZA=1T—HLFE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cop 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) [as
amended from time fo time)

BEREDNIES7V ERF R E RN (B AEERD)
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“Shareholder(s)”
N

“Share(s)”

Bt ]

“Share Option Scheme”

(B8 MRSt

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 3 P

“Xiangyu Environment
Protection”

(AFRR]

“Xiangyu PRC”
[AFE]

* For identification purpose only

Definitions (Continued)

B &

shareholder(s) of the Company
RRFIRE

ordinary share(s) of the Company
VNN D= 303

the share option scheme of the Company approved by Shareholders on 24 May 2011
BRERR-ZZE-——FRHA-THEBEREZRD R ERETE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARZMERAA

Jiangsu Xiangyu Environment Protection Equipment Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
TIHATERRBARLRF AR -—HE2ENEAR

Jiangsu Xiangyu Port Constructing Project Administration Co. ltd.*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
IHATERIRERBRAR  ARA—HE2ENE QA

*EHBEE
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Financial Summary

MR

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and

liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years.

ATRASERBEREMBREENE AMEEAR
EENBEME-

Results E 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1t—HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F =ZF—+F ZZT—RF —E—1F ZZFT—MOF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00
ARB®TR AR®FTrt ARBTFT AR®FT AREFTT
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(REZ) (= %) (= %) (T %) (T %)
Revenue U =5 618,833 650,924 667,154 700,996 910,592
(Loss)/profit before tax MRl (B548),
Y Al (232,345) 111,234 122,220 (237,333) 162,145
Income tax (expense) credit  FT15 %1 (B X2) K % (22,150) (39,030) (46,970) 46,822 (53,560)
Net (loss)/profit (EB8),/ A F5E (254,495) 72,204 75,250 (190,511) 108,579
Net (loss)/profit atiributable LA~ A = FE A (&5
fo: 8),/ R AFEE
Owners of the company PiN/NETEZ RSN (258,647) /1,040 68,794 (197,864) 92,524
Non-controlling interests JE1Z IR = 4,152 1,164 6,456 7,353 16,055
(254,495) 72,204 75,250 (190,511) 108,579
Assets and Liabilities LERAERE
31 December
R+t=ZHA=+—8H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E ZE—+tF ZT-RF —T—HF ZT—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'O00
ARB®T AR®FTn ARBTFT AR®FT AREFTT
(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
(REZ) (T %) (T %) (T %) (T %)
Non-current assets JEmEEE 2,172,683 2,275,052 2,441,565 2,492,129 2,054,209
Current assets MEEE 1,176,404 1,312,737 1,389,083 1,385,034 1,414,379
Current liabilities mEBaE (1,145,461) (1,134,800) (1,445,784) (1,601,679) (1,139,464)
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE (115,000) (115,739 (115,362) (152,067) (394,209)
Net assets BEFE 2,088,626 2,337,250 2,269,502 2,123,417 1,034,915

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

The statement of financial position of the Company as at the end of the

Reporting Period is as follows:

Financial Summary (Continued)

Bt 15 82 ()

BB B AR R &

ARARRRERAROPHARRDOT

2018 2017
—E-N#F i
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FT R ARBETF T
ASSETS BE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI ELETRE 259,214 259,214
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U Bt B8 A B) B SRR 951,438 Q42,913
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIES 127 159
1,210,779 1,202,286
LIABILITIES aE
Other payables H ftb J& 7 5RIE 4,125 4,756
Amounts due to Directors BN EERIE 14,547 12,401
Bonds payable FES1E 5 254,916 230,378
273,588 247,535
TOTAL ASSETS LESS TOTAL LIABILITIES HEERBAEE 937,191 954,751
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFEE
Share capial A& Zx 149,577 123,483
Reserves (nofe) w18 (B 22) 787,614 831,268
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 937,191 054,751
Note: Bt 5
Reserves of the Company RATEREE
Share
Share option Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRE BREE Hib % E-g Mt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETRT ARBTIL ARBEFTT AR®TFT
At 1 January 2017 R=—F—+tF—H—H 922,980 = 165,238 (229,821) 858,397
Loss for the year FAEE = = = (27,129) (27,129)
At 31 December 2017 R_FE—+tF+_-_A=+—H 922,980 = 165,238 (256,950) 831,268
Equity-settled share-based payments LA # &5 4% 8 #9 AR 1 1 3K = 2,752 = = 2,752
Loss for the year FAEE — - - [51,624) (51,624)
Placing of shares R BL & 5,218 — — — 5,218
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—N\F+-_A=+—H 928,198 2,752 165,238 (308,574) 787,614
Annual Report 2018 09 —E-N\FER



Group Chart
SEZRE

The following sefs out the corporate siructure of the Group as at 31 TEIRAEER-_Z—NF+_A=+—BEHLZE

December 2018: R
80% 100% 100% 100%
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Power Wealth Group . . . AT
Technology Microfinance Ltd. (BVI) Limited )((:lungyu Diedg':;? Ever l.(l'mverse 'm'z‘gi‘hmmd
(incorporated in the PRC) (incorporgted in the -ompany timi ncorporgrlec 11 fne
ERTEERE British Virbin Islands) (incorporated in HK) British Virgin Islands)
PMERRARAT DEEBEVIERAS AREERLT R
(RhEERRL) (REBBARBEMAY) (REBEMAL) (RARBLFBEMAL)
100%
Power|Wealth
Engineering Limited
(incorporated in HK)
HEIBERAF
(REBFEMARL)
100% 100% 100%
JiﬂngSI.J Xingyu Hold.ings Group Ltd.* VIE Confractual Jiangsu E(iang.yu Jiangsu 'Xiongyu Millian Able
(incorporated in the PRC) Arrangements Port Constructing Water Management Infernational Limited
(Note 1) (Note 2] Project Administration Co. Ltd.” Company Limited* (incorporated in HK)
IHRFEREMERAT o ____. (incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) ESERERAT
(RARBIFEMAR L) AR IHATHERIRERERAF SIHATNBEERLA S
(BRET) BRESOZH (RAFRBIEMRL) (RHREIREMARL)
(F&E2)
51%[ 100% 1100% 100% 100%
Jiangsu Jiaolong Salvage E Jiangsu 'X ;ng')'u i Jiangsu Xingyu Jiangsu Lifu Infrastructure Jian%su');i:'ngy: E[wiron;nent
Harbour Engineering Co. Ltd.* nzlronmen i ro.;;‘on Commerce Co. Ltd.* Construction Co., Ltd.* rg on Eu 'P"::?
(incorporated in the PRC) (inco:m'::'?; i:"tlhe PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) (incorporated in the PRC) (inco:":)E:tIZi i:ntlhe PRC)
THEETERE TRERAR IﬁﬂghﬁFﬁﬁmAﬂ IHBTHBERAA TN ERRRERRERAT Iﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁm“ﬁ
(R EERAYT) [ Reioleil (ReREERA L) (ReREERAY) ’ p an
(AR EIEMARL) (R B
100% 100%
Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
n);l.;::rol;:jr‘ty Protection Industry
inthe PIiC) Development Ltd*
wEmn (incorporated in the PRC)
L) THATRREXRRERAF
(RepEIEMAL)
100%
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home

Building Material Commercial
Management Limited*
(incorporated in the PRC)
HRERZRREEM
BEEEFRAA
(RepEIEMA L)

HiaE -
Notes:

' : : " 1. HEERBALEIRIHEATEMEANBTLHTAA
1. Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou are the registered holders of the registered capital in T B & {7 B 5 A ) 2 5F A S T L B0 ST 25 B S A B

Jiangsu Xingyu, and Ms. Zhou holds all her equity inferest in Jiangsu Xingyu 5B IE -
as frusfee for Mr. Liu. >

2. On 19 April 2011, Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu PRC, Mr. liuv and Ms. Zhou

WL /)

2. RIE——H0OA+TIE IHETFT HFHE- 2%
ERBALXTATEHNREE Bt THBEFERESE

entered into the Contractual Arrangements, pursuant to which all economic il = e i
D ¥ WA EEAERSRAREERTATPE -

benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred
to Xiangyu PRC.
* EtEs

For identification purpose only

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 10 PEIEVAIRIRIZERBIR AR



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FE®E (&)

To Shareholders:

The year 2018 was a fough year. like the past few years, there were
delayed and/or prolonged decision-making process and progress of
certain government projects, which resulied in a slowdown in the
infrastructure, reclamation and environmental profection dredging
projects. Furthermore, fierce horizontal competition imposed immense
pressure over the Group's operation. For the financial year of 2018, the
Group recorded a tofal revenue of approximately RMB618.8 million,
representing a slight decrease of only 4.9% as compared with the fofal
revenue of approximately RMB650.9 million for the financial year 2017.
However, due to provision for expected credit losses by the Group using
the new HKFRS @ “Financial Instruments”, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately RMB254.5 million for the year as compared with a profit
of approximately RMB72.2 million for the financial year 2017

We were affected by the dredging market and the overall
macroeconomic environment in China, and issued a profit waming
earlier. However, we are sfill optimistic about the prospects as we will
benefit from the support under such strategies in mainland China as
"strengthened the construction of an ecological civilisation” and "One
Belt One Road”. Meanwhile, the Group is actively expanding its business
to overseas markets including Southeast Asian markets. In 2018, the
Group had dispatched several large dredgers to Bangladesh, Cambodia
and Thailand to undertake a number of dredging projects. On the other
hand, with continuous advancement of environmental profection business
technology, various large environmental protection dredging projects are
still being followed. In addition, the wind power business is in full swing
in China, and there will be enormous room for other marine business to
expand. The Group will confinue to cultivate our business with utmost
care and participate in wind power construction projects proactively to

lay a solid foundation for subsequent development for the Group.

"Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall”, currently managed by the Group,
has begun bringing income for us. The project will become another
medium to longterm stable source of income to provide stable cash flow
support for the Group's further development of environmental profection

dredging business in future.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 12
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The Group expects that the year 2019 will sill be a challenging year.
We will continue fo implement a conservative approach fo select and
grasp opportunities cautiously. Nevertheless, we sfill face various
difficulties, some of which cannot be addressed in short time fo safisfy all
our shareholders, including expansion of new financing channels. We
will make great efforts to continue to seek feasible fundraising plans and
expects fo redeem our Bonds by the end of the year as scheduled.
Therefore, we hope that the situation will gradually improve, driving our

business back to  the right track in the long run.

As a professional dredging service provider with years of experience and
as a frontrunner with advanced management, strong technical strength, a
large pool of quality clients and an excellent reputation in the industry,
regardless of foughness of challenges, the Group will adhere fo the
traditional dredging business and environmental protection dredging
business, our two principal businesses, stay loyal to our clients fo provide
them with quality service and insist in adopfing robust and prudent

operation sfrafegies.

Liv Kaijin

Chairman and Executive Director

28 March 2019

Annual Report 2018 13
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

EIEE MmN DT



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Overview

The Group is primarily engaged in dredging business, which can be
divided info three main operating and reportable segments, namely, |i)
capital and reclamation dredging business (the “CRD Business”); |ii)
environmental protection dredging and water management business (the
"EPD and Water Management Business”]; and [iii) other works operated
in marine sites such as hoisting wind power equipment, installing major
parts of docks and bridges, as well as laying underwater pipelines and
salvaging [the “Other Marine Business”). In addition, the Group engaged
in property management business (the “Property Management Business”)

in respect of managing Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a slight decrease by
about 4.9% in tofal revenue from approximately RMB650.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB618.8

million.

As regards the CRD Business segment, revenue of approximately
RMB166.0 million was recorded for the Reporting Period, which
decreased by about 41.1% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2017. The decrease in revenue was due fo the slowdown of
the implementation of the construction projects in dredging industry in the
PRC and the implementation of a more robust and prudent policy by the
Group in selecting new projects in recent years by taking info
consideration the confrol of the operational risks and the timely collection

of receivables.

Revenue of approximately RMB115.6 million was recorded for the EPD
and Water Management Business segment, representing a decrease of
about 11.2% from its corresponding segment revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017. The decrease was caused by the undesirable
works progress of certain environmental profection dredging projects as
their actual progresses depended on the collaboration with the local

governments.

Annual Report 2018 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE R W R D (8

There has been a significant improvement for the Other Marine Business,
which contributed revenue of approximately RMB327.5 million fo the
Group, representing a substantial increase of 40.8% as compared with
approximately RMB232.6 million in the corresponding period of 2017
The increase primarily resulted from our Group's confinuous focusing on

the wind power field.

Revenue for the Property Management Business segment for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMBQ.8 million, which increased by about
49.5% from RMB6.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
Notwithstanding an income growth for such business, it could only bring
a slight profit to the Group for the time being as it was sfill at the

development sfage.

Operating Cost and Gross Profit

The Group's operating cost increased from approximately RMB443.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB4%7 .1

of about 12.1%. The increase was primarily caused by a corresponding

million during the Reporting Period, representing an increase

rise in operating cost for the newly devised wind power projects of the
Other Marine Business as well as diminished revenue for the CRD
Business brought about by adopting a prudent operation sfrategy during
the Reporting Period. Nonetheless, substantial cosfs such as depreciation
of assets and maintenance of equipment did not change proportionately,
which led to a decrease in gross profit margin. Such increase was
collectively influenced by these two factors.

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB121.7 million
during the Reporting Pericd, representing a decrease of about 41.3% as
compared with approximately RMB207.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. Gross profit margin significantly dropped from 31.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 19.7% for the Reporting
Period. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to the insufficient
utilisation of production capacity of fleet and equipment resulting from the
adoption of a more prudent operating strategy by the Group and also
the decrease in the proportion of the CRD business and the EPD business,
which have a higher gross profit margin, during the Reporting Period.

According to expected credit loss model under HKFRS @ “Financial
Instruments”, the allowance for expected credit losses on the frade
receivables should be recognised as expenses of relevant dredging
segments resulting in the losses recorded for the segment results. In order
to make reasonable comparisons between the 2017 and 2018 segment
performance, the calculation of the following segment profit margin has

not yet considered the impairment of the expected credit losses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gross profit margin for the CRD Business segment decreased from about
33.3% for the year ended 31 December 2017 1o about 21.5% for the
Reporting Period. Such decrease was primarily due to a drop in revenue
for the CRD Business brought about by adoptfing a prudent operation
strafegy, while subsfantial costs such as depreciation of assefs and

maintenance of equipment did not change proportionately.

Gross profit margin for the EPD and Water Management Business
segment stood at about 28.9% for the Reporting Period, which
approximated the gross profit margin of about 29.1% for the year ended
31 December 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin for the Group's Other
Marine Business segment decreased from 16.2% for the year ended 31
December 2017 to about 13.3% for the Reporting Period. Such
decrease resulted from the increase in relatively higher up-ront investment
of the newly commenced projects of the Other Marine Business during

the year.

Other Income

Other income decreased by about 70.4% to approximately RMB5.3
million during the Reporting Period as compared with the year ended 31
December 2017, primarily caused by the decrease in interest income
from cerfain non-current trade receivables and government financial

incentive during the Reporting Period.

Expected Credit Loss Allowance

As a further prudent measure in managing the frade receivables and the
confract assets, the allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and the confract assets of about RMB243.2 million about
RMB2.9 million respectively, in total amount of RMB246. 1
recognised for the Reporting Period [2017: nil). Such allowance for

million, were

expected credit losses was made based on the assessment in
recoverability of such receivables in the future by the management after
considering the “expected credit loss model” under the newly adopted
HKFRS @ “Financial Instruments”.

Marketing and Promotion Expenses

Marketing and promotion expenses for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB11.5 million, representing an increase of about
38.9% as compared with approximately RMB8.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, which was mainly affributable to the
increase in expenses relafing to actively exploring the overseas markets
and early entry info new businesses including wind power field.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB52.1 million, representing a decrease of about 6.0%
from RMB55.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. This was

primarily due fo the reduction of management expenses by the Group.

Foreign Exchange Difference

Due fo the fluctuation in the foreign exchange rate during the Reporting
Period, part of the Group's bank borrowings and bank deposits were
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The foreign
exchange loss of approximately RMB14.7 million was recognised in the
Reporting Period (31 December 2017 gain of approximately RMB18.7

million).

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately
RMB52.5 million, representing a significant decrease of about 25.7%
from RMB70.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased from approximately RMB39.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB22.2 million
for the Reporting Period.

Loss for the Year

Influenced by the above factors as a whole, the net loss for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB254.5 million as compared with a net
profit of approximately RMB72.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Loss Per Share

loss per share for the Reporting Period was RMBO.185 per share as
compared fo eamings per share of RMBO0.048 per share in the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Financial Management Policies

The Group in ifs ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as currency risk and inferest rate risk. The Group's risk management
strategy aims to mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial

performance in full measure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As most of the Croup's trading fransactions, monetary assefs and
liabilities are denominated mainly in Renminbi, which is the Group's
functional and reporting currency, and save for the Bonds and certain
bank borrowings and deposits denominated in United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars, the foreign exchange loss recognised during the
Reporting Period was approximately RMB14.7 million (31 December
2017: gain of approximately RMB18.7 million). The Group is giving full

affention to respond fo the related foreign exchange rafe risks.

As current interest rafes stay at relatively low levels, the Group has not
entered info any interest rate hedging confracts or any other interest rafe
related derivative financial instruments. Nonetheless, the Group will

continue to closely monitor its related inferest rate exposure.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018, the total equity of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB2,088.6 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB2,337.3 million). The decrease in total equity was mainly
affributable to the recognition of the expected credit loss allowance for

the Reporting Period.

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2018 amounted fo
approximately RMB30.9 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB177.9 million). The current rafio, which is calculated by dividing
current assets by current liabilities, was 1.03 as at 31 December 2017 (31

December 2017: 1.16).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts prudent cash and financial management policies. In
order fo achieve better cost control and reduce capital cost, the Group's
treasury activities are centralised and cash is generally deposited with
banks and denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

Included in current assets were cash and various bank deposits which
was about RMB48.4 million in total as at 31 December 2018,
representing a decrease by about 30.3% as compared with that of
approximately RMB69Q.5 million as at 31 December 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the Company received the gross proceeds
of about HK$35.5 million [equivalent to about RMB31.3 million) in

respect of the issue of the new Shares.

The Group's trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 amounted fo
approximately RMB1,035.7 million (2017 approximately RMB1,222 .4
million), representing a decrease by 15.3% for the corresponding period

of the preceding year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2018, total liabilities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,260.5 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,250.5
million). The Group's gearing ratio (calculated by interest bearing
instruments (including bank borrowings, other borowings and bonds
payable) divided by total equity) slightly increased to 32.0% (2017:
28.5%).

Capital Structure of the Group

Capifal sfructure of the Group consists of debts, which include amounts
due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other
borrowings and bonds payable and equity reserves attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The Directors review the capital sfructure on a semi-annual basis. As part
of this review, the Direcfors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and share buybacks as well as the issue of new debis

or the redemption of exisfing debis.

The Group's monetary assets, liabilities and fransactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. During the Reporting
Period, most transactions were denominated and settled in Renminbi. The
Group recorded a net exchange loss amounting to RMB14.7 million

during the Reporting Period.

Charge over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings were secured
by charges over certain dredgers and land owned by the Group, a
property owned by a company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial inferest
and personal guarantees by Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou. There were also
infragroup  charges  between two of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiaries as a result of the contractual arrangements, pursuant fo which
all economic benefits and risks arising from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu

have been transferred fo Xiangyu PRC.

The Group pledged over a dredger, an industrial premise located in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and a residential property located in Shandong
Province, the PRC in favour of the Bondholder and/or its aoffiliates. For
more defails, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 15
November 2016 and 5 June 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material investments in or material acquisitions or

disposals of subsidiaries during the current year.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB67.2 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB72.8 million), which mainly included the construction cost of the

hotel.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2016: nil).

Business Review

The Group recorded an operafing revenue of approximately RMB618.8
million and gross profit of approximately RMB121.7 million, representing
a decrease of 4.9% and 41.3% respectively for the cormresponding
period of the preceding year. The decrease in operafing revenue
primarily resulted from the slowdown of the implementation of the
consfruction projects in dredging industry in the PRC and the
implementation of a more robust and prudent policy by the Group in
selecting new projects in recent years by faking into consideration the
control of the operational risks and the collection of receivables on time.
Despite a drop in revenue, subsfantial costs such as depreciation of
assefs and maintenance of equipment did not change proportionately,

which led to a decrease in gross profit.

The CRD Business is a core business of the Group. The Group has
undertaken and commenced new projects during the Reporting Period,
including the dispatch several large dredgers to Bangladesh, Cambodia
and Thailand to undertake a number of dredging projects. The decreased
revenue generated by such business segment was atfributable to greater
variations in the volatility of new project construction conditions and the
great uncertainty in collection of receivables in the industry. The Group
adopts a robust and prudent operating strategy, reflected by a better
understanding of the background and a more detailed and thorough due
diligence review of proposed new confracted construction projects, to
ensure an effective control of various possible operational risks as well as

the collection of receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group develops and expands the EPD and Water Management
Business segment proactively. The Group recorded a decrease in revenue
during the Reporting Period, which was attributable to the slow progress

in implementing certain environmental protection dredging projects.

Other Marine Business includes installing marine wind power equipment,
hoisting major parts of docks and bridges, laying underwater pipelines
and other works services. With the development of the global economy,
wind power (being a clean and renewable energy] market also
developed rapidly. Currently, there is great enthusiasm fo build marine
wind power constructions in mainland China. The Group confinues fo

refrofit certain vessels to capture more business opportunities.

Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall, located in the administrative centre
of Yandu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the core
area of Yancheng National Hightech Industrial Development Zone with
a gross floor area of 75,600 square mefres, is mainly used for leasing
under the Property Management Business. The shopping mall was
positioned as a largescale shopping center with domestic construction
materials as its theme, offering onestop services from fumniture,
housewares to decoration materials to customers. As for now, there are
about 100 tenants in Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall which include
renowned houseware brands such as Steelland, Cheers, M&Z Fumiture,
Landbond Minim and Telonang. The Group expects to gain popularity,
raise brand influence and receive longterm and stable rental income
through adopting the “Easyhome Yancheng” brand and its operational
model, fo provide stable cash flow support for the Group's further

development of environmental protection business.

In addition to the operation and lease of shopping malls, the Group also
commenced the consfruction of a 17-storey hotel with 200 guest rooms
located at the west of Caihong Road, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province in
the year of 2016, with a gross floor area of 20,000 square metres. The
related construction work of the hotel is sill progressing and is expected
fo be completed by 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Event after End of Reporting Period

On 15 March 2019, the Company and the Bondholder entered info a
sixth amendment agreement and supplemental deed to the original deed
poll ("the Sixth Amendment Agreement’] fo further amend the terms and
condifions of the Bonds. Under the Sixth Amendment Agreement, the
principal amount of the Bonds shall be amended to about HK$290.0
million and the maturity date of the Bonds shall be extended to 20
December 2019 with inferest rate of 13% per annum. Assuming that
there have been no previous redemption of outstanding Bonds, the
redemption amount on the 20 December 2019 shall be about
HK$319.5 million. For more details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dafed 15 March 2019.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The sustained development of our business leverages on the ongoing
confributions by our employees. The Board considers employees the
Group's most valuable wealth and is committed fo improving their growth
environment, providing them competitive remuneration packages and
safeguarding their health and sofety. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had 567 (2017: 629) employees. The total staff cost for the
Reporting Period was about RMB58.6 million (2017: RMB50.0 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is basically determined by the Directors
based on the performance of individual employees and market
conditions. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses, employee
benefits include pension contributions and options which may be granted
under share option scheme (under which opfions to subscribe for Shares
that could be granted to independent non-executive Directors would be
subject fo the applicable conditions and independence restrictions as set

out in the Listing Rules).

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any strikes,
work stoppages or significant labour disputes which affected its
operafions in the past and it did not experience any significant difficulties
in recruiting and refaining qualified staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Outlook

Looking into the year of 2019, the Group will carry on with its efforts to
enhance the effectiveness of its dredging business and expects fo bring
reasonable retumns fo the Group's shareholders through obtaining more
works contracts in mainland China by virtue of our rich construction
experience on dredging projects. In addition, with the support under the
"One Belt One Road” strategy, the Group has commenced several
overseas projects and will continue to expand more overseas markets

including Southeast Asian markets.

For capital operation, based on the progress of its substantial consfruction
projects, the Group will actively identify and materialise healthy and
feasible financial plans, thus strengthening the flexibility of capital
resources and enhancing the capital structure of the Group, so as fo
satisfy, support and meet the Group's business development. Meanwhile,
the Company will continue fo seek opportunities to raise addifional funds
fo redeem the relevant Bonds. When there is any material development
made, the Company will timely inform the Shareholders and potential

investors.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kadijin, aged 58, the founder of the Group, was appointed as
a Director on 31 May 2010, was re-designed from a Direcfor to an
executive Direcfor on 24 May 2011, was re-designed from a joint
chairman to the chairman of the Board of the Group on 23 September
2016 and was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
on 8 March 2019. He was the chief executive officer of the Company
for the period from 24 May 2011 to 5 January 2017. Mr. liu is the
spouse of Ms. Zhou, an executive Direcfor.

Mr. liu completed his secondary education in 1977. In 2003, Mr. Liu
obtained a certificate as a senior construction engineer from the Human
Resources Bureau of Yancheng City* (E&3# 1 AZEF). As his experience
and knowledge in the PRC dredging business grew, Mr. Liu established
Jiangsu Xingyu in 2007. Mr. Liu has been working in the dredging
industry of the PRC for over 20 years.

M:r. Liu was a member of the /th session of the committee of the Chinese

People's Political Consultative Conference of Yancheng City, Jiangsu

Province™ (FEIARBUAHE @R IHEENTELEZESEZE)

Mr. liv is the chairman of Jiangsu Xingyu and Huaian Shi Xiangyu
Technology Microfinance Ud.* (EZHHFRF/NEERBRAR)
and the chairman and general manager of Xiangyu PRC, Jiangsu Xiangyu
Water Management Company limited*  (TERFPFKIEER AR,
Xiangyu Environment Protection, Jiangsu Fengyu Property Development
Co., lid* (TERZFEZEHFR AT, Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce Co. Lid.*
[TEREFEBEHER AR, Jiangsu Llifu Infrastructure Construction Co.,
Ud.* (L& N = EMRZREERBR AR, Jiangsu Xiangyu Environmental
Protection Industry Development ld. * (TEFATFIRIREZZERERAF)
["Xiangyu Environmental Profection Industry”) and Jiangsu Xingyu
Environment Protection Company Limited* (T #EFHRIRRBR AT
and has been responsible for overseeing their daily operations and
planning their business strategies. Other than the above mentioned
companies, Mr. Liu is the director of Power Wealth Group (BVI) Limited,
Xiangyu Dredging Company Limited, Ever Universe Holdings Llimited,
Power Wealth Engineering Limited and Million Able Infernational Limited.

He is also a director of Wangji Limited, being a substantial shareholder.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for details of his discloseable

inferests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wu Bin, aged 50, has been appointed as a vice chairman of the
Board and an executive Director on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu obtained tertiary education qualification. He is the chairman of
Jiangsu Yuangi Property Development Co., lid* ((TE#fRIEE ZE AR A7)

and has many years of experience in investment management.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for details of his discloseable

inferests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.

Mr. Wu Xuze, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 5 January 2017.

Mr. Wu graduated from the Party School of Jiangsu Committee of the
Communist Party of China* (fp#T#& ZE ) and obtained fertiary
education qualification in economic management. Mr. Wu has invested
in and managed various companies in the PRC and has acted as
chairman, general manager and director of those companies. He has

over 10 years of experience in investment management.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of his discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.

Ms. Zhou Shuhua, aged 56, was appointed as a Director on 18
August 2010, and was re-designed as an executive Director on 24 May
2011. Ms. Zhou is mainly responsible for general administrative work of
our Group. She is the spouse of Mr. Liu, the chairman of the Board and

an executive Director.

Ms. Zhou graduated from The Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China* (A &
R ER KIFERR), the PRC in December 1999 and obtained a
graduation  certificate for undergraduate courses in  administrative
management. She also obtained a graduation certificate for
undergraduate courses in broadcasting in May 2001 from Nanjing
Normal University* (7 5 A &8 A Z2), the PRC.

Ms. Zhou acts as a Director for Jiangsu Xingyu, Xiangyu Environment
Protection, Xiangyu Environmental Protection Industry and Jiangsu

Jiaolong.

Please refer to the "Directors’ Report” for defails of her discloseable

interests in the Company under the provisions of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huan Xuedong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-execufive Director on 25 April 2012. He is also the member of the

Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Huan graduated from the Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (Fr &
PRERKIFEERT), the PRC with a graduation certificate for
undergraduate courses in party administration. He also completed his

postgraduate studies in Applied Sociology in Nanjing University (F R A
g).

Mr. Huan has served as the Head of Bureau of Township Enterprises of
Yan Cheng City* (B M43 /E) ond the Head of Bureau of
Woater Management of Yan Cheng City* (B8 7K F)/3). Currently, Mr.
Huan is the chairman of the Agricu|furo| and Water Enterprises
Association of Yan Cheng City* (B i1 2k 21 ).

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 30 November 2012. He is a
member of the Remuneration Commitiee and the Nomination Committee
and the chairman of Audit committee.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales, Australia
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer
Information Systems. Mr. Chan is both a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants,
Australia. He has extensive working experience in accounting, investment
and corporate finance. Mr. Chan worked in an international accounting
firm for about five years and currently, he is an invesiment manager of

Sprint Asset Management Limited.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Hao Tin
Development Group Llimited [stock code: 474), Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747), Up Energy Development
Group Limited (stock code: 307) [note) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Lid (stock
code: 1353), whose securities are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, and of Changhong Jichua Holdings Limited (stock code:
8016), whose securities are listed on the growth enterprise market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan acted as an independent non-executive
director of Far East Holdings Infernational limited (stock code: 36) from
14 November 2014 to 18 July 2017, whose securities are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, and of L&A International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8195) for the period from 25 September 2014 to 3
March 2017 and Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056)
for the period from 14 July 2016 to 12 December 2018, whose
securifies are listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange.

Note:  The appointment of Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan as an independent non-
executive director of Up Energy Development Group Llimited (stock code:
307) is under dispute. For defails, please refer to such company's relevant

announcements.

Mr. Liang Zequan, aged 50, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
the chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committiee on 23 September 2016.

Mr. liang has been the chairman, secrefary of the Communist Party’s
committee and the general manager of Chengnan Branch of Jiangsu
Renhe Zhongheng Consulling Group* (T &R(— AR EEAER). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Gaohe Intelligent
Equipment Co., lid. (stock code: 831787), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He held various positions including the
chairman, secrefary of the Communist Parly’s general sub-division
committee and general manager of Chengnan Branch of Jiangsu Renhe
Zhongheng Engineering Consulting Real Estate Valuation Co., lid* ([T &k
CARPETIRFAFEHEGEBR AR, the chairman of Jiangsu Renhe
Zhongheng CPA Llimited* [I#R{CARFEEHRIEHEAAR AT, the
chairman of Yancheng Renhe Capital Consfruction Investment Valuation
Co., ld* (BEECREARNZRIKEMBEBAERAF) and the vice
chairman of Yancheng Zhengdao CPA limited* (B3 IF 38 & &t E0 =75
FrEMRAR]). Mr. liang groduated from Yancheng Institute of Technology
and obtained the Industrial and Civil Building Engineering professional
qualification. He is a PRC principal senior economist with the
qualifications of PRC certified engineer, asset appraiser and real esfate
appraiser.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. liang currently serves as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Province Redl
Estate Appraisers and Agents Association* (T k& =2 (4 8 R4S 42 17
&), an expert of Jiangsu Cost Advisory Expert Committee* ([T #x4& (8
HBHEREZEE) an executive director of Registered Accountants
Association of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* [T & & Bk st it
M%), a special auditor of Audit Bureau of Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province™ (JL#+& B Mzt /), the vice chairman of Junior Chamber
of Commerce of Tingfu Disfrict, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (iT %%
BERTEHESFEE), o representative of the 7th Congress of the
Communist Party of China of Tingfu District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province* [fh H)T#k & B T = iR L JE B R), the vice chairman of
Association of Forensic Sciences of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* (i
BHREEW M AAETHE) and the vice chairman of Federation of
Industry and Commerce of Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province* [T #x% E&
W TRl ).

Senior Management

Mr. Xu Wenyue, aged 47, joined the Group in Ocfober 2011 and
is the chief financial officer of the Company. He is the head of
accounting department of the Group and is responsible for overseeing
the daily accounting and financial matters of the Group, both in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Mr. Xu graduated from the profession of accounting of Nanjing Economic
Institute™ (Fg R&SEERPT) in 1999, Mr. Xu is a senior accountant in the
PRC (FElZ 4k &5tEM) and both a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (FREIsT €567 €) ond the China
Cerfified Tax Agents Association (A BIzEM##5EM17€). Prior fo joining
the Group, Mr. Xu worked in a listed group in Hong Kong as a financial

controller.

Ms. Ding Jiying (T# %% t), oged 44, joined the Group in
December 2011 as the internal control officer. She is responsible for

overseeing the internal control matters of the Group.

Ms. Ding passed the examinations of the PRC Accountant Examination
(Intermediate level)* (2BHRHE:HAIE ) and Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics* (FEREIE&EAE) in 2000 and 2007,
respectively, and awarded with the Bachelor of Management. She is
qualified as a PRC Certified Accountant* (2 Bz €A and China
Real Estate Appraisers* (2Bl 33 it 5 it 2= & B RD).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

EERSREEE[BN (8

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Ding has about 15 years' experience in accounting, financial and
intfernal control aspects. Prior fo joining the Group, she has worked in
certain sizeable enterprises as financial manager and also worked in the
auditing and business consulting division of a PRC accounting firm,
mainly responsible for internal control review engagements.

Mr. Yang Xianbo (%K %4%), aged 54, joined the Group as
general manager of Jiangsu Xingyu in November 2012 and is
responsible for overseeing the Group's dredging operations.

Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in the dredging industry.
Mr. Yang has been responsible for the development, implementation and
management of a number of nafional key dredging projects and he is
highly renowned in the dredging industry. Prior fo joining Jiangsu Xingyu,
Mr. Yang was appointed as the deputy director of Changjiang Wuhan
Woaterway Engineering Company*  (RIIHZMEBTLEBEIBE), o
sizeable state-owned dredging enterprise under the Ministry of Transport (32
BIEHEL). He was awarded with the Certificate of Senior Engineer in
(B TRESMIEA) by the Ministry of
Communication (3238%8) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (323
iE#5E0)) in 2006 and the Certificate of Registration of Constructor of First
Class* [—#R23&Em) by the Ministry of Construction (3% #f) in 2008.

waterways engineering™®

Mr. Wang Julin (£ 5%4E), aged 67, joined the Group as the
chief engineer in August 2010, and is responsible for the management
of the engineering department of Jiangsu Xingyu. Mr. Wang studied the
profession of ports and waterways at Hohai University (A8 A Z3) of the
PRC (formerly known as East China Technical University of Water
Resources [EEER/KFIERR)) from 1974 to 1978. He was awarded the
Certificate of Senior Engineer in waterways engineering by the Ministry
of Communications (33@#b) (now known as the Ministry of Transport (32
BEH L) in 1998 and was awarded the Certificate of Registration of
Constructor of First Class by the Ministry of Construction (Ez%3F) in
2008.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the implementation,
management and administration of waterways engineering. Before
joining the Group, he worked for the engineering department of
Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (KT H /ZMiE
T#2E) for about 15 years and has held the positions of officer and
project manager. He has been responsible for sizeable dredging projects
in the PRC. Thereafter, Mr. Wang worked in a subsidiary under
Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company* (K)TH ZMiE
THR) as a manager for about three years. In 1996, Mr. Wang re-
joined Changjiang Wuhan Waterway Engineering Company for about
eight years and has held the positions of deputy chief and chief of the
engineering and business depariment and deputy chief engineer (consfructor
of first class). He has been responsible for the inspection, negotiation and
overseeing of various projects and entering into of relevant contracts.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for the
Review Period. This report describes how the Group has applied its
corporate governance practices fo its daily activifies.

Corporate Governance Code

The Group's corporate governance framework bases on two main
beliefs:

e We are well-committed fo maintaining good corporate governance

practices and procedures; and

e We recognise the need to adopt practices that improve ourselves
continuously for a quality management.

The Group has applied these principles and adopted all code provisions,
where applicable, of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as our own code of corporate governance. The Directors
consider that the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company's code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In
response fo specific enquiry made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities fransactions by the

Directors throughout the Review Period.

Constitutional Documents

No amendment to the memorandum and articles of association of the

Company was made during the Review Period.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Direcfors and three independent non-executive Direcfors.

Composition of the Board and its changes during the Review Period and

up to date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
M. Liv Kaijin

Mr. Wu Bin

Mr. Wu Xuze

Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. liu longhua [resigned on 8 March 2019

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Huan Xuedong

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

M. liang Zequan

The biographical details of the incumbent Directors and the relationships
among them are set ouf in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior

Management's Profile” of this annual report.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of executive
Directors and non-executive Directors (including  independent non-
execufive Directors) and there is an independent element on the Board,
which can effectively exercise independent judgement. As at 31
December 2018, the Company has three independent non-executive
Directors who provide the Group with adequate check and balance.
Each of them is considered to be independent and has complied with the
provisions set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All of them are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names
of the Directors. Their funcfions are not only limited fo a restricted scope
and they have contributed fo the Group with diversified industry expertise,

and advised on the Group’s management and proceedings.
Onre of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan

Ming Sun Jonathan, has professional qualifications in accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group's
overall sfrategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluation of
its performance, overseeing the management and in charge of corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group's

affairs.

The Board delegates day-fo-day operations of the Group to executive
Direcfors and senior management while reserving cerfain key matters for
its approval. Board committees for specific functions are also set up fo
ensure efficient Board operations. The respective functions and
responsibilities reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board

commiftees have been clearly sef out in their respective terms of reference.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through

execufive Directors who have aftended the Board meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
of the Company including:

la)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporote governance;

[b)  to review and monitor the fraining and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

[c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and pracfices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

[d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual [if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

le)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.
During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the compliance with the

CG Code and the disclosure in this corporate governance report and the

training and continuous professional development of the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated
and are held by Mr. Liv Kaijin and Mr. Wu Xuze respectively. Mr. Liu
Kaijin, being the chairman, is responsible for the management of the
Board and Mr. Wu Xuze, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

businesses.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a Director's service
contract with the Company. The lefters of appointment of non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors also set out the specific
terms and conditions relative to their respective appointment. Al
remuneration paid fo executive Direcfors are covered by respective
service confracts, and all remuneration paid to non-executive Directors
lincluding independent non-executive Directors) are covered by respective
letters of appointment. Details of the terms of appointment of the Directors
are disclosed in the section “Director’s Service Confracts” of the Direcfors’

Report in this annual report.

Pursuant to the Arficles, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant fo the Articles, at each
annual general meeting, one+hird of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
fo but not less than one-third) shall refire from office by rotation, provided
that every Direcfor (including the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors) shall be subject to retirement by rofation af least

once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for executive
Directors regularly and  holding Board meetfings that included both
execufive Direcfors and non-executive Directors af least four times every
year. The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-evel
decision on a particular matter is required.

Generally, at least 14-days’ notice for the Company's regular Board
meeting, and reasonable time for all other meefings, would be given
prior fo such meetings. Agenda for a meeting are sent fo all Directors
prior fo the meefing. The Directors will receive details of agenda items for

decision at least three days before regular Board meetings.

The Directors consider and approve the Company's matters by way of
written resolutions circulated to them as and when necessary. If a Director
has a material interest in a matter fo be considered by the Board, a
physical meefing will be held to discuss the matter instead of seeking

Direcfors’ written consent by way of circulation of written resolution.

In order to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed, all Directors are able to access the Company's
company secretary for advice from fime fo time. Moreover, upon
reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense. All Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the

agenda of meetings for discussion.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave sufficient time
and affention o the affairs of the Group during the Review Period. During
the Review Pericd, six Board meetings (excluding delegated committees’
meetings) were held and attendance of each Direcfor is set out as

follows:

EESw@m

EEE n?:% (%)

REREEFENANENRE ROBESM MAEES
ERAEENEERAXRDNKERE ] - N EE
HE CDRTAREFEER(TEREREZESS
#)BRESNHEBREINMOT

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
Name of Director attendance of office
ERBRET
EEnR HE R WEBRH
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Kaijin 2B Sk £ 6 6
Mr. Wu Bin 03 5 & 6 6
Mr. Wu Xuze RBZEESE 6 6
Ms. Zhou Shuhua EREE 22+ 6 6
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. liu longhua ZIREELRE
[resigned on 8 March 2019) (R=Z—hE=ABN\BEE) 5 6
Independent non-executive Directors BUIFHTEE
Mr. Huan Xuedong BREBRELE 6 6
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 8% 48 5 A4 5 6
Mr. liang Zequan RERFHE 6 6

Minutes of Board meefings and meefings of Board committees are kept
by the company secretary or other duly authorised person. All minutes are
open for inspection by any Director on reasonable notice. Such minutes
are recorded in sufficient defail of the matters considered and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent fo

all Directors for their comments and records.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ Training

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, fo ensure

compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance

practices.

During the Review Period, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities summarised as follows:

Name of Director

_m"“?A$E¢%%ﬂ

EES@m

EEEI

EREERAERI - AABRTHRERRHY
*ﬁ%@imﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ’mﬂ)ﬂE**%E;EZE&%E?"J%&M
NHEREFETZSHRINRRESHEHYREILCEERT
B2 R -

REBESME MEEEHE2EGELRBEEERR
EE BT

Reading materials and/or
attending training courses
relevant to the Company’s
business, to their duties and
responsibilities and/or to
corporate governance or
regulation

B WA R R
HEZIREREER
EARER RENBBR

EEHER BER REEERAIRTE
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Liv Kaijin 2R 4 4
Mr. Wu Bin 3 5% 4 v
Mr. Wu Xuze RIBZE K E 7
Ms. Zhou Shuhua JEREE &2+ v
Non-executive Director: FHTEE
M:r. Liu longhua ZIREE L

[resigned on 8 March 2019) (R=ZT—NhF=A/\HEFE) v
Independent non-executive Direciors: BUIFHTEF :
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE 4
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR £ 4% 5t A4 v
Mr. liang Zequan RERFHE v

Orientation is provided to newly appointed Directors upon their

appointments. Each of them will receive a director's
Company which contains a package of orientation
operations and businesses of the Group, together
relating fo the duties and responsibilities of directors
Rules and statutory regulations.

manual from the
materials on the
with  information
under the listing
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with specific terms of
reference with appropriate modification when necessary, which sfate
clearly its authority and duties. To make consistency of the Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference with such terms of reference of other
Board committees, the Board adopted the current terms of reference of

the Remuneration Committee in January 2019.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference fo corporate goals and obijectives

resolved by the Board from time fo time.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration Committee conducted review
of the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and senior
management which took into account the prevailing market condition and
the responsibilities and performance of individual members. No change
fo the terms was proposed fo the Board by the Remuneration Committee.
Further, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board on the ferms of service contracts (including remuneration packages)
for the executive Directors and the grant of share options to the executive

Direcfors during the Review Period.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the Review Period is

set out below:

In the band of

EEZ8T

FMEES

ARARERIZFHME B & - I FIE HFE & 5B % E
(BERELEZENR)  FREIBEBEIBEE - B
EHFHEZEgnNRBEGEREGEESZEINBE
HEOH-—HE EFEEFER_T-NF-AKAKARED
FMEZEeREaE -

FHMEZR eI ERECEIAEBREERSNEE
EN2RBFMBEELARABRESTSREES  ER
EEETRMAINEESHLEEMEREBATE
EREREEBNTEHMTE -

CIEHME FHEZESUEERSREEE N H K
RRRBELRT X KRBT RERKE B
BERRA -FMEESUBANEESIEZCRABIK
Ketsh FHEZEEROBEMERNTEEZRE
BHRR(BRFMEE) RRIBEETATESRR
ExgFLEES -

BREBEAEERTANTARXBIS SREEEAR
REBEREZGMEEHIWT

Number of individuals

& E EE A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 4
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Board Committees (Continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRS (B

EEZES @)

Remuneration Committee (Continued) YMEE S @

As at 31 December 2018, a majority of

members are independent non-execufive

the Remuneration Committee’s RZE—N\F+_A=Z+—H HFHZEEWNBLAZ
Directors. During the Review HHERBIUIFATES - NEEHM BRTRR

Period, two committee meefings were held and the attendance of each ZEeen BREBLEFLHAEZNBEIEHIMT

member as fo the said meetings is set out as follows:

Number of
meetings held
Number of  during term

Name of Director attendance of office
R RET
EENE HERE WEBXH™
Non-executive Director: FHEHITESE -
M:r. Liu longhua ZIREE L
[resigned on 8 March 2019) (R=ZZE-NF=RNBEE) 2 2
Independent Non-executive Direciors: BUIFHTEF :
Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE
[appointed on 8 March 2019) (R=ZZE—NF=AN\HEZF) N/A i B N/A TE A
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan B 88 24 o A 1 2
Mr. liang Zequan® RBREET 2 2
M. liang Zequan acted as the chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee. topms L EIEIE TEo

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination ¢

reference with appropriate modification

REZEE®
ommittee with specific terms of ARARBRVUIREZEG WHEHEOBEEH
when necessary, which sfate (WEHELBEENR) EREPEBENEBE - &

clearly its authority and duties. To keep the Nomination Committee’s FREAZEeNRESESS TR EHEESRES

terms of reference in line with the Listing
director nomination policy, the Board

reference of the Nomination Committee in

Rules amendments relating to BEZE B2 R 22— NF—ARAREYN
adopted the current terms of RETEOHERHR-
January 2019

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the BAZEeNTERELERTEETSMNEE 20

size, structure and composition of the
qualified to become Board members, m

Board on the appointment or reappointm

Board, identifying individuals LUK MEAERAIETESNAL REENE
aking recommendations fo the TREFEZERETAENEETSELEBRE - U
enf and succession planning of R B IFNITEEN B -

Directors, and assessing the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Confinued)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of the
Board members. The following measurable objectives [the “Measurable
Obijectives”) for the purpose of implementation of the board diversity
policy are adopted:

(a)  atf least 40% of the members of the Board shall be non-executive
directors or independent non-executive directors;

(o)  at least 65% of the members of the Board shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

[c)  at least 30% of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(d)  af least 75% of the members of the Board shall have more than
seven years of experience in the indusiry he is specialised in; and

le)  atleast 50% of the members of the Board shall have China-related
work experience.

Under the director nomination policy of the Company in force with effect
from 1 January 2019, when making recommendations fo the Board
relating fo the appointment or re-appointment of proposed Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall take into the following factors:

la)  character and integrity of the proposed Direcfors;

[b)  qualifications including skills, knowledge, experience, and
professional expertise possessed by the proposed Directors that are
relevant to the operations of the Group;

[c)  the proposed Directors” willingness fo devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and the Board
committees;

[d)  diversity in all aspects, including buf not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualification,
skills, knowledge and experience;

le)  requirements of the proposed Directors’ independence set out in
rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules for nominating an independent non-

executive Direcfor; and

[l any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Commitiee has reviewed the size and composition of the
Board and the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
also made recommendations to the Board in relation to the re-
appointment of the refiring Direcfors for the Review Period. The
Measurable Obijectives set out above for the purpose of implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy are achieved.

During the Review Period, one committee meefing was held and the
attendance of each member as to the said meetings is set out as follows:

TRERHRE (B

EEZES @)

RBEZEES @

CIEHME REZEGC BRI ESSNRE RARK A
RBNUERTEENB UL INEHETREES
MEEFFEHEBREE ARFCERARZEE=ZS
LB LA ERE -

REBESME S8BT -RZEegd SXEHFL
REZABEREIMT

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term
Name of Director attendance of office
ERBERET
EEnR HRE R WEBRHE
Executive Director: HITEE:
Mr. Liv Kaijin* ZIFER LT
[appointed on 8 March 2019) (RZZT-—hF=ANBEZEE) N/A TEH N/A i
Non-executive Director: FHITEE
Mr. liv longhua* e o
[resigned on 8 March 2019) (R=ZZE—-hF=ANBEMT) | 1
Independent Non-executive Direciors: BUIFHTESF :
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 28 48 55 4 1 1
M:r. liang Zequan RERFHE 1 1
M Liu longhua acted as the chairman of the Nomination Committee unfil 8 toms kLIRS EEe I EEE S AE= AN

March 2019. Following the resignation of Mr. Liu longhua, Mr. Liu Kaijin was

appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 March 2019.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with specific written
terms of reference that have included the duties which are sef out in CG
Code provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification when necessary. To
keep the Audit Committee’s terms of reference in line with the Listing Rules
amendments, the Board adopted the current terms of reference of the
Audit Committee in January 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
maintenance of proper relationship with the Company’s auditor, the
esfablishment of proper review and confrol arrangements relating o
infernal control and risk management systems, financial reporting and the

compliance to applicable reporting requirements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 and consolidated financial
statements for the Review Period of the Group, including the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, the continuing connected
transactions of the Company, infernal confrol systems and financial
reporting matters (in conjunction with the external auditor for the annual
results). The Audit Commitlee also monitors the effectiveness of the
external audit and oversees the appointment, remuneration and ferms of
engagement of the Company’s extemal auditors, as well as their
independence. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting freatments
adopted by the Company and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in this annual report comply
with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Commitiee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors and regular Audit Committee
meetings were held pursuant fo its ferms of reference. During the Review
Period, three commitiee meetfings were held in the attendance of the
external auditor, and the attendance of each member as to the said

meetings is set out as follows:

EEZES @

EREES®Wm

ERZBEEMI2RE LB MR EARQF XA
MBROBAE RAABEZEREREESE WK
BERETEAREREFLEE RS REERTHE-

ERZESERMNARBBE_T-N\FRA=1TH
EREANGEMBEREROBESEOES B R
X BRAEERANSHRUNREDN  ARBFHE
X5 NHREEHERMEREEEGIFEE
BESNEZBE —RRE)  BREZEGNERING
ERORB M ARAIBZHE R HE B
ERAEEBIMETEE BRZESERALQR
ROWMEARENE YEENERANERBEN
BERNTEERN G ER R EHRRIME K-

RZE-NF+_A=+—H BERZEGBE=%
BUWTES UREBRELECHETERZER
TeF - NRNEEME EEIBZBEMHLFENEBERLT
BI=ZARZEegex SKELFLASENERH
SRR

Number of
meetings held

Number of  during term

Name of Director attendance of office

ERERET

EERE R E HEERE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFNTESE -

Mr. Huan Xuedong BEREE 3 3

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan® PR 6% 24 S A 7 3 3

Mr. liang Zequan RERFE 3 3

* Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan acted as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the management of the Company or their
respective close associates (as defined under the listing Rules) had any
interests in a business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest with the Group during
the year.

The Company has received from each of the Direcfors an annual
confirmation of his/her underiaking as to non-competition.

Non-Competition Undertakings

The then controlling Shareholders (namely Mr. Liu, Wangji  limited
["Wangiji"), Mr. Dong Liyong ("Mr. Dong”) and Shen Wang Limited ("Shen
Wang"), through o deed of non-compefition dated 24 May 2011
["Principal Deed"), have given undertakings ("Undertakings”) fo the
Company not fo directly or indirectly engage in the business which
competes or may compete with the Group, on terms and conditions as
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 June 2011
|"Prospectus”). For details of the Undertakings, please refer to pages 162
to 165 of the Prospectus.

On 2 April 2015, the Company, Mr. liu, Wangji, Mr. Dong and Shen
Wang entered info a supplemental deed of non-competition (which was
approved by the Shareholders in the Company’s annual general meeting
for the year 2014) to amend certain terms contained in the principal
Deed ("Supplemental Deed”]. Pursuant to the Supplemental Deed, Mr.
Dong and Shen Wang were no longer bound by the Principal Deed nor
were they be deemed as part of the controlling Shareholders for the
purpose of the Principal Deed. For defails, please refer to the Company's
announcement dafed 2 April 2015.

The status of compliance with the Undertakings by the confrolling
Shareholders during the Review Period is as follows:

(1) the Board received from each of Mr. Lliv and Wangji a
confirmation (i) of compliance with the Undertakings for the Review
Period, and (i) that during the Review Period, neither they nor their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
any project or business opportunity (otherwise than through their
interests held through the Group) which relate to the business
activities by the Group;

[2)  none of the Director are aware of any circumstances which
indicate that the controlling Shareholders or their close associates
are in breach of the Undertakings during the Review Period; and

[3]  save for the terms as amended by the Supplemental Deed, the
terms of the Undertakings have remained unchanged since the
Company's listing on the Stock Exchange in June 2011.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Financial Reporting and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards and the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The Group adopted the going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements. Except from the issue discussed under note 2 fo the
consolidated financial statements on page 92 in relation to the failure by
the Group to sefile the Bonds on their maturity dates, the Directors were
not aware of any other material uncertainties relafting to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to

confinue as a going concern.

A sftafement by the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s

Report” in this annual report.

During the Review Period, remuneration in respect of non-audit services,
namely, the review of continuing connected transactions, preliminary
results announcements and inferim report provided by the Company’s
external auditor amounted to about RMB445,000. The remuneration in
respect of audit service was amounted fo about RMB1,800,000.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and infernal contfrol systems and reviewing their
effectiveness af least annually. The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight role in the Group's risk management and infernal

controls.

The risk management and internal control systems are to ensure that the
Group’s assefs are safeguarded, relevant rules and regulations are
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and  regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group's
performance are appropriately identified and managed. However, the
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures
fo achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Internal Control and Risk Management (Coninued)

The Group has an infernal audit function reporting directly fo the Audit
Committee. The role of internal audit is to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of infernal control, risk management and business
governance processes. The regular work of the internal audit covers the

major acfivities of the Group's operations.

An information disclosure policy is in place fo ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such information being

maintained until consistent and timely disclosure is made.

During the Review Period, the Audit Commitiee not only reviewed the
infernal audit's report but also the certain key risk management and
internal control issues identified by the external auditor. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls and concluded that the key areas of the Groups'
infernal control and risk management systems are reasonably and

adequately implemented to their safisfaction, with room of improvement.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Kwan Lai has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 June 2016 and is a fullime employee of the Company. The
company secrefary is responsible for ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that Board's policy and procedures are followed as
well as for providing advice on governance matters. For the year ended
31 December 2018, Ms. Wong confirmed that she had faken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training fo update her skills and

knowledge.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its Shareholders through its annual
report, interim report and statutory and voluntary announcements. The
Direcfors, company secrefary or appropriate members of senior
management, where appropriate, also respond to inquiries from

Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

General Meetings with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings. The annual general meeting for the year ended 31
December 2017 ("2017 AGM") was held on 29 May 2018.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are explained to the
Shareholders at the commencement of each general meetfing. The poll
results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

Pursuant fo code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings. All Directors (including
independent non-executive Direcfors| who held office af time of the 2017
AGM attended such general meeting. Representative of the Company's
external auditors also attended the 2017 AGM.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

In accordance with article 64 of the Arficles, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisiion of one or more
Shareholderls) holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than onetenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo
the Direcfors or the Company's company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting fo be called by the Directors
for the fransaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meefing shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
fo convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s| himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed

fo the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings (Continued)

There is no provision in the Arficles seffing out procedures for
Shareholders to put forward a resolution at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
fo convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

In accordance with arficle 110 of the Articles, if a Shareholder intends to
propose a person other than a Director for election as a Director at any
general meeting, the Shareholder concerned shall lodge with Hong Kong
head office or Hong Kong share registrar of the Company for the
affention of the Board and the company secrefary of the Company (i) a
writtlen notice of his/her intenfion fo propose that person for election as a
Direcfor; and (ii] o wrifen notice by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a Director together with the necessary information within
the period commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
nofice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven clear days

prior fo the dafe of such general meeting.

Investor Relations

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to dll interested parties as widely and timely as possible. It has
disclosed all necessary information to the Shareholders in compliance
with the Listing Rules. VWhen announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on the
Company's website. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has issued announcements which can be viewed on the

Company's website.

Shareholders and invesfors may af any time send their enquiries and
concerns fo the Board in writing fo the company secrefary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong or through the email address:
info@cdep.com.hk. Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general

meefings.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS- B RERHRE

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
through working with the key stakeholders including the employees,
cusfomers, suppliers and Shareholders.

We have given full consideration fo issues that are of concern fo major
stakeholders and have adhered to the principles of materiality,
completeness, comparability and stakeholder involvement, all of which
form the contents of this report. This report spans over one financial year
from 1 January 2018 o 31 December 2018 and covers information of
the Group — our Hong Kong and Yancheng, PRC headquarters as well

as dredging and property management businesses in the PRC.

This report highlights the Group's sustainability efforts in environmental
and social aspects as stipulated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
We  shalll exp|oin this in terms of four areas nome|y, environment
profection, employment and labour practices, operating practices and

community investment.

For details of our corporate governance, please refer to the corporate

governance report included in this annual report.

Environmental Protection

Emissions

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental
management and is committed fo protecting the environment. We factor
our environmental concerns info our business processes and strive to
continuing to improve our environmental performance in compliance with

the applicable regulations and indusiry-specific guidelines.

Owing fo its business nature, the Group's air emissions are mainly
generated from the dredging business by the consumption of fuels. The
Group's greenhouse gas ('GHG"] emissions consist of the direct
emissions from the consumption of fuels by our dredging fleet and
vehicles, and the indirect emission from the consumption of electricity and
water at Easyhome Yancheng Shopping Mall and the Group's offices
and the refuse produced from the shopping mall, construction project sites

and offices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group has caleulated the air and GHG emissions during the
Reporting Period as follows:

BRI - g RERKE )
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REEBRBERANERFIRIOREREBHMGIEN
™

Types of emissions B BUE B 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(Kg F32) (Kg F52)
Air emission B R BEBR
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) REy 5,369,935 5,139,904
Sulphur Oxides (SOx| maiy 26,535 25,394
Particulate Matter (PM) LI )| 62 61
Direct GHG emission EERAERBEHER
Carbon Dioxide [CO,) (scope 1) — &l (BE 1) 44,112,554 42,989,605
Methane (CH,) Rl 427 393
Nitrous Oxide (N,O) i 282 115
Indirect GHG emission HERERBEHEK
Carbon Dioxide [CO,) (scope 2) — &bl (BE2) 563,533 676,332

During the Reporting Period, the Group's major GHG emission was
carbon dioxide and its infensity was 72,334 Kg CO,e per million of

revenue.

The Group always encourages its employees to save resources in its
daily operation to reduce GHG emissions. We conduct regular
maintenance and inspection of vessels and vehicles not only to maintain
their performance but also to improve fuel efficiency. We remind our
employees fo make good use of electronic systems for message
distribution and archiving and use double-sided printing and
photocopying fo reduce paper consumption. Further, we encourage them
to reduce carbon emissions from their daily lives, such as using public

transport and walking or riding a bicycle for short journeys.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBRIR - E2RERKS (H)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group sfrictly complies with the relevant national maritime regulations
fo identify and manage the released substances during dredging fo
ensure their safe freatment, transportation, storage, recycling and
disposal. We strive for high accuracy in both positioning and excavation
during the dredging process fo ensure proper removal of excavated
materials {including mud and solid matter) and pollutants and to minimize
overexcavafion and soil agifation. We also take anfidiffusion and
leakage measures fo ensure high concentrations of inhalation in order to
avoid pollution by the contaminants in their suspended state in the
surrounding water. Besides, in the dredging process the excavated
materials and confaminated sediments are stored on the dredgers in
accordance with the relevant national regulations. We transport them to
the shore through barges or pipeline to avoid their leakage which may
cause secondary pollution fo water. Finally, we arange qualified
recyclers for their disposal.

In the horizons of waste management and recycling, the Group requires
our employees to keep contaminated substances in separation and freat
wastes in classification. Excavated materials and confominated sediments
in the dredging process are stored on the dredgers and transported to the
shore according fo the relevant natfional laws and regulations. Other
wastes are stored in specialised storage areas and handled in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage. The Group has commissioned qualified companies fo recycle
and declare under the registrafion system pursuant fo the relevant laws

and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's recorded the following waste:

RERE@

BERYD @)

AEBEBRBRREREEEZRAITHDAIES - AR
REGEZBETFEBENFRDERSIR2MNEE -
BE T ERMNMEE - EHIZIZEBRE P SR
REMBELRRRAERE  ERKBEREZEDOYH
(BHREEFEMERY) LSRMI RERIBEZER
DB WERBPEANRRER RESRER
A DA % R 0 B OT IR R 605 2 ) R B K BB IE KOS
Fotsh ZMMERZBRPZENDELTRE
RERBEARMEEREREEZRM L BEEM
FEENBEEREPELRIRE KBER —RITHR
BEEFBRLTHFEGERBDKARER -

EERDEEDEMNBIE AEEERETRERE
ES Y XA E O REIE - EHOE TIEPIEE
HEMH R SRR RERRERBEEREZEME
2ERERFE MEMBEEVESEFREFMRE %
(R BENITFESREFFEEINERRITT AEEX
REBEEMRERE RERATEREBREL
HE e

RBEHRAR AEBERET THEDER

Types of wastes B E Rl 2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

(ton M) (ton M)

General Waste —REY 202 208

Diesel dregs i bicy 28 30
Notes: W

1. The general wasfe included kitchen waste as the Group offered free meals
fo crews of dredging vessels in the PRC.

2. The waste produced from the Group's Hong Kong office was not counted
as it was immaterial in view of the whole Group's waste production.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

In addition, due to the nature of businesses, the Group does not have
physical products for sale and thus the disclosure on the use of packaging

material is inapplicable to the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is nof aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of resources

The resources used by our Group are principally aftributed to fuels
consumed by dredging fleet at construction project sites, and also

electricity and water consumed at its offices and the shopping mall.

With the aim fo better manage the use of resources, the Group performs
assessment annually. The Group has adopted green office practices to
reduce natural resource and energy consumption, e.g., installing LED
lamp fo save energy, and employees are encouraged to develop the
habit of energy conservation, e.g., switching off lights, computers and
other electronic appliances before leaving the offices. The Group strives
fo uilise telephone conferences to minimize facetoface meetings in order
to reduce petrol consumption in travelling and avoid unnecessary business
trips. During the Reporting Period, the Group had an electricity
consumption of approximately 697,000 kilowatthours (2017: 836,000

kilowatt-hours).

From the perspective of water management, the Group has provided
signs fo remind its staff to reduce water consumption. We also regularly
check mefer readings and conduct the detection of hidden leaks in water
pipes. If hidden water leakage or tap dripping is found, we will arange
for repair promptly fo avoid wasting water resources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group's water consumpﬁon was about 17,900
fons, representing a decrease of 11.1% as compared with that of last
year. The water consumption for The Reporting Period was more than
expected as the newly opened Easyhome Shopping Mall occasionally

conducted fire prevention tests to meet the fire safety requirements.

Environment and Natural Resources

Dredging consfruction projects affect the environment and natural
resources. The Group is committed to managing the impact of ifs
operations related to the environment and natural resources and

preventing significant adverse impacts on the environment.

Annual Report 2018 51

BRI - g RERKE )

RERE @

BER YD (@)

BoN BREBUEERE ASEXEEEE®RHH
T HHERACAREMBNREY TERRAE
@ o

RBREMSE SEYTABZEEMETETHE BRE

BERBHR HREKRERLIH URELERS
RESEMZEIERIMSEIINERTEZE
%o

BEIRfEH

AEENAHOEREZREOX MR TIER %P
R URRERRAERESBEFENKE -

REFERERVNA AEBETFENE - FNEH
ERMZERREEN (PR EEDE A S L EER)
AR D RARE R B IREFE » TR i@@ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
BEMPIARBERRAZAEE BEREEMGETR
)  ARBEBNERERGANRIEHESH K
ﬁﬁﬁ%f&&?&?&@ﬁ@imﬁﬁﬁliﬁiﬁ&’ﬁdl\%ﬁ’]ﬁ% i
HEME  AEEREEHNOO/,000T /(=

+ & : 836,000 F FL/NEF) o

ERNKEREETE  ARBEEBRMEHIARESR
TERIMAK - HPIE R REKEEBZE RBAKED
A2 RKIEMR » B 2 K 7KI15 I 5K e 58 A R 7K
ER - BHMAELHREEEUARREKER REE
HE AEBEBKELH17,9008 - & & F R BRI
1%- ZREMARAEELEY RAZFHEED
BERZFEBAG B BFIANE BRI

BERRAER

HATRBEUHRRERARERE —TFE- m%l
AHEAETHEREKHBRENMRAE RN E
IFHIREEKEE -

“E-N\FER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBRIR - E2RERKS (H)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

We care the natural environment. Thus, the Group deploys measures to
profect the environment in its dredging business, by which we hope to
confribute to the protection of the environment. Our environmental
profection dredging fechnology outperforms the traditional technology as
it does not cause secondary pollution and conforms with the keynote of
China’s environmental protection policies. Our sludge dewatering
equipment is capable of confinuous operation and meeting the
requirements and standards of dewatering volume without adding
solidification materials such as lime or concrete during operation. It does
not change the acidity and alkaline property of the mud plate affer
dewatering and can be used in sludge soil resource recovery and reuse
or otherwise can be tumned info harmless environmental protection bury.
The remaining water after processing is clear and up to the standard,

which can be directly redischarged into the lake.

Environmental impact is also fully faken into consideration when the

Group makes investment decisions.

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The policy of mainfaining a good working condition is a people-oriented
principle. In relation to personnel management affairs on staff hiring,
promotion, performance evaluation and compensation, the Group
esfablishes an employeremployee relationship based on legitimacy and
equality, which enables us to avoid any discrimination resulting from
different genders, ages, languages, nationalities and religions of

employees.

The Group recruits employees via various recruitment channels. The
recruitment of our employees embodies the principles of social
responsibilities such as the equality of employment, the respect for human
rights, the diversity of employees, the prohibition of use of child labour
and the prohibition of forced labour. The Group provides its new
employees with clear codes of practice, rules and regulations, as well as

information relating to salary and welfare system.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Confinued)

Employment (Continued)

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 567 employees, of
which over Q0% were employed for our operations in the PRC. As for
positions, 30.1% are managerial and technical staff and 69.9% are
general staff. In respect of ages, we have an even age disfribution
among our staff, of which 64.8% our workforce is between 30 to 50
years old, 13.1% of our employees are below 30 years old and 22.1%

are over 50 vears old.

In respect of salaries and benefits, the Group provides a comprehensive
remuneration package of compensation and benefits for its employees.
The remuneration package is mainly determined according to the
individual employee’s development and performance as well as the
Group's performance. The Group provides work lunch fo those staff in the
PRC and also sets aside reserved funds for activities, which help our
employees fo relieve sfress and serve fo exemplify the Group's corporate
culture of the spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees. In
accordance with the applicable Chinese labour laws, the Group
confributes to various national social security insurances and one housing

fund for our mainland employees.

Recognising the importance of communication with its employees, the
Group encourages its employees to share their ideas with the Group and
raise questions or make suggestions fo the Group. With the availability of
a wide array of communication channels, the Group offers its employees
access to the latest information of the Group through the Group's website.
Employees can also maintain timely and smooth communication with the
management of the companies within the Group through the

representatives of the employees.

Health and safety

The Group trains its employees to prevent occupational hazards from
fime fo time and distributes labour protection supplies and first aid
supplies to employees as needed. We also post up hazard warning
signs and labour protection supplies reminders in the relevant work
places. We provide to the relevant staff annual occupational health
examinations. Meanwhile, we also implement the labor protection
supplies regulatory mechanism. With regular inspections by dedicated
persons, we remind and request employees to wear labour profection

supp|ies to maintain their health and sofefy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBRIR - E2RERKS (H)

Employment and Labour Practices (Confinued)

Health and safety (Continued)

At the production safety level, each of the dredgers and the key safety
equipment must carry a valid ship inspection cerfificate issued by the ship
inspection agency. All the ships and offices are also equipped with first
aid and medicine boxes, and we also arrange staff representatives to
participate in first aid training. At the individual's level, the Group
provides fargeted safefy trainings fo newly recruited employees and then
strengthens their safety awareness through the implementation of the
mentoring system in daily work. The Group has reinforced onthe-job
safety frainings by requiring all department heads responsible for work
injury to carry out safety trainings for their department staff and through a
series of measures to enhance the safety awareness of employees in

order to avoid the recurrence of similar incidents.

Moreover, the Group has assigned dedicated people to conduct regular
inspections of the fire equipment on the ships and in offices. We perform
full fire drills twice per year to increase their awareness of fire safety and
fire prevention for all employees. As a result, no work accident was

recorded by the Group in the Reporting Period.
Development and training

The Group highly emphasizes on the internal and external learning and
training to enhance the educational standards and working abilities of

employees.

New employees are provided with on-board training fo help them
familiarise themselves with the culture, business and operation of the
Group. In addition, employees are also entifled to various subsidies and
sponsorships for jobrelated fraining courses fo encourage lifelong

learning.
Labour standards

All work should be voluntarily performed and shall not involve forced
labour, debt repayment or contractually binded labour. The Group
prohibits child labour in any workplace. The Group also prohibits
discrimination based on race, colour, age, gender, sexual orientation,
ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, religion, political affiliation, union

membership or marital sfatus in recruitment, treatment, promotion, efc.

The Group also strictly complies with the relevant PRC labour regulations
relating fo working hours, rest and holidays to ensure the physical and
mental of all employees. Employees are not o be forced to work beyond
working hours and are entitled to overtime pay in accordance with the
local regulations. All employees perform works volunfarily and are not

subject to discrimination.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Operating Practices

Supply chain management

Our suppliers are our business pariners and we aim to mainfain a long-
term partnership with them fo confinuously improve the quality of our

products and services.

Based on supply chain social and environmental responsibilities
management, the principal raw material currently required by the Group's
operation is diesel, and other resources involve owned and leased
dredgers, crews and subcontractors’ participation. There are over
hundreds of dredger leasing companies, subcontractors and fuel suppliers

on our list.

In addition to facfors such as pricing, quality, facilities and experience,
and past performance evaluation, the Group also fakes info account the
suppliers’ performance in fulfilling their social responsibilities and
commitment fo environmental protection in our selection of suppliers. We
require our suppliers to comply with the laws and regulations in countries
and regions where their operations are located and to operate in good
The Group prohibits

discrimination arising from regional, racial, cultural and political factors in

faith by adhering to their business ethics.
the course of its supplier evaluation.

Product responsibility

The Group attaches great importance fo the quality of dredging projects
and establishes comprehensive quality control procedures. The project
management feam is responsible for testing the quality of the dredging
projects. The project manager conducts daily on-site inspections and
supervise works fo ensure that the quality standards and regulations of the
dredging and related projects are carried out in accordance with the
customers’ requirements. After the completion of the works but before
handing over of the projecis, customers will check whether the quality of

the projects meets their requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have to rework for

completed project due fo the project quality issue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBRIR - E2RERKS (H)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high ethical standards in all of our
operafions and business activities. With this in mind, the Group is
dedicated fo a zerofolerance policy with regard to any involvement in

corruption or bribery activities of any type.

We include anticorruption code in our infernal operafional manual to
ensure that employees understand the Group's expectations. The code
sefs ouf the legal responsibilities and ethical standards for the expected
behaviour of all employees. It explicilly prohibits employees from
soliciting, accepting, or offering bribes or any other form of advantage.
The code also provides guidance for daily interactions with cusfomers,
suppliers, government officials and other business partners and ouflines
the Group's expectations on employees with regard to conflicts of
inferests and encourages employees fo report any malpractice and
misconduct. The Group has set up hofline and email fo receive reports

from all employees.

Community Investment

The Group emphasises the support of the community and actively
participates in charifable activities for the relief of poverty in the
communities in which we operate our businesses. We encourage our
employees fo parficipate in volunfeering acfivities organised by local

charities.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 56

EE BN @

RES

SERNELEREBEPTRTIGEERE A
lH: CEEH2EEAEENAESREREDNITRE

r—‘—\ Paras
TRRBBUR ©

BRAECABERGE)>AMARES TR A B R #E
REEEBARANOHE - Z-TRIMMHMAEEED
TREOERBEERERESE AEZLIEERI %K
XYRfHERATMEMAEANNE  RESERF
HER BNEEREMEBEHENA B IERMIE
S-S EEREERENSERIEAHE - N
EBBREEEREMERNAETR KERILER
ARRETEE RUMEREMREENERELER-

HERE
AEBEEROBEHRBOIR  —ABER2EEBHRE
e

WHRTHEREZSZ LD HMEBEESLEAXN
WEEEERRNEZEE -

PEIFZRRIZRBRAE



The Direcfors are pleased fo present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of ifs principal subsidiaries are sef out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2018. as well as a discussion on the Group's future
business development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. In addition, defails of the Group's relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The above
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Discussions on the compliance with applicable laws and regulafions
which have a significant impact on the Group, the Group's major risks
and risk management and the Group's environmental policies and
performance can be found in the paragraphs below.

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the Group

The Group and its acfivities are subject fo requirements under an array of
laws, including the Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding law of the
People's Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of Ching,
as well as other applicable regulations, guidelines, policies and terms
issued or promulgated pursuant to or in respect of these formal laws. In
addition, the Listing Rules are also applicable to the Group. The Group is
committed fo ensuring compliance with such requirements by taking
various measures using specific resources at all levels, including internal
monitoring and approval procedures, fraining and supervision over
different segments. The Group always attaches paramount importance to
compliance with the requirements under applicable laws and regulations,
despite the fact that such measures involve a lot of infernal resources and
incur additional operafing costs.

Annual Report 2018 57

Directors’ Report

ESTHE

EZEMARERENRERARARAEEBEE
- N\FTA=Z1T - BLFENLERTB®REK -

ARAMEBEBRAREER TEMBARMNTIE
EBHBANGAYBMRMEI-FAR - AEET
EEBHMELRERNES -

E 3 JCI)

FRAUAKEXBNTFTEEARAE T \FHRF
BEHERRBELENMEAEE AR ENERFTHANFR
AREREBRREBERO R - 25 HNANF R
[(ERBEEIRIEREISREOMIEE - WO A
MASEERES FPREHEANBEERERAFRIER
B HEgRERRE] —HPRE - LATRBERES

GHE Moo

RETHAEBEEATENERERNIER A&
EnmTERARkEAREERAEENRRERR LKA
Z R BN IA TR -

;}gzl-‘%ﬁi TENEBERER

B
P54

B Y

AEBREEHRAETZHEARRTE BR(PEA
REAMBABBRLBE) (PEARKNBERREREFEZE
BEAR) (PEARKMBESRE) (FEARHK
B R 2 EEER)ARRIERA BB LK SOEME W
98 B Bt ORI - #8581  BUR R ARFR o b oh
LHRAMERARAEE - AKEH AR EBEEN
HEBRBANMEZREMREF BIREETH
DEHMEZRER BRETZEHAT BEESLER
FYRAEARNER ELBINEEXL  BREE
FREGERANTEBERERIEARENRK -

B \FEH



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HE

Business Review (Continued)

ComTliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the GI‘OUp (Continued)

Tendering and Biding Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Tendering and Biding law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Implementation Rules of Tendering and Biding Low of the
People’s Republic of China, when bidding for a new project, the Group
must, in accordance with the lows and regulations, have the capacity,
qualifications and conditions fo undertake the project and respond in
defails fo substanfive requirements and conditions under the bidding
document, and must not, among others, collude with others to make a
tender offer, undermine fair competition by squeezing out other bidders,
bribe tenderee or any member of the bid evaluation committee, make a
bid at a price lower than cosfs, and parficipate in the bidding in the
event that the fenderee is interested in the Group and thus may
compromise bidding fairmess. In the case of any violation of relevant
regulations by the Group as a bidder, ifs bid shall be invalid and it may
be punished by the tenderee or relevant authorities.

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

The Confract law of the People’s Republic of China (“Confract Law”)
clearly stipulates, among others, qualifications of the confract parties,
confract forms, principal ferms, cancellation conditions, contract validity,
constituent elements of invalid and cancelable contracts, fulfillment of
obligations, conditions for contract alteration and transfer, termination of
rights and obligations under a contract and liability for breach of
contract.

For construction confracts, the Contract Law sefs out specific requirements,
including: contracts for major national construction projects shall be
enfered into in accordance with statesstipulated procedures and  state-
approved documents such as investment plans and feasibility study
reports; with the consent of the confractee, the contractor can sublet part
of its contracted works to a third party, provided that construction of the
main structure of the construction project must be completed by the
contractor who is forbidden fo sublet its works to an unqualified enfity.
After the completion of the construction project, the contractee shall timely
conduct acceptance inspection of the project pursuant to consfruction
accepfance rules and quality inspection standards issued by the state. If
the project passes the acceptance inspection, the confractee shall accept

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 58

3 7% O B )

BFHAEREE
KER m)

TENBRER

(FEARANBEEARERER)

REB(PEARAMBERRRITE) (R EARKM
BREREZEBAR)  AEE2 MM TREEZ &
ARBEBERER BRESEAGBERERZEREN
e B R HREXMHRONEEEERM
FREFLABER EP R THEMASBRIE
BE TEHBEMAREANQFRT  TRARR
ASEFRZEEREBTH  THERERK A RE
iR ABRATENEREATEZEREALERT
BE2NEREE -WRAKEEARBEAZRREER
EERSEN YA AR AKABAFIEE -

(PEARANBESR X
(R AR#MES AR (KARR)) (R ey
ARTYMERER TUHR - EBHEK - HHE
e ARM)  ERARMATHEAROERENS
BOEM SRNEEMNSEENE ARNEHES
BRI BOBESHERERT -

HREIAR CARZEIITABER B8 BX
EAERIEAR EERRERXRENIEZEFMEX
PEMBREFE  ATTHMRERESEXMATL  £%
BARE #ABAARKECABNED TERXHE
=hERERRIBIREBNEIVEHABA
BT RIEEABABIESBGETAGHREEER
REFMEBEMN  BRIBRIR ZFEAREREER
MENBIRIGRBNEERREEREETRIE
BUAKH ZFEARERROEIMNER LEK
ZRERIE-AEEERBEHARBIEIA MR
THETARER(RETETAREBHERTA
AEBTHANT) LARERNEE BDEEE

PEEZRRIEZERERAF



Business Review (Continued)

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and
Regulations which have a Significant Impact on
the GI’OUp (Continued)

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

(Continued)
it and make the agreed payment. In the case of the Group's failure to

fulfill its confractual obligations (either nondulfillment or non-agreed
fulfillment] as the performing party and/or constructor, it must assume the
liability for breach of contract, including continuing to fulfill the contract,
taking remedial measures or compensating for any resulting losses. In the
case of the construction project quality falling below the agreed level due
fo the consfructor’s fault, the confractee has the right to require the
constructor fo repair, revamp or rebuild it within a reasonable period,
without any exira charge, and to bear the liability for breach of contract
for the resulting delayed delivery |if any).

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

According to the Production Safety law of the People’s Republic of
China, for the production and operating unit held responsible, a major
accident may incur a fine of up to RMB20 million in addition fo typical
liabilities including the required legal compensation. To ensure
compliance with the Production Safety law of the People's Republic of
China, the Group avoids production safety incidents by providing
fraining courses from fime fo fime on production safety and emergency
rescue drills fo staff engaged in project design, construction, equipment
repair and maintenance, safety supervision, efc. to ensure production

safety.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up fo the date of this
report, the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HE

Business Review (Continued)

Major Risks and Risk Management

The Board is well aware of its responsibility to maintain the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management systems. Such
systems are designed to manage risks of failed business objectives and
provide reasonable guarantee against material misrepresentation or

losses.

Business Risks

The Group's business risk factors include changes in the overall market
condifions, downward pressure on China's economy and the number
and progress of domestic projects in the entire industry, which may affect
the construction environment, setlement prices and capital turnover rates
of its consfruction projects. The Board is responsible for overall business
management and review of major business decisions involving disclosure

of significant risks from time fo time.

Financial Risks

The Group has adopted a series of financial risk management policies to
manage its liquidity risk, credit term allocation risk, financing structure
risk, inferest rate risk and exchange rafe risk. The Board also periodically
reviews the Group's management accounts, capital structure and key

operational data on a monthly basis.

Compliance Risks

The Board takes effective measures to ensure compliance of the
Company with the laws, regulations and rules. The Company has
engaged professional consultants and advisors to keep the Company
updated on the latest changes in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational development. The
Company also imposes strict policies to prohibit any unauthorized use or

publication of confidential information or insider information.

Operational Risks
The Company has adopted effective measures fo manage ifs operational
risks such as low equipment utilization efficiency, high consumption of

consumables and frequent production failures.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control

and risk management systems covering its business, financial, operational

and compliance risks, and is of the view that such systems are effective.
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Business Review (Continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

We commit ourselves fo environmental protection in all aspects of
operations. Over the years, the Group has been doing its utmost fo
project the environment. The management of the Group has implemented
various measures and regulafions to make sure that we honor our
responsibilities for the environment. We regularly hold special internal
meetings with professional teams fo review environmental issues at the
construction sites and office areas and exchange ideas on environmental
improvement. The management of the Group will continue its efforts in
securing ongoing high environmental standards in major areas and key

links.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group at that date are set

out in the accompanying financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Dividend Policy

The Company's dividend policy in force with effect from 1 January 2019
sefs ouf the guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid and the level of dividends fo be paid to the
Shareholders. The Board has the discrefion fo declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles and all applicable

laws and regulations and having regard to the following factors:
la)  the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;
[b)  refained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

[c)  the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital

requirements of the Group;

[d)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the financiers and other third parties of the Group;
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HE

Dividend POIICY (Continued)

le)  economic condition and other internal or external factors that may
that have an impact on the business or financial performance and

posifion of the Group; and
[l any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review this policy as appropriate from time fo fime.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Defails of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are sef ouf in nofe 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Share Capital

During the Review Period, the Company issued 295,600,000 Shares on
6 November 2018 pursuant to a subscription agreement dated @
October 2018 entered into between the Company and a subscriber.
Further details of the issue of the subscription Shares are sef out in the
Company's announcements dated @ October 2018 and ¢ November
2018.

Defails of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are
set out in note 30 fo the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Arficles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares

on a pro rafa basis fo existing Shareholders.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Defails of the equitylinked agreements entered into during the year or

subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Pursuant to a subscripfion agreement dated 9 October 2018 entered info
between the Company and a subscriber, the Company issued and
allotted 295,600,000 new Shares at a price of HK$0.12 per Share on
6 November 2018. The gross proceeds of the above subscription would
be HK$35,472,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB31,276,000).
Net proceeds amounting to approximately HK$$35,222,000 (equivalent
fo approximately RMB31,056,000) received from the subscriber shall be
used fo repay part of the Bonds. For defails, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated @ October 2018 and 6
November 2018.

As for the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”.

Other than the above subscription agreement and the Share Option
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisfing at the end of the year ended 31 December
2018.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and  officers’

liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the Directors and officers of Group.

Tax Relief

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Shareholders were not entitled
to any tax relief by virtue of their holding of the Shares.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any listed securities of the

Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in the statement of financial position of the
Company on page @ of this annual report and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2018
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the Shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, revenue to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for about 38% (2017: 54%) of the Group's fotal revenue for
the year and the revenue from the largest customer included therein
accounted for about 10.7% (2017: 12%) of the Group's fotal revenue.

The Group's five largest customers comprise PRC state-owned companies
and private enferprises which have business relationships with the Group
for a period ranging from two to eight years. Services provided to them
by the Group include CRD Business, and EPD and Water Management
Business. Their contracts with the Group were projectbased, which
provided for either monthly progress payments with reference to the value
of work complefed each month or annual payments with a fixed
percentage for each year throughout the confract period. Such credit
terms were in line with those granted to other customers of the Group.
No longterm agreements had been entered into between the Group's
five largest customers and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board resolved fo make
o expected credit loss allowance of RMB243.2 million of for certain
receivables (2017 expected credit loss allowance: Nil). The allowance
for expected credit loss was based on the assessment in recoverability
and the judgement by the management after considering the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the present value of the original effective
inferest rafe. For defails please refer to note 11 to the financial statement
in this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers (Continved)

Since the Group's major customers accounted for a significant portion of
the Group's fotal revenue for the year, if in the future the Group loses one
of its major customers or if any of the Group's major customers
significantly reduces its volume of business with the Group while the
Group is unable to get new projects from other existing and/or potential
cusfomers, revenues and profitability of the Group would be heavily
reduced. Nonetheless, the Group believes that it has developed close
relationships with its major customers that they cannot easily replace the
Group with other suppliers. The Group has also entered info contracts

with and will continue to seek business from other customers.

In the year under review, supplies from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for about 30.6% (2017: 30.4%) of the Group's fotal
operating cost for the year and supplies from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for about 13.4% (2017: 8.3%) of the Group's tofal

operating cost.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
[which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Execufive's Interests and  Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this Directors' report in this
annual report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granfed to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of ifs subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable

the Directors fo acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors:

M. Liv Kaijin
Mr. Wu Bin

Mr. Wu Xuze
Ms. Zhou Shuhua

Non-executive Director:

Mr. liv longhua [resigned on 8 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Huan Xuedong
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
M:r. Liang Zequan

In accordance with article 1T05(A) of the Articles, Mr. Liu Kaijin, Ms.
Zhou Shuhua and Mr. Liang Zequan will retire by rofation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Independence Confirmations from
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Direcfors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-executive

Directors fo be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the execufive Directors has entered into a Director’s service
confract and each of the non-executive Directors signed a letter of
appointment with the Company commencing from their respective date of
appointment. All of them are subject to refirement by rotation and re-

election in accordance with the Articles.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (Continued)

Mr. liv Kaijin and Ms. Zhou Shuhua, both being executive Direcfors,
have enfered into service agreements with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 1 June 2017.

Both Mr. Wu Bin and Mr. Wu Xuze, all being executive Directors, have
entered into service agreements with the Company for a ferm of one year
commencing from 5 January 2019.

Mr. liu longhua, who has resigned as non-executive Director on 8 March
2019, entered info an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
one year commencing from 25 April 2018.

Mr. liang Zequan, being independent non-executive Director, has
entered info an appointment lefter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 23 September 2016. Each of Mr. Huan
Xuedong and Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, both being independent
non-executive Directors, has entered info an appointment letter with the
Company for a ferm of one year commencing from 25 April 2018 and
30 November 2018 respectively. Mr. Huan Xuedong has also enfered
into a new appoiniment letter with the Company for a term of one year
with immediate effect after the expiry of the term of the current
appointment letter.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are defermined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2018, save for those disclosed in
the financial stafements, no Director or any enfity connected with the
Directors had a material inferest, either direcﬂy or indirecﬂy, in any
fransaction, arrangement or contract of significance fo the business of the
Group fo which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Management Contracts

Save for the Contractual Arrangements between subsidiaries of the
Group, no confracts conceming the management and adminisiration of
the whole or any substantiol part of the business of the Group were

entered info or existed during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

According to relevant PRC laws, foreign investors are prohibited from
owning more than a 50% equity inferest in any enferprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business. Otherwise the Maritime Safety
Administration of the PRC will not register the ownership of a vessel to an
enterprise. Our Group has decided that Xiangyu PRC owns 50% of
interest in the relevant vessels, being the maximum percentage that a
foreign investor may own under PRC laws fo register the ownership of the
relevant vessels for certain commercial reasons. In addition, our Group
infends to participate in some dredging projects which forbid any
involvement of foreign-invested companies under PRC laws. Even in
certain dredging projects which foreign-invested companies are
technically allowed to engage under PRC laws, the foreign-invested
companies find it difficult, in common practice, to secure dredging
business opportunities. Based on the above reasons, the PRC Operational
Entity has not become equity-owned by our Company, but will be

confrolled by our Company through the Contractual Arrangements.

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected fransactions that are exempted under Rule
14A of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2018

On 19 April 2011

Arrangements pursuant fo which all economic benefits and risks arising

, the following entities enfered into the Contractual
from the business of Jiangsu Xingyu are transferred to Xiangyu PRC:

[l Xiangyu PRC, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,

[i)  Jiangsu Xingyu, a limited liability company established in the PRC
and deemed fo be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
under the Contractual Arrangements, and mainly engages in CRD
and EPD segments and is the largest subsidiary of the Group in
ferms of operating assefs owned and construction scale, and

[ii)  equity inferests holders of Jiangsu Xingyu, namely Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou [both of them are executive Directors and comro”ing

shareholders of the Company).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Jiangsu Jioolong, a limited liability company established in the PRC,
mainly engages in the provision of marine hoisting, installation and other
engineering services. It is the provider of the Group's other marine
business. Jiangsu Xingyu owns a 51% equity inferest in it and is its

confrolling shareholder.

Further details of the Contractual Arrangements are described in note 39

fo the financial statements of this annual report.

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of
the Listing Rules to the Company for all fransactions under the Contractual
Arrangements from strict complionce with the applicable announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The amount of revenve and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements accounted for 98.4% and 63.3% of the Group's tofal
revenue and assets respectively for the year ended 31 December 2018
[2017: 99% and 62.9%).

The followings are the major risks relating to the Confractual

Arrangements:

e The Group conducts ifs business operation in the PRC through the
PRC Operational Entity by way of the Contractual Arrangements,
but certain of the terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not
be enforceable under PRC laws. Therefore, in the event of breach
of any agreements constituting the Confractual Arrangements by
Mr. Liu, Ms. Zhou and/or the PRC Operational Entity, and if the
Croup is unable to enforce the Contractual Arrangements, the
Group may not be able to exert effective confrol over the PRC
Operational Entity, and the Group's ability to conduct its business

may be negatively affected.

o If the PRC government finds that the Contractual Arangements or
the ownership sfructures or business operations of the Company or
the PRC Operational Enfity do not comply with any of the PRC
laws and regulations, the Group's business, financial condition or
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected, as
revenue in relation fo the Contractual Arrangements accounted for
98.4% of the Group's fotal revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

e The Confractual Arrangements related to critical aspects of the
Croup's operations with the PRC  Operational Entity and its
shareholders which may not be as effective as direct ownership in
providing operational confrol. In the event that the Group is unable
fo enforce these Confractual Arrangements, the Group may be
unable to exert effective control over the PRC Operational Entity,
and the Group's ability to conduct its business may be materially
and adversely affected.

e Shareholders of the PRC Operational Entity, Mr. liu and Ms. Zhou,
may potentially have a conflict of interest with the Group, and they
may breach their contracts with the Group. Such disputes and
proceedings may significantly disrupt the Group's business
operations, adversely affect its ability fo control the PRC
Operational Enfity and/or otherwise result in negative publicity.

The Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the sound and
effective operation of the Group following the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements:

e as part of the infernal control measures, major issues arising from
implementation of the Contractual Arrangements had been and will
be reviewed by the Board on a regular basis;

] matters relating fo compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities had been and will be discussed at such
regular meetings or extraordinary meefings of the Board;

e the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Group
reported regu\or|y fo the senior management of the Company on
the compliance and performance conditions under the Contractual
Arrangements and other related matters;

] legal advisors and/or other professionals had been and will
continue to be retained fo assist the Group fo deal with specific
issues arising from the Contractual Arrangements; and

e the independent non-executive Directors had and will continue to
conduct annual reviews on the Confractual Arrangements to ensure
that it is fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the Group
and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Direcfors confirm that during the Review Period, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the listing Rules [save for the exemptions granted under the
above-mentioned waiver.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above-

mentioned contfinuing connected fransactions were entered info:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

[i)  in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
goveming such fransactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a
whole; and

[iii)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available to or from independent third

parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an

annual review on the Contractual Arrangements and have confirmed that:

[i)  the transactions carried out during the year ended 31 December
2018 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Confractual Arrangements and have been
operated so that all revenue generated by Jiangsu Xingyu has been
refained by Xiangyu PRC;

[i)  no dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu
Xingyu fo its equity interest holders; and

[ii)  any new confracts or renewed confracts have been entered info on
the same ferms as the existing Confractual Arrangements and are
fair and reasonable so far as the Group is concemed and in the

infterests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company fo perform procedures on the above
confinuing connecfed fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference fo Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants.

Annual Report 2018 71

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHE@E

BEEEERX S @

BYFFMITERER
NRIAL:

BFEBEZZ IR THER

l AEAEEEAER— R E B

) RBRERTRBOIEM G T8
RNBAFARLFAARTBREGH BB
iR

i) RBEREMERKARAEENST @ ZF KK
PNER B = 77 7] UG SR A9 55K -

SN WM ITEECHANRHETFER
I R

i BE-T-NF+-AZt+—BILEERTH
HERHTBEA DR BHEXTT L
A — B A (TR DA T AR R R A T A
ERDFPENE

i) THEFHEDERERAAFELREIEM
Dk K&

i EAFAOREBANERKRREAORH
FREGERTTY  ARAEETE  ZEAK
BATAR UHAREHERFN-

RIBEETRAEIIASOG EEFERBEFEEZR
EREEAEI0005 (KEDEXAEMNBEHB
ERAIMZBZEIR2BEESANASH LN
BB HAFE7A05 BN EE L AR Bl Pl +5 48 B &
X5 e A% BRED B | R B RNR B AL B - 8 b R
MERHETERERF

—B-N\EFH



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEESRE HE

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that nothing has come fo the

auditor's attention that causes them to believe that :

a.  the disclosed confinuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

b.  the said transactions were not entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

c.  dividends or other distributions have been made by Jiangsu Xingyu
fo the holders of its equity interests.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions are sef out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
fransactions consfitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules, except for those described in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, in respect of which
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been complied with.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Directors may at their discrefion grant options fo (i) any
Director and employees of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which the Group holds an equity interest; or (i) any suppliers,
cusfomers, consultants who provided services to the Group, shareholders
of the subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture pariners to subscribe for

the shares.
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Share Option Scheme (Confinued)

The offer of a grant of options must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of offer. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The fofal
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue at the fime dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange. This limit was last refreshed by the Shareholders in the
extraordinary general meefing of the Company held on 23 October
2014 so that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options fo be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 85,560,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue

as at the date of passing the relevant resolution on 23 October 2014.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the minimum
period, if any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised) as may be defermined by the Direcfors and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends in any event nof later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant share option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Options may be granted upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration for each grant. The exercise price is
equal 1o the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as sfated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and fiii)
nominal value of the shares. The Direcfors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group
to reward the employees, the Directors and other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption and will expire

on 23 May 2021.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued) B PR RE 5T 2 )
The movements of the share options granted under the Share Option RBE-_Z-N\F+_A=T—RLFEAN REE
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: PR REE 2 Tx Hj CHEREZEESNT
Number of share options
BRERA
Closing price
Lapsed/  Outstanding immediately
Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled as at before the
Name or category at 1 January during  during during 31 December Date of Exercise  date of the
of participant 2018 the year the year  the year 2018 grant” price” grant Exercise period®
R=ZB-N\f RZE-N\& ZERH
-A-H RER  REAR  RERE +-A=+-8 BRAE AN
SHREREHER i & 47 6 i T RR/EH HRTE BEAHD TeEE? Wi TEHS
[HK$ per Share) (HK$ per Share)
(BlET) (BRET
Directors
-
Mr. Wu Bin — 14,780,000 = = 14,780,000 11/10/2018 HK$0.131 HK$0.119 11/10/2018 to
it —E)\F 0.131%7T 0.119%x 10/10/2019
TA+—H “E-\&TAT-RE
“Z-NETATH
Mr. Wu Xuze — 14,780,000 = = 14,780,000 11/10/2018 HK$0.131 HK$0.119 11/10/2018 to
RBEEE —EN\F 0.131% 7T 0.119%7T 10/10/2019
+A+—H “T-\f+AT-HZE
2 NEFTA+H
Employees in — 14,780,000 = = 14,780,000 11/10/2018 HK$0.131 HK$0.119 11/10/2018 to
aggregate —E-N\EF 0.131%x  0.119%1T  10/10/2019
EEAF +A+—H “Z-\§tA+-HZE
“T-NFTATH
Others in — 41,220,000 = = 41,220,000 11/10/2018 HK$0.131 HK$0.119 11/10/2018 to
aggregate “E-N\F 0131%x  0.119%m  10/10/2019
Htrast TA+T—H “E-\&TAT-RE
“Z-NETATH
Total - 85,560,000 - - 85,560,000
@t
Notes: st -
(1) Each of the option is granted for consideration of HK$ 1. 1) ShERERERERIBT-
[2)  The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjustment in case of 2) 1|Jq TR BE AR BEITR AR BIRAS H b 5E L2
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share CRIBERERE TR P AR o
capital.
(3)  Immediately vested. (3) BIEEFEB-

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had outstanding options to RZE— N\F+_A=+—H AR aERETEE
subscribe for up to 85,560,000 Shares as per share options granted TEEE 2 ERERT SN RTENERENRESS
under the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 4.82% of 85,560,000 B 17 - (R AF R A BB EHITRMHD L
the issued Shares as at the date of this annual report. There were no A482% - HE—"ZSE—NF+_A=+—HIEE &
share options exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the year ended 31 MmN sEsH R -

December 2018
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and the Company's chief
executive, and their respective associates had the following interests in
the Shares in and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have been taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code, or were required

fo be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant fo section

352 of the SFO:

Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHE@E

RZZB-NF+ZA=1+—R BEERARFAXENT
BABRBEEEENBHEARARR REEEEE
(E&EREHREE GOEXVER) &8 ) K 48 BE i 7
ToREAREBEESRAEHRGFEXNVIEE7 R8H (R
ERSEREFEZMBERINZFHEEEFELRR
BRENBEZENAR)IREBEFRETRHAEMEARF R
B P RIEE F LI E R E 352K AR BN A
RAFFENECMAOEDT D

TR B 17 52 A BA IR 40 BY R 2

Long position

#&
Approximate
percentage of
Total total number of
number of Shares and
Number of Number of Shares and underlying
Name of ordinary underlying underlying Shares in the
Director Capacity Notes Shares Shares Shares share capital
IR 17 % 16 B R 42
IR 17 & 6 B3 BEAERAH
BEEnR g7} Mzt EBERHE HEBERGOHE % 17 48 2 BHABEDL
Mr. Liu Kaijin Inferest in controlled corporation I 351,600,000 — 351,600,000 19.82%
21 57 #E 5 A NN EE ok X
Beneficial owner 35,559,000 — 35,559,000 2.00%
EmEE A
Ms. Zhou Shuhua  Inferest in spouse 2 387,159,000 — 387,159,000 21.83%
BRER L il B s
Mr. Wu Bin Beneficial owner 7,218,000 14,780,000 21,998,000 1.24%
X 5 4 EmEE A
Mr. Wu Xuze Beneficial owner — 14,780,000 — 0.83%
RIBZ L4 EmBEA A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying

Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. liv is the sole beneficial owner of Wangiji Llimited (“Wangiji’], a

company incorporated in the Brifish Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is the direct owner of 351,600,000 Shares. Further, Mr. Liu is the

beneficial owner of 35,559,000 Shares.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Director. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed fo be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the

Company including long position and short position.

Interests in associated corporations

Name of associated

4t
il
e H
Bk gl
paf

it

1. BEEREEERAR(HRE] —HREBRLES
HMARTIWERARDWNE-—EmEEA MEER
351,600,000 e (P I B EH A - beoh BIEAER
35,559,000 MMV EHEAR A -

2. AREIRAEENER BAR—RER-REES
FEIEGO AR BB RN EERENMBAR
A (BREFA MAR) A EE -

RAEBEZBENER

Long position

HR

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Name of Director corporation Capacity Notes Share capital shareholding
EREAEN
EEnS HEEE AR &4 et @S BAOBED
Mr. Liu Kaijin Wangji Beneficial owner ] 200 ordinary shares 100%

2IGE K £ At EmEAA 200 P & 3 Ak
Jiangsu Xingyu Beneficial owner ] Register capital of 100%

RMB39,315,800

L ok L EmERA & A

AR #39,315,8007T
Ms. Zhou Shuhua Wangji Inferest in spouse 2 200 ordinary shares 100%

JEREE 22 + A E il B s 200 Bk & 58 ik
Jiangsu Xingyu Interest in spouse 2 Register capital of 100%

RMB39,315,800

L #R B il B RN

AR 39 315,8007T

Notes: K et

1. Mr. Liu is the sole beneficial owner of the entire registered capital of Jiangsu
Xingyu. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are registered holders of 98.47% and 1.53%
in the registered capital in Jiangsu Xingyu respectively. The 1.53% interest
in the registered capital of Jiangsu Xingyu were held on frust by Ms. Zhou
for M. Liu pursuant fo a shareholding confirmation dated 12 July 2010.

2. Ms. Zhou is the spouse of Mr. Liu who is also a Direcfor. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhou is deemed to be interested in all interests of Mr. Liu in the
associated corporations including long positions and short position.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares (Continued)

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their associates had any inferests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation as at 31 December 2018 (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO lincluding interests and short positions which the Directors or chief
execufive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2018, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Directors, other than those set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this annual report, persons had inferests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required o be kept under
section 3306 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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BEXPEBEEN R_BE-NF+_RA=+—8H"
ARAEERTETHRABRBWENEABEABE
RARABHEFMBEBEZE(ERERBESF RBEEHF
XER) Bty - R SES T EERBEIE SIS
BEIRPIEXVEEE7 M8 &P A M & AR A R X AT
FAREXAR (BRARAEFTLEIZTHAER
BESIBEGRINZFERXREFXRRSEAORE
BmRAR)IBERSFRBME KO BEIS2EACTHER
ARAMBENECMOERMEDZSIOXR  RIRER
REFRIAMGARE RN EAEDESIORR -

EEREREATREGRABRS
m

RZE-NF+A=+—HB REZRTLHEE"
BARFRIEERTETHRASREN RHEER DA
BamlRBI—EBAREN  REESRBE RS
3BOIFAFEM B RMP AL EHNR AR R R KA
MENDTHEREREBEESRBEGAENVEHE2RIN
MARMARAEENREZIARZALOT

RGERE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity Note Shares holding

BRREB g4 Mt &t BR7EE BARET S

Wangji Beneficial owner 351,600,000 19.82%
AEE BEmEA A

Zhu Baolong Beneficial Owner 295,600,000 16.67%
REF EmEA A

Panijiang International Investment and Trading Co., Limifed Beneficial owner 171,120,000 9.65%
BIBKREEZESER AR E=E A

Jiangsu Baisite Environment Engineering Co., lid Beneficial Owner I 148,180,000 8.35%
IR FRETIEAGR AR E=EE A

Note : W -

1. Luck Morgan  Investment limited acts as nominee for Jiangsu  Baisite
Environment Engineering Co., ltd* fo hold 148,180,000 Shares.
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Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee

Details of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Comnmittee are set out in section headed "Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float
As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules based on the information

that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors of the Company.

Event after end of Reporting Period

For defails, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion

and Analysis” in this annual report.

Auditor

Moore Stephens CPA Limited was appointed as audifor of the Company
in place of CWC CPA limited with effect from 31 October 2018.

Moore Stephens CPA Llimited will refire and a resolution for their re-
appoiniment as auditor of the Company will be submitted af the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liv Kaijin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA DREDGING ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have auditfed the consolidated financial statements of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) sef out on pages
86 to 216, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated sfatement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of ifs consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 3% B AT ] ()

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the circumstances surrounding the failure by the Group
fo seffle the bonds when the bonds fell due for repayment on their maturity
date. As stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Nofe 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a

going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. This matter was addressed in the confext of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this
matter. In addition fo the matter described in the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the matter
described below fo be the key audit matter to be communicated in our
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matter

ARENER

B M % B AT R ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNAUEERERTEE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets

BREMRENEERHEEERE ((RACEERE] N ERBETE

We identified the assessment of loss allowance for expected credit
losses on frade receivables and confract assefs as a key audit
matter. The Group's trade receivables and confract assets mainly
arise from dredging, water management and marine related
businesses. The estimation of expected credit losses of these frade
receivables and confract assefs involved exercise of significant
judgement by management and high degree of esfimation
uncertainty.
BPBEREREANEERBEEBHRENEEREE G
BRAREFTEER  BEEENERERRGNEETE
RERZ KBEBRBBEEEL RERRERLE
WEEEREEBRMAE S REBRETRERHEIARR
fBIRH) il Et THEE M -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade receivables and
contract assets of RMB1,035,691,000 and RMB34,662,000 as
disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 respectively, and expected credit
losses in respect thereof of RMB243,182,000 and
RMB2,873,000 respectively were recognised as expense during
the year.

BHE_Z-N\F+ZA=+—H > BEEEEREREFERER
BEAR1,035691,0007T & A K #34,662,0007T 5 5l
WENHE21 222 HFEHEEEIE AR 243,182,000
TTRAR#2,873,000 IR BFARX °
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Our procedures in relation fo the evaluation of the assessment of
loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets included:
HMERAERKERRGNEERDBEEBENEEEE
FHEE AR B35

®  We obtained an understanding of the management's
process for credit risk assessment and impairment
assessment of allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and contract asses.

J BPRGHEEERMERERRENEERBE
EEBEREBETEERR M MRERTERIZN T

fig o

®  We fested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging of
trade receivables balances based on invoice date and
due date as at the end of the reporting period to the
underlying invoices.

) BMERREHARAEREZREZ BRI A MK
ORI 554 U PR R 4 B AR R B BRI -

o For the collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the
reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models, including the
model inputs, model design, model performance for
significant portfolios.

. IR —AEEREEEBE  RMAFME ESEREH
FEEBEEANGEN BREEREASHER
WA RARE  EARR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matter

HRESNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMEAOMNEEFERESFEE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets

BREMRENEERHEEEE ((RAEEERE] Y EREETE

The Group has applied a lifefime expected credit loss model in
determining the expected credit losses to be recognised in respect
of the trade receivables and contract assets during and as at the
end of the year. When defermining the amount of expected credit
losses to be recognised as af the end of the reporting period, the
management considered the risk of a default occurring on the trade
receivables and confract assefs as at the reporting date, taking into
account both quantitative and  qualitative  information  that is
reasonable and supportable, including hisforical experience (including
credit history and current credit worthiness of the customers) and
forward-looking information (including current market conditions)
that is available without undue cost or effort.
EEEEER2PRABEERERN EEFEHBRF
AREBURERRGNEERRNEREEEE -EERE
HAREHEEBRSER  BEEEEZRIRE A HREE
RRANEERLERNNRR TERAE EIMES
REUEEH BREEFTBERAIBHANTES 2ELYE
KR(EEEFEECHIIHBEETEL REEEHR
(BHEE R HMMR) o

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2017 were audited by another auditor who expressed

an

unmodified opinion with a material uncertainty paragraph about the

Group's ability fo confinue as a going concem on those financial

statements on 28 March 2018.
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We challenged whether historical experience is
representative of current circumstances and of the recent
losses incurred in the portfolios and assessed the
reasonableness of forward-looking adjustments, including
the economic variables and assumptions used in each of
the economic scenarios and their probability weightings.
Where changes had been made in model parameters and
assumptions, we evaluated the reasonableness of such
changes.
HMERELELRESRKRBAMARBEARKRE
AefHER UYHETREFENGEGE BES
BREBVAARBEZESE RBERLEATEEREE &
BA2HLRRET  HMAUFEEEEENSE
Mo

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures

relating to the Group's exposure to credit risks.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statfements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other informafion and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the direcfors either
intfend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 3% B AT ] ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resuHing from fraud is higher than for one resuHing
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, Forger\/, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsfances, but nof for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisfs related fo events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
confinue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisfs, we are required to draw affention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up fo the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group fo cease fo continue as
a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

o Evaluafe the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
under|ying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entifies or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audif opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. VWWe describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan, King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEakHEM2ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ=—F— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
K & AR¥T T ARBTTT
Revenue W 5 6 618,833 650,924
Operating cost B BN (497,112) (443,554
Cross profit = 7 121,721 207,370
Other income H g A 8 5,348 18,059
Allowance for expected credit losses AREEEEEE I (246,055) -
Other gains and losses, net H U e I B 1805 5E Q (14,701) 20,202
Marketing and promotion expenses MsEHEREERX (11,513) (8,291)
Administrative expenses TR X (52,063) (55,446
Increase in fair value of invesiment properties REWE R FEE M 19 17,400 =
Finance costs Bh & pk 2N 10 (52,482) (70,660)
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (E18), % F (232,345) 111,234
Income tax expense P8 Hi B X 12 (22,150) (39,030)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(ER), S 13 (254,495) 72,204
Other comprehensive expense Hih2EAxZ
llem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss B TEE o BEEER
HH
— Deficit on revaluation of properties under —DHREREMECHER
construction to investment properties W) 3 2 il S Al (22,400) -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year R E®E (FAX), WS 2% (276,895) 72,204
Total comprehensive (expense)/income THALTEGEZEFX), s
afttributable fo: i
Owners of the Company KATFAAE A (281,047) 71,040
Non-controlling inferests IR 4,152 1,164
(276,895) 72,204
(Loss)/earnings per share BR (&R, BT [®)
— basic (RMB cents) —ERNAR%ES) (18.46) 4.80
— diluted (RMB cents) —#E(ARES) (18.46) 4.80
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—N\F+_-_BF=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt zF AR® T AR T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 17 1,457,160 1,575,766
Prepaid land lease payments FET - FE A9 7K 18 92,398 95,190
Investment properties "EYE 19 470,786 413,194
Goodwill EES 201 201
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ENKEYE  BERERED
plant and equipment B 13,153 12,366
Deferred tax assets REFLTEE B 20 98,332 103,323
Other intangible assets Hth & B 4,083 4,417
Trade and other receivables due affer one year — 18 B B ) e W BR R
H i s 5K 21 1,908 70,595
Confract assets EHEE 22 34,662 =
2,172,683 2,275,052
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepaid land lease payments FET - FE A9 R 18 2,908 2,908
Trade and other receivables and prepayments JE Ut BR 7k % EL b I MR A K2
SERNES 21 1,125,061 1,240,324
Bank balances and cash RITHEREIRE 23 48,435 69,505
1,176,404 1,312,737
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAE
Trade and other payables & 151 BR R Ko HL fth J& 1R 24 378,433 368,783
Amounts due fo directors of the Company JERARFIESZFIA 25 6,933 9,602
Amounts due to non-controlling inferests of & — R B B8 & R FE4E AR
a subsidiary TE 25 B 7R I8 26 1,764 1,838
Tax payable JE S 17 38 102,083 88,480
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 324,670 371,192
Other borrowings HiEE 28 54,526 64,527
Bonds payable FES & A5 29 254,916 230,378
Contract liabilities EHEaE 22 22,136 —
1,145,461 1,134,800
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 30,943 177,937
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e MBARR K&

At 31 December 2018 R=—Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

ff i AR®T T ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZAE&EERABHER 2,203,626 2,452 989
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRGEE
Share capital B& X 30 149,577 123,483
Reserves EE 1,783,846 2,056,923
Equity affributable to owners of the Company KA R FTE A JFER A 1,933,423 2,180,406
Non-controlling inferests JE 2= I 2 155,203 156,844
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,088,626 2,337,250
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBAE
Amounts due to non-controlling inferests of FE A — E M B A A IR
a subsidiary R IAE 26 69,711 68,252
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 20 11,034 12,651
Other borrowings HiEE 28 34,255 34,836
115,000 115,739
2,203,626 2,452,989

The consolidated financial stafements on pages 86 to 216 were HRELOE2ICEMGEUBRIENZZE-—NE=
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 A-t+/\BEEFgARKENE YHTIAL

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE
LIV KAUIN ZHOU SHUHUA
2IBAE JBRE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended

31 December 2018 HiZE=—E—N\E+=-_A=+—HILtEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRFREAER
Property PRC Share Non-
Share Share revaluation statutory Other  options Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  profits Total interests Total
WEEMH H
BREA  ROEE e EERE HtHE BRERE BEE @i FERES @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'0OOO  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
[notes i] [nofes i)
(Hiai) (i)
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+F—F—A 123,483 922,980 = 19,658 204,554 — 838,691 2109366 160,136 2,269,502
Profit and total comprehensive 4 3% % &
income for the year PENGERE - - - - - - 71,040 71,040 1,164 72,204
Dividend paid o non- SN A 3
controlling interests R E - - - - - - - - 4,456) (4,456)
At 31 December 2017 and R=F—+F+=-F=
1 January 2018 +—-RAE-E-N\E
—A—-A 123,483 922,980 = 19,658 204,554 — 909731 2180406 156,844 2,337,250
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)/ B - - - - - —  (258,647)  (258,647) 4152 (254,495)
Deficit on revaluation of PEERENF R
properies under constiuction  ¥1% 2 E & B 4
fo investment properies — — (22,400) — — — — [22,400) — [22,400)
Tofal comprehensive income & (9 2 [ M 2 48 58
for the year 123,483 922,980 (22,4000 19,658 204,554 — 651,084 1,899,359 160,996 2,060,355
Dividend paid o non- YT IEERES
confrolling inferesfs HRE - - - - - - - - (5,793) (5,793)
Equitysetled sharebased A% & B B9 R 1D 2 4
payments (nofe 41 (Ktz41) - - - - - 2752 - 2752 - 2752
Placement of new shares HRIAEE (i£30)
[note 30) 26,004 5218 - - - - - 31,312 - 31,312
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F
+-A=+—-H 149,577 928,198 (22,4000 19,658 204,554 2752 651,084 1933423 155203 2,088,626
Notes: HiaE -

(i)

According to the Arficles of Association of subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), a portion of the profit after taxation of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is required fo be transferred to a PRC
statutory reserve before distribution of a dividend to their equity owners. The
fransfer can cease when the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be
applied either to sef off accumulated losses or to increase capital of the
respective subsidiaries.

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of its
subsidiaries and the paidin capital of RMB39,316,000 of the PRC
Operational Entity (as defined in Note 39) pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 201 1.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ=—F— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
et AR¥T T ARBTTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETFTH
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B18), 5 5 (232,345) 111,234
Adjustments for: BRF BRI E
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEREBITE 104,949 101,398
Allowance for expected credit losses BHEEEERE I 246,055 -
Amortisation of intangible assefs B EESH 334 333
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TE A 4 3t 30 & FREE 8 2,792 2,792
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE R&BYE
equipment - (1,520)
Fair value change on invesiment properties REMERTEE 19 (17,400) =
Finance costs B & Ak 2N 10 52,482 70,660
Interest income ME WA (1,840) (8,180)
Unrealised exchange loss (gain) ANEBEHEBEE(KHR) 14,701 (18,682)
Equity-settled share-based payments NERERN G T 4] 2,752 =
Operating cash flows before movements in working %8 & & & B) fi & EH &
cgpitcﬂ mE 172,480 258,029
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables & U B FX 5 L FE Uk 3%
(3 n),m (60,058) 29,576
Increase in contract assets B HEEEM (37,536) -
Increase/(decrease) in frade and other payables & {5 B 3k & H b & £ 3%
#m,/ Cr 4) 10,499 (17,274)
Increase in contract liabilities B H B EEM 22,136 -
Cash generated from operations LBEBREMNIRS 107,521 270,331
PRC income tax paid BT Bl AT 1S (5,173) (82,813)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EHMEH S FE 102,348 187,518
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEEREB 17 (48,935) (100,713)
Deposit (paid) refunded for acquisition of property, BLURKEEHI % - B &= & &R &
plant and equipment () REIMZ S (787) 73,276
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and LEWE - BERZBERSE
equipment IR - 64,427
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REREE R RITER - 15,000
Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land HEMRE T MATE A - 7,395
Inferest received SN 168 266
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

MERERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEZT—N\F+ A=+ —HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

ff i AR®T T ARBTTT

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REZTH (A MBRESFESH

ACTIVITIES (49,554) 59,651
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank borrowings raised FILEITEE 364,670 485,215
Advance from directors of the company REARB —BEEHNET

E Q] 79,704 3,310

New other borrowings raised MIBEHMEE 25,680 11,877
Advance from non-controlling interests of K E — BB A F ) FEE R

a subsidiary T2 B X FRIE 5,650 640
Proceeds received from share placements &% 15 B2 & P15 3K 38 30 31,312 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERBITEE (411,192) (599,238)
Repayment to directors of the company BEARNRNREFRIEA (82,373) (22,188
Inferest paid 21~ 5 2 (18,565) (28,7906)
Repayment of bonds B A5 29 (19,207) (42,483)
Repayment of other borrowings BEAMEE (36,262) (13,4306)
Repayment to non-controlling interests of ) — [ BT 8 & ] &Y FE 2 AR

a subsidiary R EENIA (7,488) (2,609)
Dividend payment to non-controlling interests of e — e Y 8 2 B e JE R AR

a subsidiary 1 25 2 SRR B (5,793) (4,456)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REZDFARSFE

ACTIVITIES (73,864) (212,164)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND H&RESZEY L) M

CASH EQUIVALENTS B E (21,070) 35,005
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENHRERBEZEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 69,505 34,500
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERNBALRRESZEY

END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY MRTEGSRES

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 48,435 69,505

Annual Report 2018 91 —E2—N\FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

1.

General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).The Company's immediate and ultimate holding
company is Wangiji Limited, a limited company incorporated in
the Brifish Virgin Islands, which is ultimately and wholly owned by
Mr. Liv Kaijin ("Mr. Liv"), who is the Execufive Director and
Chairman of the Company. The Company's registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and ifs principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 1501-2, 15/F., Siu
On Plaza, 482 Jaffe Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company acfs as an investment holding company and the
particulars of ifs subsidiaries are sef out in Note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had
not seftled the Bonds as defined in Note 29, when the Bonds fell
due for repayment on 21 June 2018 and remained overdue for
repayment as at the end of the reporting period. On 15 March
2019, the Company and CITIC Capifal China Access Fund
Llimited (the “Bondholder” or “CITIC") entered into the sixth
amendment agreement [the “Sixth Amendment Agreement’) to
further amend the terms and conditions of the Bonds, pursuant fo
which the Bondholder agreed to extend the due date for
repayment of the Bonds. Under the lafest of these amendment
agreements, the Company needs to repay the principal amount of
the Bonds of approximately HK$290,000,000 (equivalent tfo
approximately RMB254,916,000) together with the inferest
amount due by 20 December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

The conditions described above indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability fo confinue as a going concemn and hence, ifs
ability to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the consolidated financial
stafements were prepared based on the assumption that the Group
can be operated as a going concem as the Directors are of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations in the next twelve months from 31 December 2018,

after taking info consideration of the following:

(1) The Group contfinues to generate cash inflows from its
operafing acfivities by implementing measures fo tighten cost
controls over various operating expenses in order fo improve
its cash flows position and to generate greater positive cash

inflows from its operations in the future;

(2)  Since most of the bank borrowings as at 31 December
2018 of RMB324,670,000 were secured by the Group's
assets, the Directors believe that it is highly probable that
they can be renewed in the next twelve months; and

(3) As af 31 December 2018, the Group has unufilised
banking facilities of RMB80,330,000 which will be

available for use by the Group in the next twelve months.

On the basis of the above considerations, the Directors believe that
the Group can satisfy its financial obligations in the foreseeable
future and accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to 3.
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"]

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants ["HKICPA") for the first ime in the current year:

HKFRS @ Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRICHnt 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments fo HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Impacts and changes in accounting policies
on application of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments
In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS @
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS @ introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabiliies, 2) expected credit
losses ("ECL") for financial assets and 3) general hedge

accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(ll H

RSs”

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
on application of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS @ in accordance with the
fransiion provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and  measurement requirements  (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively fo instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
fo instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounfs as at |
January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits
and other components of equity, without restating

comparafive information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative informafion was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(ll H

RSs”

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
on application of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
lincluding bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables, and contract assets). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL represents that ECL
that will result from all possible defoult events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to resulf from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific o the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
condifions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifeime ECL for trade and
other receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

As at 31 December 2017, impairment loss allowance of
RMB437,777,000 has been recognised and no additional
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables has
been recognised as at 1 January 2018 against retained

profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(ll H

RSs”

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
on application of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
interpretations.

the related

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 refrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate] and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the fransition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected fo apply the Standard refrospectively
only fo confracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 Revenue.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

o Provision of capital and reclamation dredging services
and related consulfation services

®  Provision of dredging or water management services
or consfructions for promoting environmental inferests
and water quality

° Provision of marine hoisting, installation, salvaging,
vessel chartering and other engineering services

o Provision of management and leasing of a shopping
mall and the construction of a hotel

Information about the Group's performance obligation and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in Note 6 and Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

(ll H

(Continued)

3. Application of New and Amendments to 3. EAHARKEITINEBE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BRBREERN(EBMEREE

RSs”) (Continued) /\IJ J) (#8)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are B R A F E RS &R AT R

mandatorily effective for the current year 1T & 8 B 35 8 & 2 Al )

3.2 Impacts and changes in accounting policies 32 EREBUMBEREEINEISH
on application of HKFRS 15 Revenue from [EHEFHNENELENKEINE
Contracts with Customers (Continued) ABENEEREEH @

Summary of effects arising from initial application BEXAERAEBUIEREEREISE
of HKFRS 15 EENEEHNE
The following adjusiments were made to the amounts ATHREDER-_ZF-N\F—H B84
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EMBRARERNESBIEL - A&
position at 1 January 2018. Lline items that were not EENIEB I ARFTA
affected by the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
LRI 28RN BREEBUBR
—E—iF HEBEIS5HER
+=—A=+—H —Z2-N\F¥—A
B9 AR B EFoRE —HNREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBTTT
Non-current assets FEMEN B E
Trade and other receivables due  — £ 1% ZI| £ # & Uk BR
after one year X B H At W R
— Refention receivables — EBlRES 59,098 (59,098 =
Contract assefs ABRAEE — 59,098 59,098
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FERBR R R E At
F& 5 5K
— Receipts in advance — TR FRIE 17,014 (17,014) -
Contract liabilities EHBE — 17,014 17,014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(ll H

RSs”

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
on application of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

As at 1 January 2018, retention receivables of
HK$59,098,000 are conditional on the satisfaction of the
service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts, and such balance was
reclassified from frade and other receivables fo confract
assets.

As at 1 January 2018, advances from cusfomers of
RMB17,014,000 related to the consideration received for
Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business and
Environmental Protection Dredging and Water Management
Business which was previously included in trade and other
payables. These balances were reclassified fo contract
liabilities included in trade and other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January
2018 upon application of HKFRS 15.

Other than the adjustment made as described above, there
is no material impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on the
accumulated profits at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meetfs, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations other
than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties
under construction (i.e. a change in use is not limited fo
completed properties).

At the datfe of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions
existing at that date. There is no impact fo the classification
at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16 leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HK(IFRIC)H-nt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS @ Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and ifs
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Amendments to Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Setflement!

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-erm Inferests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or affer the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a dafe fo be
determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

3. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the direcfors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 infroduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 leases and the
related inferprefations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the fransfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distincfions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a rightof-
use assef and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for shorterm leases and leases of low
value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The rightof-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured af cost (subject fo certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
inferest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation fo leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relafion to lease
liability will be allocated info a principal and an inferest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-ofuse assets separately or within the same line
ifem af which the corresponding underlying assefs would be

presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable tfo
lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and confinues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance

lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H RSs” (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018,
operating lease commitments of HK$404,000 as disclosed in

the Group has non-cancellable

Note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-ofuse assef and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or shorterm leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB145,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of RMB70,000 as rights and obligations under leases o
which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right fo use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments fo refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of rightof-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance lease

payments.

The application of the new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable fo provide a reasonable estimate of
the financial effect until the Directors of the Company complefe a
detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured af fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants af the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group fakes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
it market participants would take those characteristics info account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is defermined on such a basis,
except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 leases and HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Invenfories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial assef takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the assef in its highest and best use or by selling
it fo another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For investment properties which are fransacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inpufs is fo be used fo
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation fechnique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

fechnique equals the transaction price.

In addition,

measurements are categorised info Level

for financial reporting purposes, fair value
1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree fo which the inputs fo the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs fo the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

o level 2 inpufs are inputs, other than quoted prices included

within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

J level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including sfructured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved where the Company:
®  has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability fo use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dafe when the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to have confrol over

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and o the non-controlling
inferests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed
fo the owners of the Company and fo the non-controlling inferests
even if this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit

balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries fo bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating fo transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling inferests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders fo a proportionate share of net assets

of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

106

4.

FESTEE @)

REEE @)

HMEFERBABER LR =EEG#EEZER —
BRALHAEY AEESEHNTEERS
EHRIRETT -

MEARNGEAEARRASERSAEHEMNER
BIMEHIERERLG - RBM S FAMBERH
EWMBRARMNKARFAX T B ANEERGES
BOBHEF A AGEEEREMEEKER "
BEEAKBETHBERNEHNBRARNRRARL -

BakEt2ERENEEEEDEBERAR
BAMAARFERER MEARANZEKE
RERBRARAIMBEARFERES  BIE
HRESEY TP ESELBAER -

RULER BEMBARA NPT BERERELA
B ULSBRENSEREARNEB M ER
— o

FRAKEKEBZRAXZNAESREAR AR A
MEEREBRE #zZ WA XHEASRER

1A B B 2 W] B FF 4% BCAE 5 8 32 00 AN AR [ X Y R
RARERS BEREZJAEEER BT
BEARBRRZEHBHBRRFEELIM
EEHYHER -

REITRRRIZR AR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
fested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than ifs carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated fo the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generafing unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. VWhen the Group disposes
of an operafion within the cash-generating unit, the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit refained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE —T—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE

4, FEEFHE @

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised unfil there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses

the related costs for which the grants are intended fo compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transition in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as| a
performance obligation is safisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is fransferred fo the cusfomer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service [or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transition in note 3) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference fo the progress fowards complefe safisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the cusfomer confrols as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alfernative use fo the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in fime when the
cusfomer obtains control of the disfinct good or service.

A confract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has fransferred to a
cusfomer that is nof yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In confrast, a receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A confract liability represents the Group's obligation fo transfer
goods or services fo a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due] from the
customer.

A contract asset and a confract liability relating fo a confract are
accounted for and presenfed on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transition in note 3) (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

Where revenue is recognized over fime, the progress fowards
complefe satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the confract, that best depict the

Group's performance in fransferring control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For confracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be enfitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
fransaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncerfainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated fransaction price (including updating ifs assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances in the normal cause of
business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided in the

normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Inferest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactily discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s nef carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of services or administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress as described below) are sfated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cosfs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
cafegories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same
basis as other property assefs, commences when the assefs are
ready for their infended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owneroccupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease
payments) at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to refained

profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed af the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

esfimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fo arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is defermined as the difference between the sales proceeds and

the carrying amount of the assef and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or
for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cosf, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use [i.e. when they are in the location and condifion
necessary for them to be capable of operafing in the manner

intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under consfruction for

such purposes).

Investment properties under construction are initially measured af
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Construction cosfs incurred for
investment properties under consfruction are capitalised as part of

the carrying amount of the investment properties under construction.

Subsequent fo complefion of consfruction of invesiment properties,
invesiment properties are measured using their fair value model.
Cains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
invesiment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from ifs disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order fo determine the extent of the

impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible fo estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be idenfified, corporate assets are also allocated fo individual
cash-generating unifs, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted o their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset (as a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generafing unif] is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately in profit

or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cosh-generoﬁng unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been defermined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Renfal income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease ferm, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is

accounted as an operating lease.

Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relafive fair values of the
leasehold inferests in the land element and building element af

initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid land lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straightline basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally classified as

finance lease under property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
enfity, fransactions in currencies other than the entfity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised af the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seflement of monetary items,
and on the refranslation of monetfary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
fake a substantial period of fime to get ready for their infended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assefs are substantially ready for their infended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments fo defined confribution schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entfifling them to
the contributions. For forfeited contributions that are not vest fully, if

any, may be used to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Payments made fo sfatemanaged refirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent fo those

arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benéfit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing fo employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting

any amount already paid.

liabilities recognised in respect of other longterm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, inferest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except fo the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on faxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that
are faxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using fax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Annual Report 2018 117

4.

MHBEERMNZERRERBE A K TN
MABRBENECRTUER -MEREHNEER
MR BFAX  EECFAMHREERS
BREXAFHENFTABEEKRARBRSI -

BEDRELATRERENERN(WIERT S F
BREBR)AREAS XN EBRETER -

REMEHARERMNAERN B BRAKERR
BRANBEEBEREAMAREREHBNOG
AAARRBEEREMNRENE - BRBERAE - FE
REFFEMELENBBEREENENZ(Y
ERSTHR EEMEEMBRERNRE
MESAFRET ABERASAERSIN -

Bt IH
P MM e R BB AR EH B AR -

Bl 8 B 1E

A EMNRETDRFARERTD N E - ER
BadEFeBE R EMEEKERT IE2R
BBR AT (BB EA AR TR EEMF
ERERRB R AR BAIFATIEB R ERBR
RABROBEEMB - ASBENNHHBEEET
BEBREMRCETHER LEETHR K

B o
ZAF

—B-\EFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Confinued)

Deferred Tax

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all faxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assefs are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assefs and liabilities are nof
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assefs and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able fo control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to ufilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset o be recovered.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled,
or the asset is realised based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Confinued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, af the end of the reporting period, to recover or

seffle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilifies.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
enfirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is fo consume substantially of the economic benefits embodied in

the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right fo set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and when they relate fo income faxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group infends fo seftle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or direcily in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equitysefiled share-based payments fo employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity insfruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-setled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking info consideration all
non-markef vesting conditions is expensed on a straightline basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share opfions reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises ifs esfimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

120

4.

FESTBE @

IR AD 32 A+

URERZEROXNRS
BRFETIHERE

A8 TR AR GOEBUR 5 10 2 b A £ {6 1 A48
HEEERHIG RETEMSTARTEET

o

fein

NEGEEROHXNHNRAFERRTREE -
RARERBFBNRMERBIGM  BREREERA
SESEREBNER T ENMGTARER
P - B (RERRE M) UM ESE I - MBS &
IR AEEESENAAERBIETSEBIGME
At ENTEMBENES TAHRE G -8
B ERMEE (B BRANER UERE
X RSB ET - WA BEBRERE -

HEERRRIZERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E =%

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade dafe basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are inifially measured af
fair value except for frade receivables arising from contracts with
cusfomers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
affributable fo the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
affributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
esfimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
poinfs paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, fo the net carmying amount

on initial recognition.

Inferest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued) 4., FESHHEm
Financial instruments (Continued) €@ I AW
Financial assets TREE
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TREESPEREEN 2 (REBEMEIB
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with BEEAEBYEREENFIR 2%)
transitions in note 3)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently FEUTIEEN SR EERBIRBHEKATE
measured at amortised cost:
e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e SREEANKBRAENBESRABEEMNE
objective is o collect contractual cash flows; and BEXhEE &
e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash o EHAREEEBHBHRESR 2P AKRE
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on BARSRERS R BEMZK -
the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently BFATIHBENSREEREBHIEAFEBETA
measured at FVTOCI: Hih2H W ametE
o the financial asset is held within a business model whose o CREEANAKRDRENRERNEREES
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash MEEENEENEBEAEE &
flows and selling; and
e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash o PREENEGAHBRARIEERREEAE
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on BENAERAREELREHNFENESR
the principal amount outstanding. =
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, FrEEMmEmEER KRR QAT EF AR
except that af the date of initial application/initial recognition of a EERVBRER ViEERAcHEEE AR
financiol asset the Group may irrevocably elect fo present Gho I ER E W IEHEE F i B 5 T R R
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if ERMBERELENFIFEFSHERNELRS
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor confingent BERFER B ANRIE - ANE B[] A O i e
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination BREME2EAKZT 27 BRELEATLTENH
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies. BEH) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for frading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

on inifial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of shortferm profitiaking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset

that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently af
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated creditimpaired financial
assets, inferest income is calculated by applying the effective
inferest rate fo the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
creditimpaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effectfive interest rate
fo the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the defermination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9@ (including trade
receivables and confract assets). The amount of ECL is updated af
each reporting date fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrasf, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected fo result from default events that are
possible within 12 months affer the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for facfors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The CGroup always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and confract assefs without significant financing component. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix

with appropriate groupings.

For all ofher instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifefime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 124

4, FEEFHE @

€@ T A @)

EREE @)
EREEREBE(RERE BV KRS ER
FOWBMIBMHEINEERE)
AEBMBIBIEE B ERELBEORAT LR
BEHLREE(BERKEZXRANEE)NAE
BEEEERAFERE EHEEEENS
BEREREANTUFTHIURBR B MBER
8 1 15 B L B

FEARNEREEERERAH T ARMS
HAMANENENEHBEENTEREES
BB T_EAABRREEER(T_MEAR
HEEBBEDERREBEHE T @B AT
BENBNEHRBEENZT S FESNBA
BHEERR - ASEERBEELEEEE
RRKTE YREBABERE  BREH
RENA RN HRE B H8E AR & B &R ER
MR EL AR -

AEE-BERBEERNREKD KB R RIARER
FEOARNEHEEESR ZSEENRYE
EEBNRABEREHRNER AET ARG
R/ZRABAAEMARNNBEEREETERET
i o

B BEEMTAME  AEEAEERREES
RT-—EABEMEEER RIFEFEERRE
MR ERARBEE L7 AIA S ERERFES
MW EREEER RERBERFENBNE
HEEBEDRESNHRBERAREEZON
A] REVE Bk A B FR A LT M AT A o

HEERRRIZERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E =%

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

(i

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forwardHooking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken info account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deferioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rafing;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability fo

meet its debt obligations;

e an aclual or expected significant deferioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

e an aclual or expected significant adverse change in

the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt

obligafions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

)

B 75 R 2R Y & (D

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

(i

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined fo have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (i)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt insfrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

'investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used fo identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate fo
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed
infernally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking info account any collaterals held by the

Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E =%

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information fo demonstrate that a more lagging default
criferion is more appropriafe. For contracts with large sfate-
owned enterprise or local government, the Group would
assess the exposure individually taking info consideration
specific facts and circumstances in considering when an

event of default has occurred.

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events
of default that have o defrimental impact on the esftimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable dafa about the following eventfs:

[a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

[b) @ breach of confract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's financia

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a

concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

[d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enfer

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

le) the disappearance of an acfive market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

)

B 75 R 2R Y & (D

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

(iv)

v)

Writeoff policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no redlistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has enfered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of frade receivables, when the
amounts are over three vears past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assefs written off may still be subject o
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures. A writeoff consfitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a funcfion of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a defaul) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on hisforical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due fo the Group in accordance with the
confract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at inifial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E =%

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the customer basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed
for expected credit losses on an individual basis);

° Pastdue status;
° Noature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credif ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the consfituents of each group continue fo share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Inferest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial assef is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

The Group's financial assets represent as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the

financial assefs and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rafe that exactly discounts esfimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts| through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest income is recognised on an effective

interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assefs are assessed for indicators of impairment atf the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in inferest

or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enfer bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

Impairment loss for loans and receivables are assessed on an

individual basis.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference befween the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset's original effective inferest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When an trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries

of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss fo the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial assef, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity insfruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the confractual arrangements entered info and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity insfrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group affer deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity insfruments issued by the Company are recognised af the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts| through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
inferest basis.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

132

4.

FESTEE @)

/T AW

ERWMEE @)

ERMBEERE (&)
MREEBEREBRSERY MR H
REBRREBEMNEHAEEBE A EA®
ZHREFEERERERD  HRIEERE
BREEAMEESETSBBETERIR
1 801 5% T FE 7T 10 8 S5 A AN o

RIETER
EEEBEERDNBESRENEGNENER X
cREECERMASBECKZREEREE
MEASMOIEREENHRERES B A&
ELheRIBRERSRMEE -

REIERCREER  EENKREEES K
REKKEAFENANENZE  $RERF

THAEERESRTH
PEREBRBRAE

SEEBETHOEY RESTATDREMAH
ANBHNATREBABERSTANES
HERLBMAERBA -

EmTHA
BaTARAEARASEEELNGEMSA
EERNFBESNEMNALN - REBELT
B4 s T B HE R 5 P R B0 AT A5 R0 (R BR B 2
BATAA) e

BB EE
ERNMBZEDNFEEBARS R A BE#HEKA
RAOBMBFAXMIE - BEEMNE TR 2 #
AEREHBENEAFHI(WER) REH
ARG RRREE XN (BRBRERN XA
KRB OMIX N RBBRANAEFEERES
RSN R E M (B 39T R ) R RS R = BREDF
BOAE - FEHAXRERNEEEER -

HEERRRIZERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including frade and other payables,
amounts due fo direcfors of the Company, amounts due to non-
controlling inferests of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other
borrowings and bonds payable) are subsequently measured af

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. A substantial modification of the ferms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition

of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rafe, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or medification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part
of the gain or loss on the exfinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when

such difference is less than 10 per cent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

4.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Confinued)
Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under
HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do nof
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated af the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted af the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are

amortised over the remaining term.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognifion, at the point of modification, the carrying
amount of the relevant financial liabilities is revised for directly
affributable transaction costs and any consideration paid fo or
received from the counterparty. The effective interest rate is then
adjusted fo amortise the difference between the revised carrying
amount and the expected cash flows over the life of the modified

instrument.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered fo be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The esfimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving esfimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated  financial statements and the results, assets and
liabilities of the PRC Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are
consolidated with other group entities.

Consolidation of a structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign invesfors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which
owns vessels for conducting dredging business in the PRC.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC (as defined in Note 39), the
PRC Operational Entity (as defined in Note 39) and its respective
equity participants, being Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou Shuhua ("Ms.
Zhou"), the spouse of Mr. Liu, entered into the Contractual
Arrangements (as defined in Note 39). The PRC Operational Entity
and ifs subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in Note 39.

The Direcfors, affer consulting legal opinion, are of the view that
the terms of the Confractual Arrangements have in substance
enabled Xiangyu PRC fo have the ability and right to direct the
relevant activities fo obtain variable refurns from its involvement
with the PRC Operational Enfity and its subsidiaries, and fo have
free ability to use its power to affect its returns, despite the absence
of formal legal equity interest held by the Group therein.
Accordingly, the PRC Operational Entity is treated as a subsidiary
of the Company, and the results, assets and liabilities of the PRC
Operational Entity and its subsidiaries are consolidated together
with other group entities as if they were wholly owned by the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key 5. RS HERMAT AABE

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Confinued)

Consolidation of a structured entity (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, with reference to legal opinion, the
Contractual Arrangements are in compliance with the existing PRC
laws and regulations are valid, binding and legally enforceable,
and do not result in any violation of PRC laws or regulations
currently in effect in all material respects. However, uncertainties in
the PRC legal system could cause the Group's current Contractual
Arrangements Structure to be found in violation of any existing
and/or future PRC laws or regulations and could limit the
Company's ability, through Xiangyu PRC, to enforce its rights and
power over the PRC Operational Entity under the Contractual
Arrangements.

The operation of the Group was substantially derived from the PRC
Operational Entity and its subsidiaries. If the current structure or any
of the Contractual Arrangements were found fo be in violation of
PRC Lows and regulations, the Group may be subject to pendlies,
which in the future may include but not be limited to, the
cancellation or revocation of the Group's business and operating
licenses, being required tfo restructure the Group's operations or
discontinue the Group's operating acfivities. The imposition of any
of these or other penalties may result in a material and adverse
effect on the Group's ability to conduct its operations. In such case,
the Group may not be able to operate or control the PRC
Operational Entity and its subsidiaries, which may result in
deconsolidation of it.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E =%

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
po||C|es (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the Direcfors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properies, the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group's investment
properties has been measured based on the tax consequences of

recovering the carrying amounts enfirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

Estimates of fair values of investment properties
As described in Nofe 19, investment properties are measured at
fair value at the end of reporting period using income capitalised
approach by independent professional valuers. Such valuations
are based on certain assumptions, which are subject o uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgment and are safisfied that the assumptions used in the
valuation reflect market condition. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC, the
estimate of fair value of investment properties may be significantly
affected. As af 31 December 2018, invesiment properties of
approximately RMB470,786,000 (2017: RMB413,194,000)
are measured using income capitalised approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

5.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

ECL allowances for trade receivable and contract
assefs

Management regularly assesses the loss allowances for expected
credit losses on trade receivables and confract assefs and
recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract asses.
Allowances for these receivables and contract assefs are made
based on evaluation of ECL for frade receivables and confract
assets and involve exercise of management’s judgments, which are
made by reference fo the estimation of the future cash flows
discounted at the original effective inferest rate to calculate the
present value. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these debtors, including their
current creditworthiness and the risk of default occurring on debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings. The assessmenf on the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of trade receivables and contract
assefs are approximately RMB1,035,691,000 and
RMB34,662,000 respectively, net of impairment loss allowance
of approximately RMB680,959,000 and RMB2,873,000

respectively.

Estimated useful life and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Dredgers and plant and machinery included in property, plant and
equipment are depreciated over their useful lives. The assessment
of estimated useful lives and residual values are matters of
judgement based on the experience of the Group, taking info
account factors such as technological progress, conditions of the
dredgers and plant and machinery and changes in market
demand. Useful lives and residual values are periodically reviewed
for continued appropriateness. Due fo the long useful lives of the
dredgers and plant and machinery, changes fo the estimates used
can affect the amount of depreciation fo be charged fo profit or
loss in each reporting period and consequently affect their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period. There was no change in
the estimated useful lives or residual values of property, plant and

equipment for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. Revenue 6. Wz
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RARFAHHMKREED
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Segments 7 &

Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business EEREBIA X 165,960 281,589

Environment Protection Dredging and IRIRET &2 K75 B B 7%

Water Management Business 115,646 130,223
Other Marine Business Hith)gE X 327,451 232,572
Property Management Business MEBEER 9.776 6,540

618,833 650,924
Timing of revenue recognition U 25 B 3R B Bs
At point in time HE — B B - -
Over time W B 618,833 650,924
Total #Et 618,833 650,924

The Group has a right fo consideration from ifs cusfomers in an REBAEAZRPNNSEHEHAAERLS
EEEANENEFEESENRE - AR

AEEBERFRHEAEZIENS BRI /ER

amount that corresponds directly with the value fo the customers of
the Group's performance completed to date. As the Group bills ifs

customers a fixed amount based on each portion of dredging
works provided, the Group recognises revenue based on the
amount it has a right to invoice.

The Group recognises revenue on the basis of the volume of
dredging works performed and delivered to customers. The
measurements of value of the dredging works transferred to
customers are directly invoiced based on a quantitative measure of
dredging, that is, a unit price for the material dredged per cubic
meter is set forth in the confracts with customers and therefore the
revenue is recognised based on the amount invoiced. As the
Group's performance creates an assef that customer simultaneously
receives and consumes, this method provides a faithful depiction of

the transfer of an asset to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

6.

Revenue (Continued)

The fransaction price of the Group is defermined upon
esfablishment of the contract that contains the unit price for the

quantity dredged for dredging projects.

Confract modifications are changes in the scope or price (or both)
of a contract that are approved by the parties to the contract. The
Group recognises a contract modification when the parties fo a
contract approve a modification that either creates new, or
changes existing, enforceable rights and obligations of the parties
fo the confract. Confract modifications are included in the
fransaction price only if it is probable that the modification estimate
will not result in a significant reversal of revenue. The nature of the
Group's contracts seldom give rise to contract modifications based
on historical information and thus confract modifications are nof

roufine in the performance of the Company’s contracts.

The majority of the Company’s confracts have an original duration
of less than one vear, the practical expedient for contracts with
durations of one year or less is applied and therefore does not

consider the effects of the time value of money.

Summary of the effect of HKFRS 15 on contract balances are
detailed in Note 3.2 and Note 22.

An analysis of revenue from cusfomers contributing over 10% of the

Croup's fofal revenue for the year is as follows:

6.

AEENRZGERILEEHEABEREZEN
EENAHNRERE -

BHEREENTOTHENANBENE
R(AME)NEE - ARBERAOITOTHE
MBRKBEEANITNTHIRBAIRTERN EE
BEEIBEREKNER] - EEEIR[TH
REERRRBEATIENBRT  AOEBF AT
AARGEAN - REBEBEER  AKENEHME
BRI BESNETNERL Bt 80ERT
FHERRBEITELHER -

ARRBREOEHNNRBMELS —FUAR - L&
HRA—FHATHENRAAITER X
A TrEEEERHEEENTE -

BREMBRSENEISREENERNOTER

SR ARSI P 5 3.2 R B Rt 22 o

REERBBASEEERAKSIOINEEH
Wam DR -

2018 2017
=E-NF —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AR T T
Customer A =ZEA
—Environmental Profection Dredging and Water — — BRIRER & R K75 & I8 £ 75
Management Business 66,499 66,607
Customer B =FB
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business —HEERBEBRAFER N/A R~EHA 71,820
Customer C ®PC
— Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business — HEREGIARED N/A ~EH 68,603

Note: Customers B and C did not contribute over 10% of the Group's tofal
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. No other
cusfomers contributed over 10% of the Group's total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

7. Operating Segments

The Group defermines ifs operating segments based on the reports

reviewed by the Executive Directors of the Company who are also

the chief operating decision makers ("CODM”), that are used fo

make strategic decisions. Information reported to the chief

operating decision makers is based on the different nature of

projects carried out by the Group.

Defails of the Group's four reportable and operating segments are

as follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Capital and Reclamation Dredging Business refers to the
capital and reclamation dredging services and related

consultation services provided by the Group;

Environmental Protection Dredging and Water Management
Business refers to dredging or water management services
or constructions for promoting environmental interests and

water quality mainly for inland rivers provided by the Group;

Other Marine Business mainly comprises marine hoisting,
installation, salvaging, vessel chartering and other

engineering services provided by the Group; and
Property Management Business refers to the management

and leasing of a shopping mall and the construction of a

hotel by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

7. Operating Segments (Continued) 7. EE 5@
Segment results 7 EB R AR
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue and AEBERDSBRERDBEESTAOT ©

segment resulfs is as below.

Environmental

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging  Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
EEREE RREAR Hito IES
AR  kBEEEK BEEHK BEERK # st
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBTR AR%Tx ARBTR AR®TR

For the year ended BEZ-Z-N\Et+=R

31 December 2018 =t-HLEEE
Segment revenue o U 165,960 115,646 327,451 9,776 618,833
Segment results PHEE (83,019) (92,431) 14,582 2,093 (158,775)
Increase in fair value of BEMELTEEM

invesiment properties 17,400
Other gains and losses, net HihzREREE (14,701)
Unallocated other income AP EE MU A 3,230
Unallocated corporate expenses A D B %X (34,911)
Unallocated finance costs AOEBE KA (44,588)
Loss before tax BRI E B (232,345)

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 142 FEIEAIRIRIERBIR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

7. Operating Segments (Continued) 7. BEDSI g
Segment results (Continued) o R E & (\)
Environmental
Profection
Capifal and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
ERRESR RIREZ R HA ES
mAER KEERED BEEH BHER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR AR®TRE ARETRT ARETR

For the year ended HE-Z2-tH5+=H
31 December 2017 =t+t-ALEE

Segment revenue R LG 281,589 130,223 232,572 6,540 650,924
Segment results NEEE 93,867 37,848 37780 (3,490 166,005
Unallocated other income AAEEMKA 18,059
Other gains and losses, net H i s B 185 48 18,683
Unallocated corporate expenses KD B EHR (29,097)
Unallocated finance costs AOEREKA (62,416)
Profit before tax B 75 Al v A 111,234
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

7. Operating Segments (Continued)

Segment assets

7. EE 5 @)

i
7EE

Environmental

E

Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging  Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
HERES BREAR Hitr IS
BAER KBEBER BEEK EEER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETRT ARETnR AR TR AR®ET R
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=-A=t+-H
Segment assefs DWEE 1,642,495 388,354 527,533 682,914 3,241,296
Unallocated assets: APBREE
Prepaid land lease payments B LEER 14,548
Bank balances and cash ROTEBRRAE 48,435
Others Hit 44,808
Consolidated assets BEEE 3,349,087

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

144

HEERRRIZERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4
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7. Operating Segments (Continued)

Segment assets (Continued)

7.

& E D 2P

D EEE @)

Environmental

Protection
Capifal and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging Management Marine Management
Business Business Business Business Total
HERas RRHE R HAh ES
MEEH  KBEBRXK BEER EREHK @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETRL
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+#&
tZA=+-H
Segment assets DHEE 1,707,966 646,594 546,064 588,349 3,488,973
Unallocated assefs: APREE:
Prepaid land lease payments B LHER 14,866
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRAE 69,505
Others Hi 14,445
Consolidated assefs REEE 3,587,789

For the purposes of moniforing segment performances and

allocating resources between segments, assets are allocated to

reportable and operafing segments other than the unallocated

items listed above.

Segment liabilities

As the liabiliies are regularly reviewed by the CODM in total for

the Group as a whole, the measure of total liabilities by reportable

segments is therefore not presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

7. Operating Segments (Continued) 7. EEDEH wm
Other segment information H fh 5 5 & ¥
Environmental
Protection
Capital and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging  Management Marine Management  Segment
Business Business  Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
ERRES RRBAR Htt nE
WAXS  kBEEXE BEEH ERXY  AHAG OB &E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR ARWMTRT AR¥®TR AR%TR AR¥TR ARETR
For the yearended ~ #HZ-Z-N\%
31 December 2018 +=A=t+-H
LFE
Amounts included in the AL BERL S
measure of segment profit  EEFTEH % E
or loss or segment assefs
Addifions to non-current REFRBEE
assefs 903 62,592 16,129 25,024 104,648 6,879 111,527
Depreciction of property,  #1% * s kiR f&
plant and equipment hE 72,554 1,620 24,476 23 98,673 6,276 104,949
Amoriisation of prepaid land T 1 37 & 7% 35
lease payment - - - 2,474 2,474 - 2,474
Amortisation of other At B EERSH
infongible asses - - - 334 334 - 334
Expected credit loss REEEEFRAR
allowance 118,743 125,812 1,425 75 246,055 - 246,055

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 146 FEIEAIRIRIERBIR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

7. Operating Segments (Continued) 7. EED I
Other segment information (Continued) H#i o IE R @
Environmental
Protection
Capifal and Dredging
Reclamation and Water Other Property
Dredging ~ Management Marine  Management Segment
Business Business Business Business fotal Unallocated ~ Consolidated
ERREBR BRIZRK
REH  BERER HEtBEE% NEEEER DEEE AAE e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:

For the year ended HE-ZR-+%
31 December 2017 +-A=t+-HBL
g

Amounts included in the FASHERL S E
measure of segment profit  BEFFE M

or loss or segment assefs

Additions fo non-current assets N B JE R E) & & 6,568 - 27,420 66,725 100,713 - 100,713
Depreciation of property, — ¥1% * R K& s
plant and equipment e 71,953 2,867 26,533 = 101,353 45 101,398
Amortisation of prepaid land ~ FB 1 £ 41 7 & 7 &
lease payment - - - 2,474 2,474 318 2,792
Amoriisation of other EQESIAY-3 3
infangible assefs = = = 333 333 = 333
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BEK
plant and equipment REFBYE - (1,520) - - (1,520) - (1,520)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same A2y A IREEE S MBS mR M 40
as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4 to the FAREENSABRAER -
consolidated financial statements.
Segment results represent profit eamed or loss incurred by each 5B 4R R & 5 FB BT AR ER 80 A sk B A A B 48
segment, without allocation of central administrative expenses, (ROBEFPRTHAZ EMlmkEBE BT
other gains and losses, certain other income and certain finance HMWARSE TRERKAN) - LA EBELSR
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes REREERDPEREETEMNTE -
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
Geographical information ih & & R
As all the Group's revenue is derived from its operations in the PRC HRAEENMERESREERPEMNEE
and subsfantially all its non-current assets (excluding the other BEHBALOIRDEE(TEFEHEMEME

financiol assefs) are located in the PRC, no geographical E)URTE i EZ25EEE -
information is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

8. Other Income 8. HMWA

2018 2017
—=2-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Govemnment financial incentive (note) BRT B R B2 (Y 2% ) 2,954 9717
Bank interest income R1TAE WA 168 266
Interest income in respect of trade receivable JE L2 BR R A BB 1,672 7,920
Sundry income LSRN N 554 156
5,348 18,059

Note: Pursuant fo a document issued by a PRC local government authority, Hat - BB B AT #EREHAE NARK

one of the Company's PRC subsidiaries was granted financial
incentive for a period of three years ending in 2019 for its
confribution to the economic development of the locality, provided it
is duly registered in the locality and pays taxes according fo tax
laws. No other conditions are attached fo the financial incentive.

The PRC local government authority confirmed that the amount for
such financial incentive that the Group was entifled for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB2,954,000 (2017:
RMB9,717,000). Accordingly, the Group recognised such amount

Hp —HAENBAREER —BAR_F—N
FEEY SR =FOMRER UARFE LM
NTRBREREHOER  RHEAEAREIE
AAEMEAREBORBB » Rt 2 50 - B BUAE R
B A (A EL A BT 7 1 A1

PR BRTREER ARERBEE T —
NETZA=Z+ B LEFEAZXNZETK
HHEBE/ARK2054000T (=T — L5
AR®9,717,0007T) - it AEEEKEHE

as other income for the year. BERBFAEMBA -
9. Other Gains and Losses, Net 9. EtEZREHIEFEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥ % « & E K& 3% 5 Wz - 1,520
Exchange (loss) gain, nef b 5 (B 18) W et % & (14,701) 18,682
(14,701) 20,202
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

10. Finance Costs

10. &l & B A<

2018 2017
—E-N\% i
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
g ARBT T ARET T
Inferest expenses on: THEEMEFHEX
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAFAEEEED
within five years RITEE 21,426 29,880
Discounted bills receivable W B BRI R IE - 580
Other borrowings Hipfg & 4,018 5,627
The Bonds B 29 30,694 39,312
Amounts due fo non-controlling interesfs FES — A BT B A A
of a subsidiary FEEE A B SRR 3,223 1,972
Total borrowing costs BEEKAK 59,361 77,371
less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B B EBEREEKAR
qualifying assets =N (6,879) (6,711)
52,482 70,660

HE-_Z-—N\E+-_A=+—HLEE &KX
IEEEER AN ARES879,000T (= —+
F:ARES6711,0007T) il —REEHAE IR
BRI RGET7 68%(ZF—+ 4 : 10.59%) &
ko BE_E—N\F+-_A=+—BILEE &
BERAEALAEBERBENE BELRK
BERIREN—ID o

Borrowing cost capifalised during the year ended 31 December
2018 of approximately RMB6,879,000 (2017: RMB6,711,000)
arose on the general borrowing pool calculated by applying a
weighted average capitalisation rate of 7.68% (2017: 10.59%)
December 2018,

borrowing cost was capitalised as part of the construction in

per annum. During the year ended 31

progress in respect of the hotel under construction included in

property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

11. Allowance for Expected Credit Losses 1. FEHEEBEERE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Expected credif losses recognised on: ILNTIHBEBRNEREEEE:
— Trade receivables — goods and services — AR — i R AR % 243,182 -
— Confract assets —GREE 2,873 =
246,055 —
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December HE-_Z - N\F+ZA=+—HILEFERET
2018 are set out in Note 37. 1B 5 P FE37 ©
12. Income Tax Expense 12. FREBLF X
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
The charge comprises: ZH B
Current tax B EA T 78
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") B 1 ¥ AT FR
(TeXEMmEHRD 18,776 40,746
Deferred taxation (note 20) IR 3 T I8 (K7 7£ 20) 3,374 [1,716]

22,150 39,030
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

12. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 12. RS BB <X @
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled fo the (loss)/profit FEABEZEEBRF A (BE), S FEENT :

before tax as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B518), % A (232,345) 111,234
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2017: 25%) BHRBECERSHE25%:E
WRIE(ZT —tF : 25%) (58,086) 27,809
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax DA H 5 = B A 7 2 2
purpose 79,714 7,118
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEEENRBLE 522 4,103
Tax charge for the year FERNFRERH L 22,150 39,030
() PRCEIT (i) PEILEMREBH
PRC EIT is calculated at 25% of the assessable profits for RABEEE  PEACERER JIIRERR
both years. i M AT R 25% 51 & o
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) &BFEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated af 16.5% of the RAEEE  BEFNEH IR EEERR
estimated assessable profits for both years, if any. A () AT E16.5%51 5 o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in HRARARRENBRARRHREEERL
the consolidated financial stafements as the Company and ENERAELESIREEPHERTEF -
its subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in or WA BRERNTERETEFEREL
derived from Hong Kong for both years. B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

13. (Loss)/Profit for the Year 13. £ (F51]), & F
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

[Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived af after & A (E518),& 5| B &£ B

charging: T &R
Auditor's remuneration R GIE 1,800 1,808
Amortisation of other intangible assets H fth 42 2 & E G 334 333
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TE A + 4 38 & R 8 2,792 2,792
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WERZETE 104,949 101,398
Directors’ emoluments (note 14) EE=ME (Bt 14) 2,925 2,100
Other staff costs Hfth 8 TR 49,058 44,102
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, excluding EAREFRFEEZT  TREES

those of Directors =05 6,646 3,757

Total staff costs (including equity-setiled share-based B T ft 7S 48 58 (B 1R IR fE 25 45 & LA

payment) B 17 2 ZE A 500 58,629 49,959
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥ % « & B K& 5% & WS - (1,520)
Sub-contracting charges included in operating cost 5+ A & pX AN H) 5 6 & 271,150 192,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and 14. %% CFETBRAEREER

Employees’ Emoluments

Directors and Chief Executive Officer

Defails of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors and the

Chief Executive Officer during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Salaries

and other

Fees allowances
HeR

we H 2 Ak

RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®Tx

EERFTETHAER

FR ENIBRNEZTREIZTRAENHE
EACR N

BE-Z-/\F+ZA=t—HLHEFE

Retirement
benefit Share-
scheme based
contribution  Sub-total  payment Total
RIKEF
ot &It et 17 % £ et

RMB’0O00 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®BTR AR®BTR AR%T:R

Executive Directors: HIES:
M. Liv (notes (i) B 5% £ (K a7 i) - 1,200 - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. Wu Bin R £ - - - - 479 479
Mr. Wu Xuze RE2EEE
[notes (ii)) (B i) - - - - 479 479
Ms. Zhou Azt - 600 - 600 - 600
- 1,800 - 1,800 958 2,758
NonExecutive Director: ~ JEHITE S :
Mr. Liv longhua BREERE
[notes fiif]) (Ht &t fiii)) - - - - - -
Independent NonExecutive B3 IEHITE S :
Direcfors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun PR 88 48 5k
Jonathan 119 - - 119 - 119
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERAE 48 - - 48 - 48
Mr. liang Zequen RERLE - - - - - -
167 - - 167 - 167
167 1,800 - 1,967 958 2,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and MEE FETHRAERESE
Employees’ Emoluments (Continued) B £ m)

EERFETHRAE @
BE-Z—tH5+=-A=+—HLEE

Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Refirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances contribution Tofal
ek RKEF
we H 28k FTEIfE R BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T AR®ET T
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu [notes (i)) 2% A& (K1) = 1,200 — 1,200
Mr. Wu Bin fExE 5 & = = = =
Mr. Wu Xuze (notes i) R85 & (K At fi) — - - —
Ms. Zhou IEk:dan — 600 — 600
— 1,800 — 1,800
Non-Executive Director: FEHITES:
Mr. Liv longhua BlgEERE - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BAFEHTES
Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Bk §7 22 75 A& 150 — — 150
Mr. Huan Xuedong BERE LA 150 - — 150
M. Liang Zequen RERFE - - - -
300 — — 300
300 1,800 — 2,100
Notes: Wit -

(i) Mr. liv was also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company until 5 (i) BEE-_ZT—+tE—ARBBSENAKRADT
FETHRAE  ERZALEEBHETHRARB

B BANRARETEEEIRRATES -

January 2017 when he resigned as the Chief Executive Officer, but
remains as the chairman of the Board and an Executive Director.

(ii) Mr. Wu Xuze was appointed on 5 January 2017 as an Execufive (ii)
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

RBEAEE_T—tF—ALABZERAE
RERITEEFRITHARE

[ii)  Mr. Liu longhua has resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 8 (iii)
March 2019.

BEEEAEENR _FT-NAF=ANBBEIFH
TTEERTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive Officer’s and MEE FETHRAERESE

Employees’ Emoluments (Continued) M < @
Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Continued) EERFETHRAE @
During the year, there was no arrangement under which a Director FA TEEFHEUHREZAAEHRREMME
waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration. B &= HE o
Salaries and other allowance paid fo or for the Executive Directors TR FHROTEENTF S REMBHEBRZE A
are generally emoluments paid in respect of those persons’ other TREEARAREMNBRAANERREMNE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the AR %5 T 2 A5 HO — AR 5B o
Company and ifs subsidiaries.
Employees 3=
Of the Group's five highest paid individuals during the year, two FRAAREEBREZ R TFMEES  EhmMA (=
(2017: two) of them were Directors whose emoluments are T—+F MB)AESNETETHAE B
presenfed above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2017: SEREXRH -BT=B(ZE—+F:=8)
three) highest paid individuals, were as follows: EeFHMEANMESHT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T
Salaries and other allowances e R EAMIER, 1,040 Q18
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR KR A ET & 5K 25 18
1,065 936
Their emoluments were within the following bands: EMESETIHENAZAT :
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—£F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EBEAH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group fo any RAEEER REBYEAEMES  FE217
of the Direcfors, Chief Executive Officer or the five highest paid BAEXR AR EZETMEAA(BIFEES  FE17
individuals (including Directors, Chief Executive Officer and BMAERES)SNEMME  AIEAE N A
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or RIMMAREE LG R S BER A E o

as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

15.

16.

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
affributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15.

BR(ER) &R

ARBFEAEEERERAREE(BR) &
MR T BURF &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—£F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTTT
[Loss)/profit for the year atiributable to owners of B 51 & & I AN & #58
the Company for the purposes of basic and (BH),/ BFimEHARE
diluted (loss)/earnings per share FrE NEMRFERN(E18),/
5 (281,047) 71,040
Number of shares igrig g=|
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 5t 51 5 & A% 2 AN & #5852 F
the purposes of basic and diluted eamings per = B 3 30 AR h0#E 15 21
share 1,522,606,000 1,478,064,000

The weighted average number of shares for the purposes of basic
eamings per share for both years were calculated based on the
weighted average number of shares in issue during both years.
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 does not assume the exercise of share options
since the assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share.

As disclosed in Note 29, the conversion options embedded in the
convertible bonds are no longer exercisable after the Original
Maturity Date. As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have

any potential ordinary shares.

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 9% BERRE

Furniture,
Dredgers fittings Construction
Leasehold and Plantand and office Motor in
Building improvements  vessels machinery equipment  vehicles  progress Total
BRMER B -£B
EF HE#E MM BEREE RBARE RE EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'00O0  RMB'OCO  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
cosT K&
At T January 2017 RZZB—+%
—-A-A 114,606 244 1,726,669 109,759 1,988 15,644 143878 2,112,788
Additions NE = = 30,407 745 = 2,829 66,732 100,713
Disposals/wiite-off &/ [60,205) - (5,163 - - (1,59) - (66959
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+&
+-A=+-H 54,401 2441751913 110,504 1,988 16,882 210,610 2,146,542
Additions NE = = 12,854 3,550 37 590 31,904 48935
Transfer upon completion TR e E = = = 21,607 - - (21,607) -
Transfer fo invesiment properfies &% & 9% - - - - - - (62,592) (62,592
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\E
+-A=+-H 54401 244 1764,767 135,661 2,025 17,472 158,315 2,132,885
ACCUMULATED ZitiE
DEPRECIATION
A1 January 2017 RZZ—+%
—A-AH 6,087 244 419,887 36,560 1,517 9,135 - 473430
Provided for the year FREE 2,599 - 87,075 9,502 164 2,058 - 101,398
Eliminated on disposals/writeoff it} € 5 ¥ 8 /it 35 (201) - (2,376) - - [1,475) - (4,052
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+t&
+-A=+-H 8,485 244 504,586 46,062 1,681 0718 - 570776
Provided for the year EREE 2,599 - 86,287 13,892 71 2,100 — 104,949
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE
+-A=+-H 11,084 244 590,873 59,954 1752 11,818 - 675725
CARRYING VALUE BEE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=+-H 43317 - 1,173,894 75,707 273 5,654 158,315 1,457,160
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+=-A=+-H 45916 — 1,247 327 64,447 307 7,164 210,610 1,575,766
The Group's buildings are all situated on leasehold land in the REENEFAHURNTEBEE LA -
PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Confinued) 17. % - BERRE @
Depreciation is charged so as fo write off the cost of assets [other WE IR EHE A FE R ES LK B E & F
than construction in progress), over their estimated useful lives and HREERNESEIMEEERA(EEIRER
affer taking info account their estimated residual values, using the GN) - BRAEEFNIT ¢

straightline method, on the following bases:

Building 2-4% or over the term of the s 2-A% % 78 & 4 5y
lease, whichever is shorter (AR EHE BE)
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the term of the lease, HEEE 20% s FH & F 2
whichever is shorter (AT & B %)
Dredgers and vessels 5%-6.7% 12 M R i A 5%-6.7%
Plant and machinery 5%-20% 55 B e 25 5%-20%
Furniture, fittings and office 10%-33.3% U 3-8 UN 10%-33.3%
equipment B
Motor vehicles 16.7%20% RE 16.7%-20%
Defails of property, plant and equipment that are pledged as BEHRAERYGOYE BEMNXEBEFBIR
collateral are set out in Note 33. M 33 o
18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 18. A L b E X
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E 5
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: REEBHNMIEN AT
Current assets ik E= 3 2,908 2,908
Non-current assets FEMEN B E 92,398 95,190
95,306 98,098
Details of prepaid lease payments that are pledged as collateral EHRAERMEOBNEERFEHNMEIS -

are sef out in Note 33.
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For the year ended

19. Investment Properties

lIVi\

31 December 2018 # = —

é‘ﬁ!ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi(%)

—NF+ZA=1t—BHLFE

19. REW %

RMB'000
AR T T
1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RN—ZZE—+&E—HF—H —E—+t&E+=-_A=+—H
1 January 2018, at fair value E—_Z—NF—H—8 ' B2¥E 413,194
Additions NE —
Changes in fair value NTEZS —
At 31 December 2017, at fair value R-ZB—+FE+_A=1+—"8 RAFE 413,194
Addifions NE —
Transfer from constfruction in progress in property, ®EEHEZWE K= L& B
plant and equipment 40,192
Changes in fair value recognised in the RIEEBEXANERN QN E(EE S
consolidated sfatement of profit and loss 17,400
At 31 December 2018, at fair value n= NFE+=—B=+—8 ZA¥E 470,786
The Group's property interesfs, including ifs inferests in the land REENMEER BEERKCEHEHETRESA

held under operating lease, held o eam rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group transferred
certain portion of factories under construction fo investment
properties, the fransfer is supported by evidence of end of owner-
occupation as the factories are leased out fo third parties fo eamn
renfal income upon complefion of consfruction. The difference
between the carmrying amount and the fair value of the factories af
the date of transfer amounted to RMB22,400,000 is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property

revaluation reserve.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as af 31
December 2018 has been arrived af on the basis of a valuation
carried ouf on the respective dates by GCA Professional Services
Group (31

independent qualified professional valuer not connected fo the

December 2017: Sinno Appraisals Llimited), an
Group.

In defermining the fair value of the relevant properties, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company is responsible to determine the
appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

19. Investment Properties (Continued) 19. RE Y % m)

The Croup engages a third party qualified valuer to perform the AREBEZEE=ZFEERHEMETHE-
valuation. The valuation committee works closely with the qualified HEZECHAERINMEHEMBER LS K
external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques BT L T B A NG E RN R A SR - B
and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the BEMmMANNESTERGEEZESNATLE
valuation committee’s findings fo the directors of the Company to R UBEBEEATERINERR -

explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is categorised AEENBREMERATFE»BEAAFEERDN
as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or FEZE -FRNE=ZEEVTEEASEL - Eb5T
out of level 3 during the year. In estimating the fair value of the MENATEE YWENSSRTEREAE
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is the current ERTA® -

use.

Relationship of
unobservable

Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
b B i EXTAEERARE FABRBBEAFENBER
Shopping mall Income capitalised approach
located in Yancheng, The key inputs are
fhe PRC (i) Estimated unit price Price per square meter, using market direct comparable  The higher the unit price, the higher
and taking info account of location and other the market value.

individual factors, which is RMBZ,100 (2017
RMB6,800) per square mefer.

(i) Capitalisation rate Capitalisation rate, taking into of rate generated by The lower the capitalisation rate,
market, of 5.0%. the higher the market value.
NATEERTAES KEERMEE
FTEBABER
() fhAEtERLER BEAKER FRATSERLRIARGE BUEHRYS mHEEES-
REMENEE  BEFHAKARKEZ1007T
(ZF—tF: AR%6,8007T) °
(i) BEAfp= BARMEE - et RWH— KX B5.0%- EREEBE mHEEES-
Factories located Income capitalised approach
in Yancheng, The key inputs are
the PRC
© [i)  Estimated unit rental Rental per square meter per month, using market direct  The higher the unit rental, the
comparable and taking into account of location higher the market value.

and other individual factors, which is RMB10.5
[2017: N/A| per square meter per month.

(i) Capitalisation rate Capitalisation rate, taking into account of rate The lower the capitalisation rate,

generate by market, of 5.5%. the higher the market value.
MRPEERTOIER KaBAME

TEBABER

) fAstELES BASFHAER KADTSERLRYFE BUfsds mHEEES-
NERAEMEANREZ REAGFHIRAR
BI05 T (Z2—+5F: T@EA) -

[i] BARE=x BARMEE - et RWH — KX B55%- BEAREEBIE  THEEYS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

20. Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax
Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax assets and (deferred tax
liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior year:

20 EEBIREE ELEREEE

UTIRAFERBAFENTIECHIDRELTH
BHEEMCEERBAB)  UREEE

Fair value

adjustment

Allowance  of property,

for plant and

doubtful equipment on

debts/ECL acquisition of
provisions  subsidiaries Tax losses Others Total

W BB A R

RERE BUE- BER

REEEE REDFE
BER HE  BEEBR Hit @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARBETT ARETT ARBTT AR®TR
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t5—H—H 103,323 (14,367) 6,018 (6,018) 88,956
Charged to profit or loss (Nofe 12) & A8z (Afat 12) — 1,716 — — 1,716
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—t&+=ZA=+—H 103,323 (12,651) 6,018 (6,018) 90,672

(Credited) charged fo profitor loss  (5F A) 30k 51858 (f77F 12)

(Note 12) (4,991) 1,617 (6,018 6,018 (3,374)
At 31 December 2018 RZFE-NF+=-ZA=+—H 98,332 (11,034 = = 87,298

Other temporary differences mainly represented the temporary
differences arising from the construction costs capitalised in
investment properties under consfruction which were deductible for
fax purpose in the year those costfs incurred. The Group had no
significant unprovided deferred tax during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

20. Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax 20.EEREBEEE ELEHREEE

Liabilities (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
femporary differences associated with undistributed earings of
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was RMB321,522,000 (2017: RMB330,786,000).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to confrol the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused fax loss
of RMB88,035,000 (2017: RMB85,947,000). A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
RMB24,072,000 (2017: RMB24,072,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised for the remaining tax loss of
RMB63,963,000 (2017: RMB61,875,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

An analysis of the expiry dafes of the unused fax losses is as

follows:

(&)

RBERR BZEIERABRLERBEAEN
MEARMNRIERNEMNGRZHEAER
AR#321,522000t(=F —tF: AR¥
330,786,0007T) ° £ K7 5 B A] £ ) B B = 88
MBEKRE MZEZBRBRHERATRLBERLE
BE AW ERZEZRERAE -

RBEMR AEBNAPAREBFRS
AR ®B88035000T(=—F —tF: ARK
85947,0007L)  —REMBEBEMNARYE
24,072,000t (Z & —tF : AR¥ 24,072,000
T)RELERIREED ERR - AR EEEA
ARBEMER BEXBERBKTHREBEARE
63,963,000t (ZE—+F : AR®61,875,000
TO)ERBELENIBEE °

AERARBBEIHAIFAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET ARETF T

Within 1 to 4 years —ENFR 83,585 84,684
Within the 5th year EERN 4,450 1,263
88,035 85,947

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited 162

HEERRRIZERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and

21 EW R HMMEWREKAE

Prepayments (RES
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Non-current: FERNES :
Trade receivable, net of expected credit losses/  JEURERR - B TBHIE B
impairment allowances (notes {ii)) 18R B B (B (i) - 68,798
Value-added fax recoverable (nofes (iv)) Al Y [B] 22 (B (A 2 (iv)) 1,908 1,797
1,908 70,595
Current: BNER -
Trade receivable, nef of expected credit losses/  JEUREBRZR - IR TBHE B

impairment allowances (nofes i) 18,/ BB () 1,035,691 1,153,637
Bills receivable (nofes (iii)) JE W 2= B (B9 i) 3,468 4,150
Government financial incentive receivables & W BLAT B Bk BB (2 8)

[notes 8) 14,842 11,888
Prepayments TEF KIAE 50,280 55,812
Deposits %4 13,195 4,786
Others H 7,585 10,051

1,125,061 1,240,324

1,126,969 1,310,919
As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade receivables are RZE—+F+_A=+—"HH BYREZFS
retention amounts of RMB199, 171,000, of which REEABARKION 171,000 Efh AR
RMB59,098,000 are due dfter one year. Upon application of 59,098,000t A — S 12 FI B - JE B3 & B B %5 3
HKFRS 15, the refention receivables were reclassified to contract EEAFISTHFE 2B BURREER =2 —\F

assets as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

Notes:

(i

Before accepting any new cusfomer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines its credit limits based
on reputation of the customers within the industry.

The Group prepares an aged analysis for ifs frade receivable based
on the dates when the Group and the cusfomers agreed on the
quantum of the services rendered, as evidenced by progress
cerfificates. Periodic statements are issued and agreed by the
customers for the services rendered for the customers. Most of the
contracts require the customers to make monthly progress payments
with reference to the quantum of the services completed (typically
95% of the quantum of the services completed in the previous month)
within thirty days to ninety days after the issuance of the progress
cerfificate. According to these contracts, the remaining balance
[typically 5% of the quantum of the services completed) is kept as
refention money and is to be paid by the customers within thirty to
sixty days after (i) the project is completed and (i) accepted by the
cusfomers.

A contract asset, is recognised over the period in which the
construction services are performed representing the Group's
right fo consideration for the services performed because the
rights are conditioned on (i), (i) and expiration of defect liability
period. The contract assets are fransferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior fo expiration of defect liability period,
are classified as contract assets, which range from thirty to sixty days
after (i) and (i) are fulfilled. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
The fiming of payment patterns give rise fo refention receivables
which are subject to performance risks but not only the passage of
time before the retention receivables are due. The Group's right on
the refention receivables is conditional and thus the refention
receivables are classified as contract assets as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and

21 EWERR - Htt B R K &

Prepayments (Continued) SENCD
Notes: (Continued) Hiat : (48)
(i) (Continued) (i) (#&)
The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivable, prepared based REREHER REIETKEBRAZENA
on the dates of cerfification of work done, which approximate the o EERENEREE MREMARE
respective revenue recognition dates (net of credit losses for trade EWEZRGNBREKEREEEE)NERERD
receivable), at the end of each reporting period is as follows: T -
Aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivable REBEHWEWEZERD T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
0-30 days 0ZE 30K 74,841 93,370
31-60 days 31E60K 27,916 31,006
61-90 days 61 Z90K 24,419 60,942
91-180 days Q1 & 180X 77,703 135,715
181-365 days 181 2365 K 154,249 261,162
1 year=2 years 1EE2F 249,592 205,478
Over 2 years HBiE2F 426,971 434,702
1,035,691 1,222,435
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) (Continued)
Aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivable (Continued)
Up fo the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
there were subsequent settlement of account receivables amounting
to RMB121,801,000 being received by the Group.
The amount of trade receivables which were past due based on the
terms of confracts, as at the end of the reporting period but for which

the Group has not provided for impairment loss is analysed as
follows:

Aging of trade receivable from due date which were

21. P& U BR 5K HEMmEKRFZRE
NENC )

Hiat : ()

(i (&)
7S % (8 Y B WK RR S R R 0 AT (D)
BEFAUBRRELEAR L AEEE
WHREERRENNERERRBARE

121,801,0007T °

RESHMREARRANFHIAD)ELAKHE
Y EF R EBBRBENERERITAT

HEMBEAHMERRENERERRDY

past due but not impaired B i
2017
—E—tF
RMB'000
ARBTT
0-30 days 0ZE30XK -
31-60 days 31 260K 27,134
61-90 days 61 290K 60,942
91-180 days Q12180XK 129,659
181-365 days 181 365K 311,035
1 year=2 years 1FE2F 193,430
Over 2 years HBiE2F 281,389
1,003,589

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.

The estimated loss rates for ECL calculations are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forwardooking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
the management fo ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and
Prepayments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Aging of trade receivable from due date which were
past due but not impaired (Continued)

Included in frade receivables as at 31 December 2018 was a gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB48,803,000 (31 December
2017: RMB58,803,000) due from a customer of which the related
dredging project has been suspended since January 2014 due fo
change in use of relevant reclaimed areas by the Government. The
cusfomer has signed an agreement with the Group fo repay
RMB40,000,000 before 31 December 2016 but failed to fulfil the
payment. During the year ended 31 December 2018, an amount of
RMB10,000,000 was received. Accordingly, allowance of credit
loss of RMB48,803,000 (2017: RMB58,803,000) was

recognised as at end of reporting period.

Included in frade receivables as at 31 December 2018 was a gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB24,134,000 (31 December
2017: RMB26,134,000) due from a customer which the dredging
project was started since 2016 and s sfill in progress as at 31
December 2018 while the repayment of progress billings fell behind
schedule. During the year ended 31 December 2018, an amount
of RMB2,000,000 was received. Considering the payment pattern,
the progress of the project and the creditability of the customer,
allowance of credit loss of RMB13,188,000 (2017:
RMB10,728,000) was recognised at end of reporting period.

Included in trade receivables as aof 31 December 2018 were
amounts of approximately RMB159,558,000 (31 December
2017: RMB323,465,000) due from customers who are large state-
owned enterprise or local governments which the respective projects
were already completed for more than one year. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, an amount RMB43,741,000 was
received. Considering the repayment pattern and the credibility of
respective cusfomers, allowance of credit loss of RMB178,394,000
[2017: RMB116,402,000) was recognised at end of reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and

Prepayments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(iii)

21.@;&&&%% HEMmEKRFZRE
NENC )

et - (&)

(Continued) (i) (%)

Movement in ECL/allowance for doubtful debts BHEEERE REREED
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
1 January —H—H 437,777 437,777
Charged fo profit or loss H&kBEE 263,146 -
Reversal of impairment losses R B 5 18 # [a] (19,964) -
31 December +=—A=+—~H 680,959 437,777

Non-current frade receivable represents amounts due from several

customers for contract works, for which the contracts include clauses

for extended payment ferms beyond one year. During the year,

interest income calculated at a rate of 10% per annum (2017: 10%
per annum) of about RMB1,756,000 (2017: RMB8,316,000) was

recognised as the clause for inferest has expired in 2017.

The aged analysis of the Group's bills receivable, presented based
on the relevant dates of certification of work done, is as follows:

(i)

(ifi)

FANBERRERERRETEPHNAHNTIE
RE MERGNEEN BN RBTERER—
FOBER- RFERN BEMNEI0%N(ZF— L
FrFEFEIONAENMEBRARSNARE
1,756,000t( =& — £ & : AR 8,316,000
) BRAMEEARER T —LFBH-

ERRTEENHBERAM2INAEEEK
RROREITOT ¢

Aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivable 7 £ [ fE N = 8 BR R D AT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—LF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

0-30 days 0& 30X 200 =
31-60 days 31 260K 132 1,000
61-90 days 61 EQ0K 900 700
91-180 days Q1 £ 180X 2,236 2,450
Over 180 days B 180K - —
3,468 4,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables and

Prepayments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(v VAT paid of approximately RMB1,908,000 (2017:
RMB1,797,000) by the Group in connection with ifs consfruction-in-
progress could be setoff against future value added tax payable
generated from the Group. The amount is not expected fo be
recovered within one year from the end of reporting, and is
accordingly classified as non-current.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 37.

22. Contract Assets/Contract Liabilities

Refention receivables included in confract assets amounted to
RMB34,662,000 as at 31 December 2018. There has been a
significant change in confract assets during the year due fo the
initial application of HKFRS 15 which is solely due to the
reclassification of refention receivables to contract assets as at 1
January 2018. The Group's dredging contracts usually include a
retention period ranging from thirty days to sixty days for 5% of the
contract value. This amount is included in confract assefs until the
end of the refention period as the Group's entitlement fo this final
payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over the retention period as stipulated in the
confracts. The confract assets are fransferred fo the frade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is
typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision of
assurance by the Group on the service quality of the consfruction
work performed by the Group.

Refention receivables included in confract assefs amounted fo
RMB34,662,000 as at 31 December 2018. There is an addition
of RMB16,641,000 and a transfer of RMB4 1,077,000 to trade
receivables during the year. The Group's rights to considerations
on these confracts assefs have become uncondifional i.e. only the
passage of the time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

As part of the internal credit risk management, the Group applies

infernal credit rating for its customers in relation to contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

22. Contract Assets/Liabilities (Confinved) 2. 60EE BfEw
Defails of impairment assessment of confract assefs for the year BEE-_ZE—N\FE+_A=1+—"BIFEEHE
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 37. ERETENFBHNRMMEI F -
Confract liabiliies represent service income received in advance of AEHEBEER-_ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—HHE
RMB22,136,000 as at 31 December 2018 and recognised as SESHERBWA A AR®E22,136,000
revenue when the services are rendered. Upon adoption of HKFRS T EREREEEERABRA - FE T — NF—
15 on 1 January 2018, such receipts in advance are re<lassified A—HEBEBUBRELERNFISHE 2% %
from receipt in advance fo contract liabilities. SRR BURFREEF REAAOARE -
23. Bank Balances and Cash 3. RITERREASE
Bank balances that are denominated in a currency other than the NEBEERRINIEEEE AN B EEGHER
functional currency of the relevant group companies are set out RITEBIHYWOT -
below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

United States Dollar ["US$") Zrx(Exl) 13 43
Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") B ([Exl) 598 627
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

24. Trade and Other Payables 24, EHRM K H MR
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables & AR K
Sub-contracting charge a2k 142,054 122,881
Fuel cost BARE K AR 10,002 18,923
Repair and maintenance e MRE 17,914 23,667
Others HA 5,695 3,593
175,665 169,064
Other payables H fth & 7 5/ IE
Payable for property, plant and equipment Y - RS I ik S FE S BB - 11,654
Payable for construction cost of investment & & W) 22 R AN FE N A
properties 82,715 82,448
Accrual for other faxes FEAH B A B IR 61,442 40,227
Accrual for sfaff salaries and welfare EEFETH & KER 33,150 25,848
Receipts in advance Fa W R IA - 18,215
Inferest payable on the Bonds J& <1 18 25 F1) B,
(as defined in note 29) (RBT e 29F7 R E) - 849
Others H 25,461 20,478
202,768 199,719
378,433 368,783
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IR AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

24. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The aged analysis of the Group's trade payables presented based
on the invoice dafe, except for subcontracting charge which is
presenfed based on dates of the progress certificates, as at the
end of each reporting period is as follows:

24.

FE A R 7R B L At B YRR )

AEBRERESAMRREZAHZ7 RN
ERREEEEAH2INDBEREIN G
BREC DT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

0-30 days 0Z 30Kk 24,214 51,147
31-60 days 31 260K 1,077 6,810
61-90 days 61 EQ0K 16,330 19,414
9@1-180 days Q12 180K 43,106 13,111
Over 180 days HBiE180K 90,938 78,582
175,665 169,064

25. Amounts Due to Directors of the Company

26

As at 31 December 2018, the balance represented advance from
and emolument payable to cerfain Directors of approximately
RMB3, 130,000 (2017: RMB2,804,000) and an amount due fo
Mr. Lliv of approximately RMB3,803,000 (2017:
RMB6,798,000). All amounts are unsecured, interestfree,

repayable on demand and nonrade in nature.

Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests
of a Subsidiary

All balances are non-interest bearing except for an amount of
approximately RMB27,684,000 as af 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB10,365,000) which is interest bearing at 12% (2017: 12%)
December 2018,
controlling inferests agreed not fo demand repayment of
RMB69,711,000 of the amounts due to them before January
2020 (2017: RMB68,252,000 of the amounts due to them
before January 2019). All amounts are unsecured and non-rade in

per annum (“p.a.”). On 31 cerfain non-

nature.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

27. Bank Borrowings 27. BITEE

2018 2017
—=2-N\#F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Secured bank borrowings BERRITEER
Payment schedule according to confractual BAE KBRS
repayment ferms (note) S NADE A )
Amount due for sefflement within one year — F N2 H ) SR IH 324,670 371,192
Note: B

The effective interest rafes of the secured bank borrowings are set out in the
following table:

TEREBEINERERRJRITEENERF X

2018 2017
—g-n% N
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF R AREF

Fixed interest at 4.57% p.a. to 9.98% p.a.
(2017: 3.81% p.a. to 7.40% p.a.)

Floating inferest at Loan Prime Rate of China (“LPR”)
plus 0.92% p.a. to 1.34% p.a.
(2017: LPR plus 0.92% p.a. to 1.36% p.a.)

BFA4.57%F9.98%E E A &
(ZZ— 4 : 5F3.81%E7.40%) 241,670 288,192

FE(BRHTEREEERNE ((RER
BHRFE]) MEFF0.92%% 1.34%)
(ZF— 5 REFERF XN
FH0.92%% 1.36%)

83,000 83,000

324,670 371,192

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's bank
borrowings were supported by the corporate guarantees given by
Xiangyu PRC (defined in Note 39) and the Company. The Group's
bank borrowings fo the extent of RMB294,670,000 (2017:
RMB257,000,000) were secured by certain assefs of the Group [see
Note 33), a property owned by a company in which Mr. Liu has
beneficial inferest and personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu
and Ms. Zhou respectively (see Note 35i).
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28. Other Borrowings

29

28. Ht & &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Unsecured other borrowings HMEEREER

Without fixed repayment term and classified as EETEEBHRRRS B AR
current liabilities aE 54,526 64,527
Classified as non-current liabilities SERIERBDERE 34,255 34,836
88,781 99,363

Included in the Group's other borrowings, approximately
RMB31,720,000 (2017: RMB70,536,000) carried fixed interest
rafes ranged from 10% to 12% per annum (2017: 7.2% to 12%).
Other than that, the remaining other borrowings of the Group are
interestfree. All of the Group's other borrowings are unsecured,
without fixed repayment term and were borrowed from
independent third parties. On 31 December 2018, certain
counterparties agreed not fo demand repayment before January
2020 (2017: January 2019) and accordingly, RMB34,255,000
(2017: RMB34,836,000) due to these parties are classified as

non-current.

Bonds Payable

The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) to
CITIC at a total nominal value of HK$243,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB191,970,000) on 8 November 2013, carrying an inferest
rate of 3% per annum with the maturity date of 7 November 2016
(the “Criginal Maturity Date”). The Bondholder, being CITIC, had
an option to either convert the Bonds into the Company’s ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$2.7 per share, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments, at any time affer six months from the dafe of
issue and up to the Original Maturity Date, or fo require the
Company fo redeem them af 133.792% of the nominal value of
the Bonds, which amounted to approximately HK$325,115,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB290,818,000 based on spot
exchange rate on 7 November 2016) (the “Original Redemption
Amount’), upon maturity. The Company had no right to early

redeem the Bonds.
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A=t—RB ETHFHIREFTER_ZF_F
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

29. Bonds Payable (Continued)

At the time when the Bonds were issued, the Bonds were analysed
by the management of the Group fo contain two components, the
host debt component and the conversion option. The Bonds are
denominated in HK$, which is a currency other than the
Company's functional currency. Therefore, the conversion option in
the Bonds does not result in an exchange of a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash,
denominated in HK$. Accordingly, the conversion option was
accounted for separately as a derivative liability, which was not
closely related to the host debt component. The fair values of the
debt component and the derivative component were determined af
the date of issue. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the debt
component was carried af amortised cost while the derivative
component was measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The effective interest rate of the debt

component was 16.9%.

The Group had not paid the Original Redemption Amount and the
last inferest payment on the Original Maturity Date to CITIC. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and CITIC
enfered info a framework agreement on 14 November 2016 (as
amended by supplemental framework agreements, collectively the
"Framework Agreement”) and a standstill and amended agreement
and supplemental deed to the original deed poll regarding the
Bonds (the “Amendment Agreement’] on 15 December 2016,
pursuant fo which CITIC agreed to a) extend the maturity from the
Original Maturity Date to 14 March 2017 and b) reduce the
principal amount of Original Redemption Amount to approximately
HK$275,415,000 [equivalent to approximately
RMB246,381,000) based on spot exchange rafe on 31
December 2016, subject to certain conditions as stated in the

Amendment Agreement.

Furthermore, the conversion option under the Bonds was removed
under the Amendment Agreement. Accordingly, no embedded
derivative was recognised at 31 December 2016 and af the end

of subsequent accounting periods.
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29. Bonds Payable (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has sefiled
approximately HK$23,023,000, [equivalent to RMB19,402,000)
fo CITIC. The Bonds remained overdue for repayment as at 31
December 2018. On 21 March 2017, 5 June 2017, 21
September 2017, 23 January 2018 and 15 March 2019, the
Company and CITIC had entered info the second amendment
agreement, the third amendment agreement, the fourth amendment
agreement, the fifth amendment agreement and the Sixth
8, the fifth

amendment agreement was in effect pursuant fo which the maturity

Amendment Agreement. As at 31 December 201

dafe of the Bonds was extended such that based on the latest
amendment agreement in effect, the Company needed fo repay
the principal amount of the Bonds of approximately
HK$278,777,000 |equivalent to approximately
RMB235,126,000) fogether with the inferest due by 21 June
2018 with interest rate at an amended rate of 13% per annum.
The Company failed to repay the abovementioned amounts in full
on 21 June 2018, af which dafe the tofal amount outstanding,
including the accrued inferest amounted to approximately
HK$293,671,000 |[equivalent to approximately
RMB247,630,000). On 15 March 2019, the Company and
CITIC entered info the Sixth Amendment Agreement to amend the
original maturity date to 20 December 2019, details of
amendment are set out in Note 43. As at 31 December 2018,
the fofal amount outstanding, including the accrued interest
amounted to approximately HK$290,248,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB254,916,000).

Details of each of the agreements are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2016, 15 November 2016

16 November 2016, 16 December 201 6 22 March 2017, 5
June 2017, 22 September 2017, 1 December 2017, 23 January
2018 and 15 March 2019
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29. Bonds Payable (Continued)

Based on the revised agreements, interest rate are as follows:

Period

29. EEF & F @)
REEETHSHHE  FEnT

Interest rate
per annum

A FR=x

From 15 November 2016 and up fo 14 December 2016
From 15 December 2016 and up to 14 March 2017
From 15 March 2017 and up to 4 June 2017

From 5 June 2017 and up to 21 June 2017

From 22 June 2017 and up to 21 September 2017

From 22 September 2017 and up to 15 November 2017
From 15 November 2017 and up to 22 January 2018
From 23 January 2018 and up to 21 June 2018

From 22 June 2018 and up to 20 December 2019

—2-—xEt-A+EAE

—E-RFTZATHEA 13%

—E-XE+-ATHAE

—E—t+F=A+MA 15%

—F-tH#=At+HAZE

—Z—+FXAMEA 18%

“E—L+FXRAERE

—E—+HFRA+—H 13%

—E—+tFA~A=-+=-H=ZE

—E—+tFARA=+—H 18%

—ET—tFNA=+=ZHZE

—E—+F+—H+HhH 13%

—2—tE&+—ATEAE

—Z-N\F—A=+=H 13%

—E-N\F-A-t=AZ

—ZE-N\FRA=Z+—H 13%

—E-NEXAZt+=BE

—E-NF+=ZA=+H 13%

Note: The above interest shall accrue on a day to day basis and be
calculated on the basis of a 365-day calendar year on the Reduced
Redemption Amount/revised principal amount and compounded on
a monthly basis.

Under the abovementioned agreements entered into by the
Company and CITIC, the Bonds are personally guaranteed by Mr.
Liu and his spouse Ms. Zhou who are also the Direcfors of the
Company, and equity interests in cerfain subsidiaries of the
Company are pledged in favour of CITIC, a dredger and an
industrial premise and a residential property owned by the Group
included in property, plant and equipment and investment
properties with carrying value of RMB260,378,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB:279,186,000).
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29. Bonds Payable (confinued)

The Bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of financia

position are calculated as follows:

29. EFEF @

RIEEMBERARNRERZEFFEDT

Bonds
payable
B &S
RMB'000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2017 R—_ZE—+tF—HF—H 250,715
Inferest & 39,312
Settlement =N} (42,483)
Exchange realignment PE i, 35 2 (16,317)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF+_HA=+—H 231,227
Interest B 30,694
Seftlement (EXN] (19,207)
Exchange realignment & 5 3= 12,202
At 31 December 2018 R-_ZE—N\E+=_H=+—H 254916
The bonds as the end of the reporting periods are represented by: REBEHRARBEEZ2HWOT :

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i Jis
—E-N\E —E—+tF
+=—A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Interest payable within one year included in other T AHE A0 R RIB 2 — F A
payable B - 849
Bonds payable within one year —FRNEMMES 254,916 230,378
254,916 231,227
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30. Share Capital 30. g &
RMB
Number of equivalent
shares Amount amount
AR
K% & E &% EZ&H
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T & FET ARBT T
Ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each & % fE0.105% 7T &9 I 38 I
Authorised EE
Balance af 1 January 2017, R=ZZFE—+t&—H—H-
31 December 2017 and 2018 —E—+tEFER_F—)N\F
TZ A=+ —BN&RH 10,000,000 1,000,000 N/A TN
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
Balance atf 1 January 2017, R-ZZE—+&—H—Q8"
31 December 2017 and —Z—+t+t&%+-_A=+—H
1 January 2018 RZZ2-—NF—-A—HH
P 1,478,064 147,806 123,483
Placing of shares (note) fic & B 1D (K 2%) 295,600 29,560 26,094
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-—_Z—N\FE+=A
=t+—HEB&EH 1,773,664 177,366 149,577
Note: On 6 November 2018, the share placings of 295,600,000 shares Hit  R—ZZE—NFE+—AXNB AR RAZKKES
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.12 were completed. B &7 0.1278 LA & 295,600,000 8% iz {7
The net proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$35.5 P & B9 P15 SRIEF B4 /3 35,500,000 7T (A2 &
million (equivalent fo approximately RMB3 1.3 million), part of which R4 ARE31,300,0007T) * EFF oD BREE
was used fo repay the Bonds as set out in Note 29. These new MEE20 FRoIMES - L EFRES FEERE

shares rank pari passu in all respect with the existing shares. BHZEERESHER -
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31. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

() Minimum lease payments paid

3. REHE

AEBEEREEA
i) ENREEERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(r=51)
Minimum lease payments paid under operating F R R IR & &M & S M HRIE
leases during the year: H & RIA
Office premises NSy 797 743
Transportation vessels Em A 589 556
1,386 1,299
(i) Minimum lease payment commitments (i) XEHEERERE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed

to make the following future minimum lease payments under

REREHAR  FEBEEAZERIBANEH
MAEYEM AT HLEHEER T3

non-cancellable operating leases for office premises which KRR FEFRE
fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AR T T
Within one year —F£ R 404 414
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive FE_ZFELF(BEEERFE) - 326
404 740
The leases for office premises are generally negotiated for a PN LA SR e TS — &

ferm between one fo fen years.
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31. Operating Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from chartered vessels, shopping mall and factories
eamed during the year were RMB2,547,000, RMB7,782,000
and RMB1,994,000 respectively (2017: RMBS5,094,000,
RMB6,540,000 and nil respectively). The chartered vessels have

committed tenants for the next one fo two years.

32. Capital Commitments

3. K& HE @)

AEBESHEA

FREFMEAMH BERIHMRIMOAE
W AD R R ARE2547,0007T - AR
7,782,000t K A R #1,994,0007t( = & —
+tF: DR/ ARKS0040007T AR
6,540 000 LR ARBZRL) - IBHEMMES
EEER—EZFWNER o

32. EXRESE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTT
Capital commitments contracted but not provided B T #1{B I R 5t 5 B LA T & 1B
for relating to the following: SHIZREH B AN A IE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WS 2% - BB K&kt (B a2 (i)
(note (ii)) 60,122 65,702
Investment in conducting capital financing business % & #1T& & & B E 5 (K7 2% (i)
[note (i) 7,122 7,122

Notes: Hiet

(i) Pursuant fo the investment agreement fo set up a subsidiary which (i) BEXVFBZETERASRELHNBRARNEK
principally conducts capital finance business, the proposed & sk - 52 5% =t & 420,000,000 3% 7T #% B A
registered capital of US$20 million will be contributed in proportion RAIRSIMEREERSBNRED AL E
to the respective equity holdings of the Company and two other 16,000,0003 7T * 2,000,000 7t & 2,000,000
investors of US$16 million, US$2 million and US$2 million ET - R-BE—NEFR=-ZFE—+F+=-_A=+
respectively. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, capital of —H ' ARQAEEA14,900000% T 35
US$14.9 million was injected by the Group whilst the other two MEREEDER ETEMBEE PPN -
investors are sfill in progress in obtaining approval from regulators
for capital injection.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group started to (ii) BE-_Z—RXF+-_A=1+—HIEFE &&E
construct a hotel in Yancheng, the PRC and is expected to be B G R 7E R B B B — FOB L - s T2 A
completed at the end of 2019. RZTE—NFFETK
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33. Pledge of Assets B.EEHER

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged fo secure bank borrowings, bonds payable

and credit facilities granted to the Group during the year:

RBEHAR AEEEBATEEERFAR
TAEENRITEE EBNEFREERENE
o

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T

Dredgers included in property, plant and BRI ADE  BE R
equipment 602,418 Q43,613

Properties included in property, plant and BEGIADE  BEREE

equipment 36,719 39,006
Prepaid land lease payments & {5 1 30 A8 49 5% 89,679 83,186
Investment properties REYE 26,463 —
755,279 1,065,805

34. Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a sfatemanaged refirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefifs. The only obligation of the Group with
respect fo the scheme is to make the specified confributions

according fo the state rules.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong| for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
refirement scheme administered by independent frustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions fo the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (2017: HK$30,000). Contributions to the scheme

vest immediately.
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35. Related Party Disclosures

(i)

i}

(iii)

(iv)

Related party transactions

During the vyear, the Group paid renfals of RMB40,000
[2017: RMB96,000] fo certain companies controlled by

Mr. liu in respect of office premises.

In addition, the Group received other advances from, and
made repayments to, Mr. Liu during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. As at 31 December 2018,
the amount due to Mr. Liu was RMB3,803,000 (2017:
RMB6,798,000).

Pledge of assets and guarantees in
support of the Group’s borrowings

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, other than pledge of
assets of the Group, the Group's bank borrowings and
bonds payable were also supported by:

[a)  corporate guarantee given by Xiangyu PRC;

[b)  personal guarantees provided by Mr. Liu and Ms.
Zhou; and

[c)  two properties owned by certain non-controlling
shareholders of the Company's subsidiary.

Bank borrowing of the Group of RMB85 million (2017:
RMB88 million) was supported by a property owned by a

company in which Mr. Liu has beneficial interest.

Related party balances

Details of the balances due to Directors are set out in Note

25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of Directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
reporting period are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

36. Capital Risk Management 36. EXERERE

The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that the group companies
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
retum fo shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. Having considered the factors and circumstance
set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient liquidity fo
meet its cash flows requirements for next twelve months from the

end of reporting period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of amounts due to
directors of the Company, amounfs due fo non-controlling inferests
of a subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings and bonds
payable as disclosed in Notes 26, 27, 28 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively and equity
affributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising paid up
capital/share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost and the risks associated
with each class of the capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

37. Financial Instruments

(@) Categories of financial instruments

AEBEEREAFEERETHNARAGUFAEL
2 FABBEE(EBERAFEHABRRS XK
RAEHR - BEEHIING AP EHRRME2H
AELER EEEMAEEREERRAON
HESTUBRNEARESHARESRK T Z@EA

MREREFTE -

AEBNBEAEBEBREI NG A M BRERN
2627 8ROBEBENENARAREER
H AN — RN B IR RS FOR - RITHE
E HtBERENES UERAARKRREN
#m BERERER BARMEE -

EXTHRIEREB (FRRIN - &
FEREANKARE-BEAMEORER -
REEENEZ AREKEBINERE - #17
MR RBETHEXERABRTESFEAREERN
EEEAREE-

37Z.&®mI A

(o) =@ T AEH

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT ENCREE 1,211,566 —
Loan and receivables (including cash B LENZIE(BEERES R
and cash equivalents) REeERY) - 1,380,424
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost XN 1,063,766 1,148,559
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued) 37. €@ T B um)
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) IEEREEBEERKE

and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include frade and
other receivables, contract assets, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amounts due fo directors of the
Company, amounts due to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary, bank borrowings, other borrowings and bonds
payable. Detfails of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market, credit and liquidity risks.
The policy on how fo mitigate these risks is sef out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a fimely

and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency fransactions, which
expose the Group fo foreign currency risk. The
Company will consider the use of foreign currency
forward confracts to mitigate the risk when the need

arise.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary
assefs and liabilities that are considered significant by
the management are as follows:

Assets
BE
2018

—E-N\E =

RMB’000

AEENFEZESHMIARERKERRE
MEEH aHEE RITIEHKIRE
ENERREMENR BHARAE
ERE BN -—ENBARFERESR
RERITEE HOEERENES-
ZEEMITANFERSRBBEMES
KE -BZEeRIAAENERBRED
5 EERRBDESRAR - A HNFAREK
ZERRNOBRRENTX EEREEER
ERZFRE - AR RE KA MR
R

™ 45 & bR

(i) EERE
AEEEENERS  ERAREA
EZINERR - FATBRATEER
ZEBANERIE O REIEER -

REEHR BEEERRBERNIA
S ENEREERAGRE S

B :
Liabilities
8E
2017 2018 2017

T-LE —B-NF T tF

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTEI AR®BTR ARETZR

us$ e 8
HK$ BT 790

43 - —
627 260,942 284,647
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and pOlICIeS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2017: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the relevant group enfities against the
relevant foreign currencies and all other variable were
held constant 5% (2017: 5%)
management's assessment of the reasonably possible

represents

change in foreign exchange rates. The sensifivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusfs their
franslation af the end of the year for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will be a
decrease in postax loss or an increase in posttax
profit where the funcfional currency of the relevant
group entities weaken against US$ by 5% or
strengthen against HK$ by 5%, and vice versa.

T-NF+-A=t+—BLFE

37. €@ T B )

(b) MK EEEEEE

Z & BUR (@)

™ 5 &l B ()

(i)

15 W | B (1)
TERHFLMBEMAIEHEERT
BHBEAT AREHAREEER
MREER LIS LA R TR
S%(ZFB — L F: 5%)BREE 5%
(ZE—EF :SHREEBHRINE
PERM S IR A AL E B E RO AT o BR
RENITRABEUIINEFENKRE
NEBIER » W FRBLINEE R
Bo%rHAEHBE - ELAEET  E
FREBEERNIEERAZITR
BS%H A BT LT 5% BIKEBEEE
AR A G RZIRA ©

Decrease (increase)
in post-tax profit

BREBEFED (EH0)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR T T

us$ = - 2

HK$ BT (13,008) (14,201)
In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis EERE LB RERES>NILFER
above is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk FAEEERR FEREIZFERERIL

as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and pOliCieS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rafe risk in relation fo variable-rate bank balances for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and
a variablerate bank borrowing carrying prevailing
inferest rates at LPR (see Note 27) for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017. In addition, the
Group was also exposed fo fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings, other
borrowings, bonds payable, amounts due fo non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary, certain trade
receivables and pledged bank deposits as at 31
December 2018 and 2017,

The Group currenily does not have an interest rafe
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant inferest rate exposure should the need

arise.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for bank balances and the
variablerate  bank borrowing is insignificant. No
sensifivity analysis is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

37. £ I BEum
BEREREEBERBEE@®

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)

and pOliCieS (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables and contract
assets. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure fo credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. In view of the history of
business dealings with the customers and the collection
history of the receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Croup's outstanding receivable balance due from these
customers. Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and contract assefs
based on hisforical payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there is any dispute with the debtors. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of IFRS @ (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade receivables and confract assets individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial insfitutions with high

credit rating assigned by infernal creditrating agencies.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 100% (31
December 2017: 100%) of the total trade receivables and

contract assets as at 31 December 2018.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 15% (31
December 2017: 16%) and 48% (31 December 2017:
51%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
GCroup's largest customer and the five largest customers

respectively.

The largest customer is categorised as a creditimpaired
customer, and the remaining four customers of the five

largest customers are cafegorised as doubtful customers.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued) 37. £ T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) B EBREEBZERBE @
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment & & B b & R {8 57 1 (80
(Continued)
The Group's infernal credit risk grading assessment AEBHOANBEERKRILBENTE
comprises the following categories: 7l :
Internal credit Trade receivables/
rating Description contract assets
AR 1S B R AR &t B RN EREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL -
and does not have any pastdue amounts not creditimpaired
1K 2 B2 HFHFENNRRBRIK - B3 (a] 8 B 58 2HEMEEEE-
AELEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL —
but usually settle after due date not creditimpaired
Bx BEEAREEINARENR  ERESEINPEREN EHEMEEEE-
RELEERE
Doubiful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL -
risk since initial recognition through information not creditimpaired
developed infemally or external resources
AJ &t RIBAERE K ML E IR B EEE R B 116 758 A R 2HEHGEEERE-
N IE & N ARELEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is creditimpaired Lifetime ECL -
creditimpaired
&8 EREBERTEEEELEGERE EHEHEEEHR -
BEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

i ERBRTNEBALRERNKRE EASEYERSE  MERE
VW [E] 518
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued) 37. 2T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) A EEEEEZRBEK @
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & B b R {8 7F 4 (|)
(Continued)
The following fable provides information about the Group's TR -—_E—NEF+_HA=+—HXK
exposure fo credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at SEEREKEREERRLEHEER
31 December 2018: B HEBEE
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
RH RE BB fRE
BB SHAE ] LHERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2018 —E2-N\F % AR¥TT AR®Tx ARET
Types of customers EFEER
Credit impaired customers FERERF
Past due for more than 365 days BHEBIOS R
but less than 2 years B2 28% 73,050 20,100 52,950
Past due for more than 2 years BHEB2F 40% 210,494 83,430 127,064
Past due for more than 3 years BEEBIE 100% 245,820 245,820 -

529,364 349,350 180,014

Low risk customers ERBEF
Neither past due nor impaired RABATARE 0.5%~1% 63,315 397 62,918
Past due for less than 30 days BHARB0KR 0.5%~1% 19,543 122 19,421
Past due for more than 30 days BHBERIOKR

but less than 90 days BREQOX 0.5%-1% 48,019 301 47,718
Past due for more than 90 days BB B/OOR

but less than 180 days BFE 180K 0.5%-1% 44,152 277 43,875
Past due for more than 180 days BHIHEA 180K

but less than 365 days BAE|365K 0.5%~1% 63,689 399 63,290
Past due for more than 1 year BRI F 0.5%~1% 634 4 630

239,352 1,500 237,852
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued) 37. €@ I Aum
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B EREEREBZERBE@m
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =& E &R E TG @
(Continued)
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
B BRE 3 BRE
EBEE cHAE B SHEFE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2018 —E-N\E§ % AR T AR®T AR¥ TR
Doubtful customers AREF
Neither past due nor impaired ARSI ARE 5.2% 12,024 621 11,403
Past due for less than 30 days BHTEI0K 5.4% 8,981 486 8,495
Past due for more than 30 days BEERIOR
but less than 90 days BREQ0K 14.0% 63,241 8,837 54,404
Past due for more than 90 days AHEB/OOR
but less than 180 days BFE 180K 20.5% 133,580 27,406 106,174
Past due for more than 180 days BHIHEE 180K
but less than 365 days BRE|365K 21.6% 98,341 21,198 77,143
Past due for more than 1 year aEEEF 26.2% 68,946 18,073 50,873
Past due for more than 2 years BHBRB2E 39.0% 127,672 49,741 77,931
Past due for more than 3 years BHBRBIE 49.2% 455,113 223,711 231,402

967,898 350,073 617,825
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and pOliCieS (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The following fable provides information about the Group's

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for confract assets as at 31

37. €@ T B )
(b) A EREEBZRBEm@m
EE R k& &R E 14 @)

TRV =ZZB-—NF+_A=+—H=FK
SERGRENEEGERBRREREES

December 2018: EHABER

Gross Net

Expected carrying Loss carrying

loss rate amount allowance amount

EHEEEX REOSHEAE EBEEE RESHEFE

% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2018 —E-N\F % AR¥ TR ARETR AR®T T

Watch list customers EIZEF

Neither past due nor BE 7R 780 8 75 RO (B

impaired 7.6% 37,536 2,873 34,663

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 o measure the
loss allowance at lifefime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit — impaired, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these items

by using a provision matrix.

In making the assessment on expected loss rates, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including hisforical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysfs, govemmental bodies, relevant
thinktanks and other similar organisafions, as well as
consideration of various exfernal sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's core
operations. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific

debiors is updated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

37. €@ T A )

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) B EBREEBZERBE @
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & E B & B B 57 1 (@)
(Continued)
Other receivables H i FE W K18
No allowance for impairment was made for other BEEAEMNEHFAUBERRAIGHERZR
receivables since the directors consider the probability of BEBAOMA MR/ - IR E e
default is minimal after assessing the counter-parties’ W R TE VE H AE el R (B 4 o
financial background and creditability.
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE
The credif risk on bank balances and cash are limited HRBAZHEEFH AERKEEFT R
because the majority of the counterparties are banks with BEEEILANEBET WBPTELRES
high creditratings assigned by international  creditrating MNEERBRER AEBTABEEME
agencies. The Group has no other significant concentration AREFEERR -
of credit risk.
Summary BR
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade AEE BEXHEBHEEBSENERKE
receivables and confract assets in lifefime ECL during the REEHNEENEEBRERNESHMT :
year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Balance at 1 January under HKFRS 9/ R IRE W 75 S 2R
HKAS 39 FON BB GHEREI0
R — A —B#&&k 437,777 437,777
Impairment loss recognised under HKAS 39 RIBB B 2R F 30 ER
B E R - -
Impairment loss recognised under HKFRS 9 RIR A A% RS ERFE %
R ERE - =
— Trade receivables — AR 263,146 -
— Conlfract assets —BREE 2,873 -
Reversal of provision during the year FRNEFHR D (19,964) =
Balance at 31 December RT-A=+—BH&EE 683,832 437,777
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

37. €@ T B )

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) B EREEBZERBE @
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Liquidity risk REEZE R

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements fo ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. Having considered the factors
and circumstances set out in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient liquidity fo meet ifs cash flows
requirements for the next twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

The following tables detail the Group's contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dafes on which the Group can be

required fo pay.

The tables include both inferest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that inferest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing inferest rate
at the end of the reporting date.

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued) 37. €@ I Aum
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) A EEEEEZRBEK @
and pOliCieS (Continued)
Liquidify risk (Continued) REE SR E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBEESRANZREBRE
Weighted On
average  demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months 1year undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3 months  to 1 year to 2 years cash flows amount
ik B RER/ =fdA AERRE B
EBRAE  SR=f@A E-F —-FEWHE REBAR &8

% RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
% AR®TR ARBTR AR%T:n ARBTRT ARETR

At 31 December 2018 HA=ZT-—N\£

+tZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial HTELBER
liabilifies
Trade payables JE £ BR 3K - 175,665 - - 175,665 175,665
Other payables Hiw 2B - 141,326 - - 141,326 141,326
Amounts due fo directors ENESHIE - 6,933 - - 6,933 6,933
Amounts due fo non-controlling & — I Ff B 2 7] 3F
inferests of a subsidiary ERER TR
— nonvinterest bearing - R B - 1,764 - 42,027 43,791 43,791
— interest bearing at — RETEHEGE
fixed rates 12 - - 31,007 31,007 27,684
Bank borrowings RITEE
— inferests bearing at — REEMEFE
fixed rates 5.54 13,169 234,477 - 247,646 241,670
— inferests bearing at —RFBF X B
floating rate 5.60 10,025 74,196 - 84,221 83,000
Other borrowings Hife &
— nonrinterest bearing —TER - 54,526 - 2,535 57,061 57,061
— inferest bearing o — REEHMEFE
fixed rates 12 - - 35,526 35,526 31,720
Bonds payable EffEH 12.85 - 286,508 - 286,508 254,916

403,408 595,181 111,095 1,109,684 1,063,766
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives

and pOlICIeS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

T-NF+-A=t+—BLFE

37. €@ T B )

(b)

MHEERERER

ARBES R R @&
REBESRFERERRK

Z & UK m)

Weighted Cn
average demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months 1 year Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rafe 3 months folyear o2 years 2vyears  cash flows amount
REH
MEFY RER/D ZEARE- Bens
ERFE  R=M@A F —EERE  RWEFNE BE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+#&
+=p=+-8
Non-derivative financial FTELHAR
liabilities
Trade payables R EBR R - 169,064 - - - 169,064 169,064
Other payables [excluding ~ H 4t fE 4 3R 38
current portion of bonds| (TeEE % ol
B 5) = 198,870 = = = 198,870 198,870
Amounts due to directors ENEEZRE - 9,602 - - - 9,602 9,602
Amounts due to non-ontrolling J&f — &I fff B 22 &)
inferests of a subsidiary FERERE
— noninterest bearing — i B — 1,838 — 57,887 — 59,725 59,725
— inferest bearing ot fixed  — IR E EFI K5t &
rates 12 — - 11,609 — 11,609 10,365
Bank borrowings RITEE
— interests bearing at fixed — & E & F R &t &
rafes 5.25 29,377 195,053 70,794 = 295,224 288,192
— inferests bearing at —BFHF KA
floating rate 5.65 10,030 27,246 27,279 21,976 86,531 83,000
Other borrowings Hife &
— norinterest bearing — R iR = 4,527 = = = 4,527 4,527
— interest bearing ot fixed  — R EE A K&t 8
rates 12 60,000 = 39,016 = 99,016 04,836
Bonds payable B EH 157 - 251,330 - - 251,330 230,378
483,308 473,629 206,585 21976 1,185,498 1,148,559

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited

196

REITRRRIZR AR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=& B R AR B A (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices

or rafes from observable current market transactions as input.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assefs and financial liabilities measured at amortised costs in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

38. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabiliies arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated sfatement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

Bank Other
borrowings borrowings

RITEE Hitfs &
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET

37.

38.

Bonds
payable

&%
RMB'000

ARBETT

@I A m@m

0 2AFE
TREELRTREBENATFEDIREAR
EEEAZBEURRSRESIN &8
ERABEMSX5ERIFERIESGA
SR EE

E=ZRRRBERIAENEAVBERER
AENEREENERAGNEE SR M
HRAFEBE -

EREEgmELEEENYHR

TRHANAEEAREEIMELN B B E
B BRASLIRSEY AREZYMELE
BERRAEARER(HARASRER NRE
MEXRDERBMEZIMBRERENKEFAR

f& e

Amounts due

to non-
Amounts controlling Non
due to interest of controlling
directors a subsidiary interest Total
Ef—HE
WELQF
A+ FER FER
EENE BEME Ba At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETE ARKTR

Ai 1 Jonuary 2017 RA=ZZ—+F

—HA—H 485,215 100,922 250,715 28,480 70,087 160,136 1,095,555

Financing cash flows BEHR &R E (137,192) (7,186) (42,483 (18,878 (1,969) (4,456)  (212,164)
Inferest expenses MESH 23,169 5,627 39,312 — 1,972 — 70,080
Results shared by~ FE4R AR 4E 25 FE 15

non-controlling £

interests — — — — — 1,164 1,164
Foreign exchange  EH#E

translation - - (16,317) — — - (16,317)
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 38.HmEEZEMELEEBEMNYER

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Confinued) (48)
Amounts due
to non-
Amounts controlling Non
Bank Other Bonds due to interest of controlling
borrowings borrowings payable directors a subsidiary interest Total
Ef—E
i) PN
FE 4% FER FER
BITEE Hitnfd® EAES EZRE BRNE E @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTRE ARBTT ARBTR AR®TR ARBTT ARETT ARKTR

At 31 December AT —+F

2017 and +-A=+—H

1 January 2018 RZZ—-N\&F

—HA—H 371,192 99,363 231,227 9,602 70,090 156,844 938,318

Financing cash flows BEH &R E (61,069) (14,600 (19,207) (2,669 (1,838) (5,793)  (105,176)
Inferest expenses MESH 14,547 4,018 30,694 — 3,223 — 52,482
Resulis shared by~ JEIRRRIE RS EIH £

non-controlling b

inferest = = = = = 4,851 4,851
Foreign exchange ~ E X B E

franslation — — 12,202 — — — 12,202
At 31 December ~ R=ZZE—N\F

2018 +-A=+—H 324,670 88,781 254,916 6,933 71,475 155,902 Q02,677
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9. TEMBRAFE

39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

ARARRBERRNEIEMBARFBOT

Country of
operation and Issued and fully Attributable
date of paid ordinary equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/ - indirectly held by
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
EEERRAM ERTRAREER AARBESEN
WEAR SR R/ RIMAEH K&/ g2RER FE4h B TERH NEAKA
2018 2017
ZB-0\f ZT—tF
Jiangsu Jicolong Salvage PRC RMB72,754,776 51% 51%  Provision of marine hoisting, ~ Limited liability
Harbour Engineering Company 22 July 1977 installation and other
Limited* ["Jiangsu Jiaolong’) engineering services
IHEGRTHMB LR HE ARE72754,7767C REELERE BREMR
BRAR(NIEHRE]) —htt# ZE T8
+A=+=H REMIERS
Jiongsu Xingyu Environment PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of dredging Limited liability
Protection Company Limited* 20 March 2016 senvices
IHETRARRERAF HE AR #10,000,0007 REGRRY BREMR
—E-R%E
=A=tH
Jiongsu Xiangyu Environment PRC US$75,000,000 100% 100%  Manufocturing of Wholly-owned
Protection Equipment 18 August 2013 dredging machines foreign enferprise
Company Limited*
IHEATRRRBBERAA HE 75,000,000% T SE R NEBELR
=%
NA+\BE
Jiangsu Xingyu Holdings Group PRC RMB39,315,800 nofes ii nofes ii Provision of dredging Limited liability
Limited* ["PRC Operational Entity’} 13 July 2007 senvices
[nofes ii]
THATEREMARAR 48 ARB015 8005 M B memam BREH
((MESEER)) (H7i) —Z2LE
tA+=H
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

V.FTENRBEATAFE@

Country of
operation and Issued and fully Attributable
date of paid ordinary equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/  indirectly held by
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
SEER KM EETRAREER FARABERAN
WEAREH R/ RIMAH BE/ EREE 4 B 1 TEER NAKA
2018 2017
“E-N\E —T—LF
Jiongsu Xiangyu Port Constructing ~ PRC US$80,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of management Wholly-owned
Project Administration Company 11 June 2010 services foreign enterprise
Limited* ("Xiangyu PRC")
(nofes i
IEATERIRER HE 80,000,000% 7T REEERY NEBELR
BRAR (ATHE]) it S i3
(Hitii) ~NAT—H
Jiongsu Xiangyu Water Management  PRC US$73,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of dredging Wholly-owned
Company Limited* 3 August 2011 and water management foreign enterprise
services
TEHATABERAR i 73,000,000% 7T REGER NEBELR
—B——F KB EE RS
NR=H
Power Welth Engineering Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Invesiment holding and Limited liability
Limited 3 July 2002 provision of dredging
consuliation services
NEIRERAR Bk 100,000 T RERR KR BREE
Sk 3 Bk ARG
tA=H
Jiongsu Fengyu Property Development  PRC RMB66,000,000 100% 100%  Property development Limited liability
Company Limited* 4 December 2013 and invesiment
IHETERERAR i AR 66,000,000 NEERRRE BRER
—ZE-=F
+=AmA
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 0. FTEMBEQXAFE@
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Country of
operation and Issued and fully Attributable
date of paid ordinary equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/  indirectly held by
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities Form of company
SEER KM EETRAREER FAABMERAN
WELARAR RY/ Ry AH BE/ EREE P45 IR 1 TEER NAKA
2018 2017
“E-N\E —T—+F
Yancheng Juranzhijia Home PRC RMBT,000,000 100% 100%  Property management Limited fiability
Building Material Commercial 15 June 2016
Management Limited*
BERERLZZRENER HE AR#1,000,0007 NEERE BREE
EEERAR ZTRE
ANATEHA
Jiangsu Xingyu Commerce PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Company Limited* 16 April 2015
IHATEEERAR i AR #10,000,0007 REBER BREE
i Sk
mA+<E
Huaian Shi Xiangyu Technology PRC US$20,000,000 80% 80%  lending ond venture Limited fiability
Microfinance Limited* 11 September 2016 capital financing business
in the fechnology sector
LM AT EER h 20,000,000% 7T BETEEEREIZ BREE
BRARA ZTRE REeRERH
nA+—H
Jiongsu Xiangyu Environmental PRC US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited fiability
Protection Indusy Development 27 August 2016
Limited*
IEATRREZZRERLAT o 50,000,000% 7 REBERT ARER
ZE-RE
NAZ++H
Jiongsu Lifu Infrastructure Construction  PRC US$49,980,000 100% 100%  Inactive Limited liability
Company Limited* 25 June 2012
IHFNEEARREERERAR @ 49,980,000% T REBERT ARER
—E-C-F
AAZTHA
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

The above fable lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of

the Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

0)

(i)

for identification only

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the reporting pericd, or at any fime during the year.

Consolidated structured entity

PRC laws and regulations prohibit or restrict foreign invesfors from
owning more than 50% equity interest in any enterprise which owns
vessels for conducting dredging business.

On 19 April 2011, Xiangyu PRC, the PRC Operational Entity and
its respective equity participants, being Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou
entered info a series of agreements (the “Confractual Arrangements”).
The PRC Operational Entity is engaged in the provision of dredging
services of the Group.

Key provisions of the Contractual Arrangements are as follows:
Option Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
info an exclusive option agreement (“Option Agreement”) whereby
Mr. liv and Ms. Zhou have irrevocably granted Xiangyu PRC an
opfion fo acquire, directly or through one or more nominees, the
entire equity interest held by Mr. Lliu and Ms. Zhou in PRC
Operational Entity af a price ("Acquisition Cost”) equivalent fo the
fair market value of such equity inferest or, where applicable, the
amount as permitted by the applicable PRC laws. The Acquisition
Cost, when received, will be contributed by Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou
to Xiangyu PRC as capital surplus. Subject to the compliance with
the PRC laws, Xiangyu PRC may exercise the optfion at any time, in
respect of all or part of the equity interest of PRC Operational Entity
and in any manner af its sole discretion.

Pursuant fo the Option Agreement, each of PRC Operational Entity,
Mr. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou has given undertakings that it shall perform
certain acts, or refrain from performing certain other acts unless with
the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC, including but not limited to
the below matters:

[a)  that PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its consfitutional
documents or ifs registered capital;

China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
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* EHRHSE
&

(i RE|ERR - SR FRERESRE - HENNE QA
B EMBEITEIMERES

i) EHtEBLEER

HBA B R R E 2R IE SRR B AN AR E E R
BEAETREAEBNOMMOEETITERER
50% Hy B

RZZ——FWA+IE AFHE hELE
BEREEZZ2ERT(AREERBALXL)FIL—
Eolmz((G0RH]) TEKERBRERM
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ZERNTHMEZEROT
R8 BR R 5

AFHE PELEER AEERBARLEIL
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Option Agreement (Continued)

(b)

c)

(d)

le)

(f

(g)

(h)

that any of PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and/or Ms. Zhou
shall not incur any indebtedness or guarantee (other than
those incurred in the ordinary course of business and
disclosed to and approved by Xiangyu PRC in advancel;

that PRC Operational Enfity shall not provide any loan or
guarantee fo any third parties;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over any part of its assets, business or revenue
and that Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not dispose of or create
encumbrances over the equity interest held by them in PRC
Operational Entity, except the security created under the
Equity Pledge Agreement (as defined in (ii) below);

that PRC Operational Entity shall not enter into any material
contracts over cerfain amount other than those in its ordinary
course of business and disclosed fo and approved by
Xiangyu PRC in advance;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not distribute any dividend
(including any undistributed afiributable profit payable to the
entity’s shareholders prior to the Option Agreement becoming
effective) to its shareholders and that Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou
underfake that such undistributed profit shall be refained in
PRC Operational Enfity as its capital and/or reserved fund
and shall give up and assign or transfer to Xiangyu PRC any
dividend declared and distributed thereafter and payable to
them by virtue of their holding of the equity interest in PRC
Operational Entity;

that PRC Operational Entity shall not make investment or
engage in any merger or acquisition transactions; and

that at the request of Xiangyu PRC, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou
shall appoint such persons nominated by Xiangyu PRC to act
as the Direcfors, supervisors and senior management
members of PRC Operational Entity.

The Option Agreement became effective on 19 April 2011 and will

expire on the date on which all the equity inferests held by Mr. Liu

and Ms. Zhou in PRC Operational Entity are transferred fo Xiangyu

PRC and/or its nominee(s).
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Proxy Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
into a proxy agreement (“Proxy Agreement’) pursuant fo which Mr.
Liu and Ms. Zhou have unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
fo authorise such person(s) as designated by Xiangyu PRC (being
PRC citizens) to exercise the shareholders’ rights in relation to
appointment of proxy and exercise of vofing rights in PRC
Operational Entity under the articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity and the applicable PRC laws. Such shareholders’
rights include but not limited fo (i) calling and attending the
shareholders’ meetings of PRC Operational Entfity; (i) exercising the
voting rights on all matters requiring the consideration and approval
of shareholders and those pursuant fo articles of association of PRC
Operational Entity.

Before Xiangyu PRC acquires the entire equity inferests in PRC
Operational Entity contemplated under the Option Agreement,
Xiangyu PRC can exercise the voting rights of shareholders of PRC
Operational Entity.

The term of the Proxy Agreement commenced on 19 April 2011
and will expire on 18 April 2026, and will be renewable at the
election of Xiangyu PRC for successive terms of 10 years each until
fermination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior notice fo PRC
Operational Entity.

Composite Services Agreement

Xiangyu PRC and PRC Operational Entity entered into an exclusive
composife services agreement (“Composite Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which PRC Operational Entity will exclusively engage
Xiangyu PRC to provide consuliation and other ancillary services in
enterprise management and consultancy services, dredging project
management and consultancy services.

In consideration of the provision of the aforementioned services by
Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity agrees to pay to Xiangyu PRC
fees on an annual basis in arrears. Fees payable to Xiangyu PRC by
PRC Operational Entity will be equivalent to the total audited
revenue less all the related cosfs, expenses, faxes and sfafufory
reserve of PRC Operational Entity. Xiangyu PRC reserves the right fo
identify the items of expenses to be included as related expenses
when calculating the fees payable by PRC Operational Entity and is
entifled to adjust the fee payable by PRC Operational Entity anytime
based on the volume of service provided.
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Composite Services Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational
Entity shall not without the prior written consent of Xiangyu PRC to
dispose of or pledge its material assefs, operation rights and/or
business; alter its registered capital; alter its scope of business;
declare dividends; and/or remove any of its Directors and senior
management members. Pursuant fo the Composite Services
Agreement, Xiangyu PRC is required fo pay to PRC Operational
Entity a surety amount of not less than HK$22,276,000 for the
performance of its services provided to PRC Operational Entity under
the Composite Services Agreement. As a security for the due
payment of the consultation service fees and repayment of the surety
money by PRC Operational Enfity to Xiangyu PRC under the
Composite Services Agreement, PRC Operational Entity has agreed
to pledge its inferest in the three vessels owned or (as the case may
be) jointly-owned by it to Xiangyu PRC.

The term of the Composite Services Agreement commenced from 19
April 2011, and will expire on 18 April 2026, which will be
renewable at the request of Xiangyu PRC for successive ferms of 10
years each until termination by Xiangyu PRC with a 30-day prior
written notice to PRC Operational Entity.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou entered
info an equity pledge agreement (“Equity Pledge Agreement’),
pursuant to which Mr. Liv and Ms. Zhou granted a continuing first
priority security interests over their respective equity interests in PRC
Operational Entity to Xiangyu PRC for guaranteeing the performance
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement. Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou are responsible to
record the pledge of equity into the shareholders’ register on the
effective date of the Equity Pledge Agreement. PRC Operational
Entity, Mr. Lliv and Ms. Zhou are also responsible fo register the
pledge of equity in the State Adminisiration for Industry and
Commerce 10 days affer the effective date of the Equity Pledge
Agreement.
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Equity Pledge Agreement (Continued)

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, without the prior written
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not alter its
current shareholding structure and/or its nature or scope of business,
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou shall not allow PRC Operational Enfity fo
transfer or dispose of its assets or pledge or transfer their respective
equity inferests in PRC Operational Entity in favor of or to other third
parties. Xiangyu PRC is entitled fo receive all dividends derived from
the pledged equity interests. Xiangyu PRC is entiled to demand
repayment of the secured indebtedness and/or to exercise ifs rights
to sell the pledged equity interests on occurrence of certain events of
default including but not limited to non-performance or breach of any
of the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the Proxy Agreement; or failure fo repay other debts when due by
PRC Operational Entity, Mr. Liu or Ms. Zhou (as the case may be.

The Equity Pledge Agreement became effective from the date of its
execution and shall terminate upon performance of all obligations
under the Composite Services Agreement, the Option Agreement
and the Proxy Agreement in full.

Vessel Pledge Agreements

PRC Operational Entity and Xiangyu PRC have entered into three
vessel pledge agreements ("Vessel Pledge Agreements’) dated 19
April 2011, pursuant to which PRC Operational Entity has pledged
in favor of Xiangyu PRC (i) ifs entire interest in the dredger “Zhuayang
No. 101 (ii) its 50% inferest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 1" and {iii)
its 50% interest in the dredger “Kaijin No. 3" to Xiangyu PRC, as
security for the due payment of the consultation service fees and
repayment of the surety money [as well as related interest and
expenses, efc.) then owing by PRC Operational Entity fo Xiangyu
PRC under the Composite Services Agreement.

Pursuant fo the Vessel Pledge Agreements, without the prior written
consent of Xiangyu PRC, PRC Operational Entity shall not pledge or
dispose of ifs interests in the pledged vessels or any part thereof.
Xiangyu PRC is enfifled fo exercise its rights to sell the pledged
vessels on occurrence of certain events of default, including but not
limited to the non-payment of the secured indebtedness or non-
performance of the Composite Services Agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Confinved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
Vessel Pledge Agreements (Continued)

The Vessel Pledge Agreements became effective from the date of its
execution and shall terminate upon payment or repayment of the
consultation service fees, surety money and all other related
expenses under the Composite Services Agreement.

The Group has a contractual commitment to provide financial
assistance fo the PRC Operational Entity. However, due to the
strategic importance of it to the Group, the Directors intended fo
provide financing to the PRC Operational Entity to support the
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2018, the bank
borrowings of the PRC Operational Entity of RMB294,670,000
(2017: RMB257,000,000) are secured by pledge of assets jointly
owned by the PRC Operational Entity and the Group, corporate
guarantee by the Company and personal guarantees provided by
Mr. Liu and Ms. Zhou, the Directors of the Company. Unutilised
secured bank facilities amounted to approximately
RMB430,330,000 (2017: RMB486,000,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of revenue and
assefs subject to the Contractual Arrangements accounted for 97%
[2017: 99%) and 67.3% (2017: 62.9%) of the Group's fotal
revenue and assefs respectively.

The Directors, are of the view that the terms of the Contractual
Arrangements have in subsfance enabled Xiangyu PRC to have
power over the PRC Operational Entity, rights fo variable refurns
from its involvement with the PRC Operational Entity, and has the
ability to use its power fo affect its refurns, despite the absence of
formal legal equity interest held by the Group therein. Accordingly,
PRC Operational Entity is accounted for as a consolidated structured
enfity as a subsidiary of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following summarised financial information in respect of PRC
Operational Entity represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations. PRC Operational Entity has a material subsidiary —
Jiangsu Jicolong and the summarised financial information of
Jiangsu Jiaolong is set out in Nofe 40 and is not included in the

financial information below.

V.FTENRBEATAFE@

TXBANTEECEERYFEENSEBRAR
BHEAMBE TECEERAA HNEENE
DA TOTEHRE MR THREMBER
HIINK 400 - BX KRB AZE TII 8B E#
o

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Current assets mE & E 172,829 126,146
Non-current assets EMBE E 1,582,093 1,682,106
Current liabilities mBEE (573,997) (590,003)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE - (171)
Equity affributable to owners of the Company RRAIFTEAELER 1,180,925 1,218,078
Revenue g 285,930 411,091
Expense b2 (323,083) (328,041)
(Loss)/profit for the year and fofal comprehensive 4 71 (548, FI |2 & /9 & |

(expensel/income for the year GEVL & Tt (37,153) 83,050
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

40. Subsidiary with Material Non-Controlling  40. ?%Eﬁ EXFEREZNHE

Interests

The Group held 51% equity inferest in Jiangsu Jiaolong at 31 REBR-_ZE—NEER-_FE—+tF+=-_A=+
December 2018 and 2017. —BEBIIHRES I SHRRKE -
Proportion of
Place of establishment  ownership interests and voting
and principal place of rights held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interest non-controlling interest interest
M E L i B R FEREREAENEAE
HWEARER TEEXBE EERREELA AREFERERNET RitFRRER

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12,2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ZEB-N\Ft  ZEB—tE+  ZB-NFt+ Tttt  ZEB-\F+  ZE-tEFT
ZB=t-B ZA=t-B ZA=+-B ZA=+-H ZH=t-H ZA=+-H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFTL ARET R AREFT

Jiangsu Jiaolong PRC 49% 49% 4,152 1,164 155,203 156,884
L& el
Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangsu Jiaolong A E ARSI R RENTEE R
which has material non-confrolling interest is sef out below. The AN TR o N SRR At Hh B RS B R A B R 6K 4
summarised financial information below represents amounts before B SEE -

intragroup eliminations:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR T T

(Restated)

(= 5)

Current assets BB E 312,923 297,336
Non-current assefs EMEE E 286,461 288,967
Current liabilities mEBE (158,794) (141,798)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (115,001) (115,568)
Equity affributable to owners of the Company RRNFIFE AEIEER 170,386 172,093
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

40. SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 40. EERFERESZHNHE L

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) al (@)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(& =751)
Non-controlling inferests JE1Z IR e 155,203 156,844
Revenue W &5 374,129 273,952
Expense 53 (377,477) (281,476)
[Loss)/profit for the year and total comprehensive & A (E518), & Fl &k F R 2 HE
income for the year W s 48 R (3,348) (7,524
(Loss)/profit and fotal comprehensive income RNRBFTE ARG (EE), &5
aftributable to the owners of the Company PEAER G (1,707) (4,232)
(Loss/profit and total comprehensive income JER GRS RS (B518), %A &
aftributable to the non-controlling interests 2 H Y R (1,641) (3,292)
Profit and fotal comprehensive income for the year 4 A 35 FI| & 2 T U 25 48 58 (3,348) [7,524)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests T IR R A aR O AR (5,793) (4,456
Net cash inflow from operating activities REFHEENHSRAFR 55,711 13,822
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEHEANR S R F5 (10,422) (16,9106)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities BRI &E EBEAMBE £ (i)
mAE R (3,597) 5377
Net cash inflow (outflow) BeRACRD) F8E 35,899 [2,173]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

41, Share-Based Payment Transaction N BHIARS

Pursuant to the writlen resolution of the shareholders of the BEBHA-_ZE——FHRA-_THESNARR A
Company dated 24 May 2011, the share option scheme (the PR EmAHER - BRERE ([5H21) Z 84 & &
"Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The Scheme was R -RIUAEEEREZTRAEBRALHE
established for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards for B TEBXNER TEEHEERANES T F
the confribution of Directors and eligible persons. The Scheme will ANEBEER - HEBER T -_—EFEFRA=-+=
remain in force for a period of ten years from adoption of the H & °

Scheme. The Scheme will expire on 23 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 85,560,000 share HE-Z—-N\F+=-A=+—HLEFE £ &%
options were granted to directors and employees of the Group. BEEE KRB ITERT85560,0001 ik - &
The Binominal model has been used to estimate the fair value of BHEATEEA —BABRGE -
the options.
Movements of share options outstanding and their weighted RITEHERERENETZHTEENEES N
average exercise prices are as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of share price per of share
share options share opfions
& A& 0
¥ iR 19 i IR
TEE =] T{EE #H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Exercisable at beginning of FEH A 1TE N/A
the year TiE A - = =
Granted 2R 0.131 85,560,000 — —
lapsed K N/A
i A - = =

0.131 85,560,000 = =

No share options were exercised during the year. FARBEMREEITE -
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or AEBYELIEZIHFTETURSBERSLEE
sefile the opfions in cash. BEARHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

41. Share-Based Payment Transaction (Continved) 41, IR 2 X £+ X 5 ()

Share options outstanding af the end of the reporting period have RBEBRRITENERENTERRITESE
the following exercisable period and exercise price: R
Exercise
Date of grant price Exercisable period 2018 2017
£ B H TEE 17EH —E-N\F —E—tF
HK$
BT
11-10-2018 0.131 11-102018 to 10-10-2019 85,560,000 =
—E-N\F+A+—H —E-N\F+A+—RBE
—E-hF+ATH
The fair values of options granted determined were as follow: BREBARENDEEERENAFEENT
11 October 2018
—E2-NF+HA+—H
Option value (af grant date) BRREEE(RKRL B ) HK$3,080,160
3,080,160/ 7T
Fair value per option (at grant date) BHBREATERELBH) HK$0.036
0.036% 7t
Significant inputs info the valuation model: EERANEEZRHAER :
Exercise price at grant date B HEHRTEES HK$0.131
0.131%7t
Share price at grant date & BB E HK$0.1160
0.1160% 7T
Expected volatility (note) A BR R 08 (Ff ) 81.3960%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 b Al = 1.8396%
Life of options i B HE F B 1 year
145
Expected dividend yield FEHI R B K 0%
Valuation model applied FTAEEBERER Binomial
ZIER
Note: The expected volatility is measured at the standard deviation of the i3 - 38 HA R UE Y i TR HR RR (B [0 3R] A9 4= Ak = =t
expected share price refurn and is based on sfatistical analysis of g ZORNHEALEET B ERTRES
daily share prices over 2 years before the respective dates of grant. BHRERENHES T AREESE o
The Group recognised a total expense of HK$3,080,160 for the REBBERZ HE—_ZEZ—N\E +-_A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2018 in relation fo share options TEE BA AR EREABNERY A

granted by the Company.

3,080,160 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

42. Statement of Financial Position and 2. KR PBNBBERRERE#EE
Reserves of the Company
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARBTTT

NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE

Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RHERRIRIEETIRE 259,214 259,214

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UG BT B A B F 1B 951,438 942,913

Bank balances and cash BT EBRERES 127 159

951,565 Q43,072

CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE

Other payables H ftb J& 7 5/ IE 4,125 4,756

Amounts due to directors JENEERIE 14,547 12,401

Bonds payable J& (< 18 254,916 230,378

273,588 247,535

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 677,977 695,537

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERAE A& 937,191 954,751

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFE

Share capital B% 7R 149,577 123,483

Reserves fE & 787,614 831,268

TOTAL EQUITY S 937,191 Q54,751
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and RRABHHBRAXKERZZE-—AF=A=+
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2019 NBEEESHERTETE  THUTAL
and are signed on its behalf by: HREREZ:

LIU KAUJIN ZHOU SHUHUA
2IBAE JEREE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— NF+ A=+ —HILFE

42. Statement of Financial Position and
Reserves of the Company (Continued)

42, RN B BV B B AR O Rk B R )

Movement in the Company's reserves: NEEBHE
Share
Share options Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserves losses Total
REE BRERE Hib % S At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB’O00 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H 922,980 = 165,238 (229,821) 858,397
Loss for the year FEANEE = = = (27,129 (27,129)
Total comprehensive FRE2EMX
expense for the year g = = = (27,129 (27,129)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF
and 1 January 2018 TZA=+—BRK
- N\E—A—H 922,980 = 165,238 (256,950) 831,268
Loss for the year FRNEE — — — (51,624) (51,624)
Equityseffled sharebased LA # 25 45 & 9 % 1 32 1+
payments — 2,752 — — 2,752
Total comprehensive FRNTEMAX AR
expense for the year — 2,752 — (51,624) (48,872)
Placing of shares (note 30)  B& 19 B2 & (K7 2+ 30) 5,218 — — — 5,218
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=—A=+—H 928,198 2,752 165,238 (308,574) /787,614
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 ##iZ —ZE— NF+ _A=+—HILFE

43. Event After the Reporting Period

Extension of maturity of the Bonds

On 15 March 2019, CITIC and the Company enfered info the
Sixth - Amendment Agreement fo further amend the ferms and
conditions of the Bonds. Under the Sixth Amendment Agreement, it
has been agreed that, among other matters, the principal amount
of the Bonds shall be amended to HK$290,000,000 (equivalent
fo approximately RMB248,288,000) and the maturity date of the
2016 Bonds shall be amended to 20 December 2019 (the “New
Maturity Date”) with interest rafes amended to 13% per annum.

In the event the Company prepays any sum of the outstanding
principal amount of the Bonds that is not less than US$3,000,000
[equivalent to approximately RMB20,148,000) during the period
as from 6 March 2019 and up to 30 April 2019 (both dates
inclusive) (“Period 1), the annual rate of inferest applicable in
respect of such sum shall be adjusted downward to become an
annual rate of 11.70% (the “Interest Rate Adjustment (Period 1)").
In addition to the Inferest Rate Adjustment (Period 1), the CITIC may
in its absolute discrefion grant to the Company an additional
inferest waiver in the amount of US$420,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,821,000).

In the event the Company prepays any sum of the outstanding
principal amount of the Bonds during the pericd as from 1 May
2019 and up to 21 September 2019 [both dates inclusive), the
annual rate of inferest applicable in respect of such sum shall be

adjusted downward to become an annual rate of 11.96%.
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BT (FHE R & AR 248,288,00078) * A K =
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13% o

WEARAR -_TE—NE=ZANBE=-ZT—AN
FMA=+B(EREEHEaER) B (HH
1NEENAEBENESASENEMNKER
£ 5T L MN3,000000% T (HERHARE
20,148,00070) * ZERBEBEANFEF L ETA
BEF170%(TF R (AM1)]) - BRAIXRH
(HR) 5 CIMICH 2 4 B 15 M A8 2 & 58 46
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E —

43.

44.

B 75 R 2R Y & (D

Event After the Reporting Period (Confinued)

Extension of maturity of the Bonds (Continued)

The Company agrees and underfakes to make a payment in the
aggregated sum of not less than US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB33,780,000) to CITIC in respect of the Bonds
in the period commencing from 6 March 2019 through 30 June
2019 (both dates inclusive).

The total amount payable by the Company to CITIC to redeem all
the outstanding Bonds on the New Maturity Date (the “New
Redemption Amount’), shall be equal to the sum of: (a] the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding then; and (b)
interest accrued on such principal amount of the Bonds calculated
in accordance with the Original Bond Conditions from 6 March
2019 to the New Maturity Date. Assuming that there have been
no previous redemption of outstanding Bonds from é March 2019
fo the 2019 Maturity Date, the New Redemption Amount on the
Maturity Date shall be HK$319,483,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB273,553,000).

As at 31 January 2019, the Company has repaid RMB6,000,000
to CITIC.

Defails are set out in the Company’s announcement on 15 March

2019.

Comparative Figures

Cerfain comparative figures have been restated to conform with

the current year's presentation.
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